
 
Argyll and Bute Council 
Comhairle Earra Ghaidheal agus Bhoid 
 
Corporate Services 
Director:  Nigel Stewart 
 

Kilmory, Lochgilphead, PA31 8RT 
Tel:  01546 602127  Fax:  01546 604444 

DX 599700 LOCHGILPHEAD 
e.mail –nigel.stewart@argyll-bute.gov.uk 

 
2 June 2006 

 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

A meeting of the AUDIT COMMITTEE will be held in the THE MEMBERS ROOM, KILMORY, 
LOCHGILPHEAD on FRIDAY, 9 JUNE 2006 at 10:00 AM, which you are requested to attend. 
 
 

Nigel Stewart 
Director of Corporate Services 

 
 

BUSINESS 
 
 1. APOLOGIES  

 
 2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
 3. MINUTES 
  Audit Committee 3 March 2006 (Pages 1 - 4) 

 
 4. ADAPTING TO THE FUTURE 2003-2004 
  Report by Internal Audit Manager (Pages 5 - 22) 

 
 5. MAINTAINING SCOTLAND'S ROADS 
  Report by Internal Audit Manager (Pages 23 - 28) 

 
 6. ANNUAL AUDIT REPORT 2005-2006 
  Report by Internal Audit Manager (Pages 29 - 30) 

 
 7. EXTERNAL AND INTERNAL AUDIT FOLLOW UP 2004-2005 
  Report by Internal Audit Manager (Pages 31 - 50) 

 
 8. ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 
  Report by Internal Audit Manager (Pages 51 - 62) 

 
 9. HMIE REPORT 2004-05 
  Report by Internal Audit Manager (Pages 63 - 64) 

 

Public Document Pack



 10. AUDIT SCOTLAND - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS STRATEGY 
  Report by Internal Audit Manager (Pages 65 - 112) 

 
 11. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL STATEMENT (IFCS) - DRAFT 
  Report by Internal Audit Manager (Pages 113 - 116) 

 
 12. RECENT EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORT 2005-2006 
  Report by Internal Audit Manager (Pages 117 - 128) 

 
 13. KPMG PROPOSALS FOR 2006-2007 
  Report by KPMG (Pages 129 - 130) 

 
 14. APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITORS 2006/07 TO 2010/11 
  Report by Head of Strategic Finance (Pages 131 - 132) 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
 Councillor Donald MacMillan Councillor John McAlpine
 Councillor Gary Mulvaney (Chair) Councillor Elaine Robertson
 Ian M M Ross Councillor John Tacchi
 Christopher Valentine 
 
 
 Contact: Katie McKenzie                  Tel. No. 01546 604511 
 



 
MINUTES of MEETING of AUDIT COMMITTEE held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, KILMORY, 

LOCHGILPHEAD  
on FRIDAY, 3 MARCH 2006  

 
 

Present: Councillor Gary Mulvaney (Chair) 
 

 Councillor Donald MacMillan Councillor Elaine Robertson 
 Christopher Valentine Ian Ross 

 
Attending: Charles Reppke, Head of Democratic Services and Governance 
 Bruce West, Head of Strategic Finance 
 Ian Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager 
 Moira Millar, Finance Manager – Corporate Accounting  
 Steve Keightley, KPMG 
 David Jamieson, Audit Scotland 
  
 
 1. APOLOGIES 

 
  Apologies were received from Councillors John Tacchi and John McAlpine. 

 
 2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
  There were no declarations of interest. 

 
 3. MINUTES 

 
  The minutes of the Audit Committee of 9 December 2005 were approved as a 

correct record subject to the change of name at point 2 of item 11 where it would 
be Councillor MacMillan who would act as an alternative on the Strathclyde 
Pension Fund Representative Forum, not Councillor Robertson. 
 

 4. PROGRESS REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2005-2006 
 

  The Committee were asked to give consideration to an interim progress report 
which had been prepared regarding the audit work performed by Internal Audit 
up to 24 February 2006. 
 
Decision 
 
To note the satisfactory progress made with the Annual Audit Plan for 2005-
2006. 
 
(Reference: Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 24 February 2006, 
submitted). 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



 5. ADAPTING TO THE FUTURE 
 

  A report detailing an action plan and implementation dates assigned to the 
recommendations contained within Audit Scotland’s report “Adapting to the 
Future” was considered. 
 
Decision 
 
It was agreed: 
 
1. To note the contents of the report 
2. To instruct Internal Audit to follow up the contents of the report and report 

back to a future meeting of the Audit Committee. 
 
(Reference: Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 6 February 2006, 
submitted). 
 

 6. MAINTAINING SCOTLAND'S ROADS 
 

  Audit Scotland issued a national report at the end of November 2004 entitled 
“Maintaining Scotland’s Roads”.  In response the Head of Roads and Amenity 
Services  prepared an action plan incorporating the report’s 9 recommendations 
and added a further 3 to reflect dependent issues.  The Committee considered a 
report which set out the current implementation position in respect of the action 
plans for 2005/06 and 2006/07. 
 
Decision 
 
It was agreed: 
 
1. To note the contents of the report 
2. To instruct Internal Audit to follow up the contents of the report 

 
(Reference: Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 14 February 2006, 
submitted). 
 

 7. ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2006-2007 
 

  The annual audit plan has been prepared in conjunction with the Council’s 
Internal Audit partners, KPMG.  The audit plan for 2006-2007 is year 2 of the 3 
year Strategic Audit Plan approved by the Audit Committee on 4 March 2005 
and ensure that Internal Audit resources are effectively planned and controlled.  
The Committee considered the plan which outlined in detail the areas which will 
be audited in 2006-2007. 
 
Decision 
 
To approve the annual audit plan for 2006-2007. 
 
(Reference: Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 14 February 2006, 
submitted). 
 

Page 2



 8. EXTERNAL AND INTERNAL AUDIT FOLLOW UP 2004-2005 
 

  A report setting out the results from a review undertaken by Internal Audit and 
recommendations due to be implemented by 31 December 2005 was 
considered. 
 
Decision 
 
It was agreed: 
 
1. To note the contents of the report 
2. To instruct Internal Audit to follow up the contents of the report 

 
(Reference: Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 22 February 2006, 
submitted). 
 

 9. ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 
 

  The Audit Committee, in 2005, requested regular updates on progress with the 
Asset Register and implementation of the asset management strategy/planning.  
A report identifying the main elements of asset management planning, its 
development and progress was considered. 
 
Decision 
 
To note the contents of the report and the progress made. 
 
(Reference: Report by Chief Asset Manager dated 23 January 2006, submitted). 
 

 10. HMIE ACTION PLAN UPDATE 
 

  The Education Service of Argyll and Bute Council was inspected during the 
period December 2004 to January 2005 by HM Inspectorate of Education 
(HMIe), as part of a 5 year national inspection programme of all local authorities 
in Scotland.  In June 2005 HMIe issued their inspection report.  This outlined key 
strengths plus areas requiring improvement.  The HMIE review found that the 
service demonstrated good and improving performance and indicated areas 
where further improvement could be made. 
 
Decision 
 
1. To note the contents of the report 
2. To instruct Internal Audit to follow up the contents of the report. 

 
(Reference: Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 6 February 2006, 
submitted). 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3



 11. STRATHCLYDE PENSION FUND 
 

  The Committee considered a report which describes the legislative basis and the 
mechanisms that are in place to reconcile Local Government Pension Scheme 
regulations with wider pension fund law. 
 
Decision 
 
To note the contents of the report. 
 
(Reference: Report by Head of Strategic Finance dated 3 March 2006, 
submitted). 
 

 12. ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2005-2006 
 

  The Committee considered a report which advised of the plans put in place for 
financial year end 31 March 2006 and the preparation of the Council’s annual 
accounts for 2005-06. 
 
Decision 
 
To note that plans are in place to prepare the Council’s annual accounts, 
consistent with the Accounting Code of Practice and to submit them to Council 
prior to 30 June 2006 in line with the Scottish Executive requirement. 
 
(Reference: Report by Head of Strategic Finance dated 24 February 2006, 
submitted). 
 

 13. UNIT LABOUR COSTS 
 

  The Head of Strategic Finance advised that he had, in looking at the issue raised 
by the Vice Chair, extended the remit to look at unit costs of services.  He 
advised that there were also other drivers encouraging the Council to look at this 
from the Best Value Audit, and the general Council budget position. 
 
It was intended to report to Strategic Management Team on a process looking at 
a pilot exercise on unit costs of activities. 
 
Decision 
 
To note that a report will be made to the Strategic Management Team in the 
near future setting out a way forward on this issue and that a progress report be 
submitted to the Audit Committee at its meeting in June. 
 
(Reference: Verbal report by Head of Strategic Finance). 
 

Page 4



  
ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 
STRATEGIC FINANCE 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE

9 JUNE 2006
    
  
ADAPTING TO THE FUTURE 2003 – 2004. 
  
  
  
1. SUMMARY 
    
  The Accounts Commission - Audit Scotland issued a national report towards the end of 

August 2004 entitled, “Adapting to the Future”. As there were no implementation dates 
assigned to the report recommendations, Internal Audit in conjunction with Community 
Services management prepared an Action Plan with agreed implementation dates.  

    
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
    
    2.1 The contents of this report are noted and are to be followed up by Internal Audit. 
    
3. DETAILS 
    
    3.1 In March 2006, Age Ltd issued a 58 page draft report with 24 appendices and 73 

recommendations entitled Equipment and Adaptations. The report covers Age Ltd 
review findings for the entire integrated service delivery by both the Council and 
NHS.  With regard to the specific feasibility study work assigned to AGE Ltd, 
which has included its responses as one of the appendices within the overall 
report.  

    
  3.2 Management are currently reviewing the report, and will prepare and approve an 

Action Plan to address the 73 recommendations by the 30th of September 2006. 
This will include the responses to the feasibility study. The draft report appendix is 
attached for your review in Appendix 1. In addition, the Head of Integrated Care 
has prepared a note for the Audit Committee this is attached in Appendix 2. 

    
4. CONCLUSIONS 
  
  Internal Audit will review progress as part of our follow up procedures in 2006 – 

2007.  
  
5. IMPLICATIONS 
  5.1 Policy: None 
        
  5.2 Financial: None 
        
  5.3 Personnel: None 
        
  5.4 Legal: None 
        
  5.5 Equal Opportunities: None 
 
For further information please contact Ian Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager (01546 604216) 
 
Ian Nisbet  Internal Audit Manager   29 May 2006  29Mayfinalreport29May 

Agenda Item 4Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

A
PP

EN
D

IX
 1

 
  

 
A

G
E 

LT
D

 
 

  
D

R
A

FT
 R

EP
O

R
T 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 
   

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

 
A

D
A

P
TI

N
G

 T
O

 T
H

E
 F

U
TU

R
E

 - 
FE

A
S

IB
IL

IT
Y

 S
TU

D
Y

 R
E

S
P

O
N

S
E

 2
00

5 
– 

20
06

 
  K

EY
 to

 A
B

B
R

EV
IA

TI
O

N
S:

 
O

O
H

: O
ut

 o
f H

ou
rs

; 
TH

U
S

: S
up

po
rt 

S
of

tw
ar

e;
 

E
LM

S
11

: S
up

po
rt 

S
of

tw
ar

e;
 

TI
A

R
A

: J
oi

nt
 IT

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t b
et

w
ee

n 
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
N

H
S

; 
C

E
S

: C
om

m
un

ity
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t s
er

vi
ce

s;
 

K
P

I: 
K

ey
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

; 
M

I: 
M

an
ag

em
en

t i
nf

or
m

at
io

n:
 a

nd
  

H
IG

’s
; H

ou
si

ng
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t G
ra

nt
. 

  

Page 7



A
R

G
Y

LL
 A

N
D

 B
U

TE
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 A
PP

EN
D

IX
 1

 
A

D
A

PT
IN

G
 T

O
 T

H
E 

FU
TU

R
E 

- F
EA

SI
B

IL
IT

Y
 S

TU
D

Y
 R

ES
PO

N
SE

 2
00

5 
– 

20
06

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

R
ep

or
t –

 A
ct

io
n 

U
pd

at
e:

 A
da

pt
in

g 
to

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
 

N
o 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 
O

ff
ic

er
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s  

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

R
es

po
ns

e 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
 

Pr
og

re
ss

 a
s 

re
po

rt
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

9th
of

 
D

ec
em

be
r 

 
20

05
. 

C
ur

re
nt

 
up

da
te

 
fr

om
 

A
G

E
 L

td
. 

 
Pe

rs
on

-c
en

tr
ed

 se
rv

ic
es

 
C

ou
nc

ils
 a

nd
 N

H
S 

bo
di

es
 sh

ou
ld

 
 

 
 

 

1 
a/

 Jo
in

tly
 p

ub
lis

h 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 c
om

m
un

ity
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t a
nd

 
ad

ap
ta

tio
ns

, c
ov

er
in

g:
 

• 
W

ha
t h

el
p 

is
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

 

• 
W

ho
 to

 c
on

ta
ct

 

• 
El

ig
ib

ili
ty

 c
rit

er
ia

 

• 
W

ho
 n

ee
ds

 to
 p

ay
 a

nd
 h

ow
 

m
uc

h 

• 
W

ha
t s

er
vi

ce
 p

eo
pl

e 
ca

n 
ex

pe
ct

, u
si

ng
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
su

ch
 

as
 lo

ca
l t

ar
ge

ts
 fo

r r
es

po
ns

e 
tim

es
. 

Ji
m

 R
ob

b 
H

ea
d 

of
 

In
te

gr
at

ed
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 

A
 jo

in
t m

ee
tin

g 
w

as
 h

el
d 

w
ith

 O
cc

up
at

io
na

l 
Th

er
ap

y 
st

af
f o

n 
M

ay
 1

1th
 

to
 re

-w
rit

e 
pr

ac
tic

e 
gu

id
an

ce
 a

nd
 p

ro
du

ce
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

le
af

le
ts

 
  

C
om

pl
et

e.
  

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

le
af

le
ts

 h
av

e 
no

w
 

be
en

 p
ro

du
ce

d,
 a

nd
 a

ls
o 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 a
re

 in
 p

la
ce

 fo
r 

th
e 

Se
ns

or
y 

Im
pa

irm
en

t T
ea

m
 

to
 tr

an
sc

rib
e 

on
 d

em
an

d 
in

to
 

la
rg

e 
pr

in
t a

nd
 o

n 
to

 ta
pe

. 

N
o 

fu
rth

er
 c

om
m

en
t. 

 
b/

Th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

in
 1

 a
bo

ve
 sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

pu
bl

is
he

d 
in

 d
iff

er
en

t f
or

m
at

s a
nd

 in
 o

th
er

 
la

ng
ua

ge
s a

s n
ee

de
d 

by
 lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
iti

es
 

Ji
m

 R
ob

b 
H

ea
d 

of
 

In
te

gr
at

ed
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ov

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
pr

od
uc

ed
 in

 la
rg

e 
pr

in
t 

an
d 

au
di

o 
ta

pe
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 
la

ng
ua

ge
s a

s r
eq

ui
re

d.
 

C
om

pl
et

e.
 

Le
af

le
ts

 h
av

e 
no

w
 b

ee
n 

pr
od

uc
ed

 a
nd

 a
ls

o 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 a

re
 in

 p
la

ce
 fo

r 
th

e 
Se

ns
or

y 
Im

pa
irm

en
t T

ea
m

 
to

 tr
an

sc
rib

e 
on

 d
em

an
d 

in
to

 
la

rg
e 

pr
in

t a
nd

 o
n 

to
 ta

pe
. 

N
o 

fu
rth

er
 c

om
m

en
t. 

Page 8



A
R

G
Y

LL
 A

N
D

 B
U

TE
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 A
PP

EN
D

IX
 1

 
A

D
A

PT
IN

G
 T

O
 T

H
E 

FU
TU

R
E 

- F
EA

SI
B

IL
IT

Y
 S

TU
D

Y
 R

ES
PO

N
SE

 2
00

5 
– 

20
06

 
 

 
 

N
o 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 
O

ff
ic

er
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s  

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

R
es

po
ns

e 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
 

Pr
og

re
ss

 a
s 

re
po

rt
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

9th
of

 
D

ec
em

be
r 

 
20

05
. 

C
ur

re
nt

 
up

da
te

 
fr

om
 

A
G

E
 L

td
. 

2 
Th

er
e 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
a 

re
vi

ew
 re

ga
rd

in
g 

th
e 

le
ve

l o
f d

em
an

d 
fo

r o
ut

-o
f-

ho
ur

s s
er

vi
ce

s. 
Ji

m
 R

ob
b 

H
ea

d 
of

 
In

te
gr

at
ed

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

O
ve

ra
ll 

se
rv

ic
e 

re
qu

ire
s t

o 
be

 re
vi

ew
ed

. F
ea

si
bi

lit
y 

st
ud

y 
pr

op
os

ed
 a

nd
 b

ei
ng

 
pr

es
en

te
d 

at
 n

ex
t J

oi
nt

 
St

ra
te

gy
 m

ee
tin

g.
 O

ut
 o

f 
ho

ur
s s

er
vi

ce
s w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ex
am

in
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
st

ud
y.

 

O
n 

th
e 

15
th

 o
f N

ov
em

be
r 

20
05

 th
is

 w
as

 in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 st

ud
y 

to
 b

e 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
 A

G
E

 L
td

. 

 

A
ll 

da
ta

 b
ei

ng
 c

ap
tu

re
d 

an
d/

or
 

ex
tra

po
la

te
d 

to
 c

ov
er

 a
re

as
 

w
he

re
 n

o 
da

ta
 e

xi
st

s. 

In
di

ca
tio

ns
 a

re
 th

at
 n

o 
da

ta
 is

 in
 

ex
is

te
nc

e 
co

ve
rin

g 
th

e 
us

e 
of

  
an

y 
O

O
H

 se
rv

ic
e 

3 
En

su
re

 th
at

 u
se

rs
 h

av
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 

di
re

ct
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 th
ei

r a
va

ila
bi

lit
y 

fo
r 

co
m

m
un

ity
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t a
nd

 a
da

pt
at

io
ns

 

 
A

 d
ec

is
io

n 
ha

s b
ee

n 
ta

ke
n 

no
t t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
di

re
ct

 
pa

ym
en

ts
 fo

r t
hi

s s
er

vi
ce

 

N
ot

 A
pp

lic
ab

le
 

N
o 

fu
rth

er
 c

om
m

en
t. 

4 
A

ss
es

s w
he

th
er

 se
lf-

as
se

ss
m

en
t a

nd
 se

lf 
se

le
ct

io
n 

co
ul

d 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

of
 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
lo

w
 c

os
t, 

lo
w

 ri
sk

 it
em

s 

 
A

 se
lf-

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

pr
oc

es
s h

as
 b

ee
n 

pu
t i

nt
o 

pl
ac

e 
.It

 is
 in

 it
s e

ar
ly

 
st

ag
es

 a
nd

 w
ill

 n
o 

do
ub

t 
be

 m
od

ifi
ed

 a
s s

ta
ff

 a
nd

 
cl

ie
nt

s b
ec

om
e 

fa
m

ili
ar

 
w

ith
 it

. 

            

Sy
st

em
 in

 p
la

ce
 b

ut
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 e

vo
lv

e 
fu

rth
er

 
C

rit
er

ia
 e

xa
m

pl
es

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 a
s p

ar
t o

f p
ro

je
ct

. 

 Se
lf 

as
se

ss
m

en
t t

oo
ls

 fr
om

 o
th

er
 

ar
ea

s h
av

e 
be

en
 p

ro
vi

de
d.

 

Page 9



A
R

G
Y

LL
 A

N
D

 B
U

TE
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 A
PP

EN
D

IX
 1

 
A

D
A

PT
IN

G
 T

O
 T

H
E 

FU
TU

R
E 

- F
EA

SI
B

IL
IT

Y
 S

TU
D

Y
 R

ES
PO

N
SE

 2
00

5 
– 

20
06

 
 

 
 

N
o 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 
O

ff
ic

er
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s  

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

R
es

po
ns

e 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
 

Pr
og

re
ss

 a
s 

re
po

rt
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

9th
of

 
D

ec
em

be
r 

 
20

05
. 

C
ur

re
nt

 
up

da
te

 
fr

om
 

A
G

E
 L

td
. 

 
H

ow
 a

re
 se

rv
ic

es
 o

rg
an

is
ed

 

C
ou

nc
ils

 a
nd

 N
H

S 
bo

di
es

 sh
ou

ld
 

 
 

 
 

5 
W

or
k 

to
w

ar
ds

 jo
in

t i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
sy

st
em

s 
th

at
 p

ro
vi

de
 g

oo
d 

m
an

ag
em

en
t i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

on
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t a

nd
 

ad
ap

ta
tio

n 
se

rv
ic

es
 w

ith
in

 th
ei

r p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
ar

ea
.  

Ji
m

 R
ob

b 
H

ea
d 

of
 

In
te

gr
at

ed
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 

R
e-

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 
C

ar
ef

irs
t s

ho
ul

d 
pr

ov
id

e 
m

or
e 

ro
bu

st
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n.
 

IT
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 w
ill

 b
e 

ex
am

in
ed

 w
ith

in
 a

 
fe

as
ib

ili
ty

 st
ud

y 
as

 to
 b

es
t 

jo
in

t s
ys

te
m

s. 

O
n 

th
e 

15
th

 o
f N

ov
em

be
r 

20
05

 th
is

 w
as

 in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 st

ud
y 

to
 b

e 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
 A

G
E

 L
td

 

 

M
ee

tin
gs

 h
av

e 
ta

ke
n 

pl
ac

e 
w

ith
 

le
ad

s o
n 

IT
 sy

st
em

s. 

In
iti

al
 fi

nd
in

gs
 a

re
: C

ar
e 

Fi
rs

t 
up

gr
ad

in
g 

to
 5

.4
 E

X
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t 
m

od
ul

e 
TH

U
S 

an
y 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
su

pp
or

t s
of

tw
ar

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
– 

EL
M

SI
I b

ei
ng

 u
se

d 
in

 H
/b

ur
gh

 a
nd

 O
ba

n.
 H

ea
lth

 
pa

rtn
er

s a
re

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

TI
A

R
A

. 

A
 so

lu
tio

n 
w

he
re

by
 c

lin
ic

al
 a

nd
 

lo
gi

st
ic

al
/P

I r
ep

or
tin

g 
sy

st
em

s 
ca

n 
ta

lk
 to

 e
ac

h 
ot

he
r i

s 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d.

 

A
n 

ou
tp

ut
 b

as
ed

 IT
 sp

ec
ifi

ca
tio

n 
ha

s b
ee

n 
in

cl
ud

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

re
po

rt 

IT
 so

lu
tio

ns
 sh

ou
ld

 a
ls

o 
lin

k 
in

 
w

ith
 e

-p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t i
ni

tia
tiv

es
. 

Page 10



A
R

G
Y

LL
 A

N
D

 B
U

TE
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 A
PP

EN
D

IX
 1

 
A

D
A

PT
IN

G
 T

O
 T

H
E 

FU
TU

R
E 

- F
EA

SI
B

IL
IT

Y
 S

TU
D

Y
 R

ES
PO

N
SE

 2
00

5 
– 

20
06

 
 

 
 

N
o 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 
O

ff
ic

er
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s  

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

R
es

po
ns

e 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
 

Pr
og

re
ss

 a
s 

re
po

rt
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

9th
of

 
D

ec
em

be
r 

 
20

05
. 

C
ur

re
nt

 
up

da
te

 
fr

om
 

A
G

E
 L

td
. 

6 
C

la
rif

y 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 fo

r t
he

 
as

se
ss

m
en

t a
nd

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f c
om

m
un

ity
 

eq
ui

pm
en

t a
nd

 a
da

pt
at

io
ns

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 a

ll 
re

le
va

nt
 p

ar
tn

er
s a

re
 in

vo
lv

ed
; a

nd
 

fo
rm

al
is

e 
th

es
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 in
 a

gr
ee

d 
po

lic
ie

s a
nd

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s. 

Ji
m

 R
ob

b 
H

ea
d 

of
 

In
te

gr
at

ed
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 

Fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 st

ud
y 

w
ill

 
id

en
tif

y 
re

qu
ire

d 
po

lic
ie

s 
an

d 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

. 

O
n 

th
e 

15
th

 o
f N

ov
em

be
r 

20
05

 th
is

 w
as

 in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 st

ud
y 

to
 b

e 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
 A

G
E

 L
td

. 

 

Fo
llo

w
in

g 
w

id
es

pr
ea

d 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
– 

It 
is

 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

th
at

 a
 k

ey
 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

is
 th

at
  A

LL
 

cl
in

ic
al

 g
ro

up
s a

re
 to

 b
e 

pa
rt 

of
 

ne
w

 in
te

gr
at

ed
 se

rv
ic

e 
[C

ES
](

se
rv

ic
e 

le
ad

s h
av

e 
ag

re
ed

 
in

 p
rin

ci
pl

e)
 –

 th
is

 su
pp

or
te

d 
w

ith
 a

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

an
d 

br
oa

de
ni

ng
 o

f a
 “

w
ho

 c
an

 
pr

es
cr

ib
e 

w
ha

t”
 te

m
pl

at
e 

(f
or

 
us

e 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

w
ho

le
 a

re
a)

 –
 

su
pp

or
te

d 
w

ith
 o

n 
go

in
g 

ar
ea

-
w

id
e 

tra
in

in
g.

 T
em

pl
at

es
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 w
ith

in
 re

po
rt.

 P
le

as
e 

re
fe

r t
o 

R
ep

or
t a

nd
 a

pp
en

di
ce

s 

7 
En

su
re

 a
ll 

re
le

va
nt

 st
af

f a
cr

os
s t

he
 

re
sp

ec
tiv

e 
pa

rtn
er

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 is

 a
w

ar
e 

of
 

th
e 

ag
re

ed
 p

ol
ic

ie
s a

nd
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s. 

Ji
m

 R
ob

b 
H

ea
d 

of
 

In
te

gr
at

ed
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 fo
r s

ta
ff

 w
ou

ld
 

be
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t w
he

n 
po

lic
ie

s a
nd

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

ar
e 

in
 p

la
ce

. 

O
n 

th
e 

15
th

 o
f N

ov
em

be
r 

20
05

 th
is

 w
as

 in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 st

ud
y 

to
 b

e 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
 A

G
E

 L
td

. 

 

Li
nk

ed
 to

 c
om

m
en

t 6
 a

bo
ve

 –
 

bu
t f

ur
th

er
 su

pp
or

te
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 a
 c

om
m

on
 to

 a
ll 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
n 

– 
ag

ai
ns

t 
w

hi
ch

 a
 C

at
al

og
ue

 o
f G

oo
ds

 a
nd

 
Se

rv
ic

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 a

ll 
pr

ac
tit

io
ne

r g
ro

up
s –

 su
gg

es
te

d 
co

nt
en

ts
 is

 in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 n

ew
 C

ES
 sp

ec
ifi

ca
tio

n 
at

ta
ch

ed
 to

 th
e 

re
po

rt 

Page 11



A
R

G
Y

LL
 A

N
D

 B
U

TE
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 A
PP

EN
D

IX
 1

 
A

D
A

PT
IN

G
 T

O
 T

H
E 

FU
TU

R
E 

- F
EA

SI
B

IL
IT

Y
 S

TU
D

Y
 R

ES
PO

N
SE

 2
00

5 
– 

20
06

 
 

 
 

N
o 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 
O

ff
ic

er
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s  

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

R
es

po
ns

e 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
 

Pr
og

re
ss

 a
s 

re
po

rt
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

9th
of

 
D

ec
em

be
r 

 
20

05
. 

C
ur

re
nt

 
up

da
te

 
fr

om
 

A
G

E
 L

td
. 

8 
En

su
re

 th
at

 c
om

m
un

ity
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t a
nd

 
ad

ap
ta

tio
n 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
re

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 a

s p
ar

t o
f 

th
ei

r o
ve

ra
ll 

co
m

m
un

ity
 c

ar
e 

st
ra

te
gy

. 

Ji
m

 R
ob

b 
H

ea
d 

of
 

In
te

gr
at

ed
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 

C
om

m
un

ity
 c

ar
e 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t 
an

d 
ad

ap
ta

tio
ns

 se
rv

ic
es

 
ar

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 a

s p
ar

t o
f t

he
 

fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 st

ud
y.

 

O
n 

th
e 

15
th

 o
f N

ov
em

be
r 

20
05

 th
is

 w
as

 in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 st

ud
y 

to
 b

e 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
 A

G
E

 L
td

. 

 

R
ef

er
 to

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
Pr

es
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
co

nf
ig

ur
at

io
n 

op
tio

ns
 –

 
ap

pe
nd

ed
 to

 c
or

e 
re

po
rt.

 

C
om

m
on

 to
 a

re
a 

[p
os

s. 
in

c 
ne

ig
hb

ou
rin

g 
ar

ea
s]

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t 

an
d 

m
in

or
 a

da
pt

at
io

ns
 se

rv
ic

e 
st

an
da

rd
/s

pe
ci

fic
at

io
n 

be
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

– 
dr

af
t f

or
 

di
sc

us
si

on
s a

nd
/o

r a
m

en
dm

en
t 

is
 a

pp
en

de
d 

to
 th

e 
re

po
rt 

M
ul

ti 
ar

ea
/a

ge
nc

y/
se

rv
ic

e 
co

nf
ig

ur
at

io
n(

s)
 is

 (a
re

) b
ei

ng
 

co
ns

id
er

ed
. 

9 
D

ev
el

op
 p

ro
to

co
ls

, w
hi

ch
 m

ax
im

is
e 

th
e 

ab
ili

ty
 o

f s
ta

ff
 fr

om
 d

iff
er

en
t p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 to
 a

cc
es

s e
qu

ip
m

en
t a

nd
 

ad
ap

ta
tio

ns
 a

nd
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

w
ai

tin
g 

tim
e 

fo
r 

us
er

s. 

 

Ji
m

 R
ob

b 
H

ea
d 

of
 

In
te

gr
at

ed
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 

Pr
ot

oc
ol

s w
ou

ld
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
fe

as
ib

ili
ty

 st
ud

y.
 

O
n 

th
e 

15
th

 o
f N

ov
em

be
r 

20
05

 th
is

 w
as

 in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 st

ud
y 

to
 b

e 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
 A

G
E

 L
td

. 

 

C
ov

er
ed

 in
 c

om
m

en
t a

ga
in

st
 

po
in

t 7
 a

nd
 8

 a
bo

ve
 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 te

m
pl

at
es

 c
ov

er
in

g 
SA

P 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 a
s p

ar
t 

of
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t p
ro

ce
ss

 

 A
 T

ru
st

ed
 A

ss
es

so
r t

oo
l h

as
 a

ls
o 

be
en

 p
ro

po
se

d 
– 

th
is

 a
pp

en
de

d 
to

 th
e 

re
po

rt 

 A
dd

iti
on

al
ly

, i
t i

s r
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
th

at
 th

e 
C

ES
 h

as
 se

t 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 e

xp
ec

ta
tio

ns
 a

nd
 

K
PI

s –
 th

es
e 

co
ve

re
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 S

er
vi

ce
 S

pe
ci

fic
at

io
n 

ap
pe

nd
ed

 to
 th

e 
re

po
rt 

Page 12



A
R

G
Y

LL
 A

N
D

 B
U

TE
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 A
PP

EN
D

IX
 1

 
A

D
A

PT
IN

G
 T

O
 T

H
E 

FU
TU

R
E 

- F
EA

SI
B

IL
IT

Y
 S

TU
D

Y
 R

ES
PO

N
SE

 2
00

5 
– 

20
06

 
 

 
 

N
o 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 
O

ff
ic

er
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s  

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

R
es

po
ns

e 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
 

Pr
og

re
ss

 a
s 

re
po

rt
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

9th
of

 
D

ec
em

be
r 

 
20

05
. 

C
ur

re
nt

 
up

da
te

 
fr

om
 

A
G

E
 L

td
. 

10
 

D
ev

el
op

 jo
in

t t
ra

in
in

g 
pl

an
s f

or
 a

ll 
st

af
f 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 a

ss
es

si
ng

 th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r, 

an
d 

de
m

on
st

ra
tin

g 
,e

qu
ip

m
en

t a
nd

 a
da

pt
at

io
ns

 

Ji
m

 R
ob

b 
H

ea
d 

of
 

In
te

gr
at

ed
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 

Th
e 

fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 st

ud
y 

w
ill

 
ad

vi
se

 o
n 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f t
ra

in
in

g 
pl

an
s 

O
n 

th
e 

15
th

 o
f N

ov
em

be
r 

20
05

 th
is

 w
as

 in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 st

ud
y 

to
 b

e 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
 A

G
E

 L
td

. 

        

C
ov

er
ed

 in
 c

om
m

en
t a

ga
in

st
 

po
in

t 6
 a

bo
ve

. 

 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 M

on
ito

ri
ng

 

C
ou

nc
ils

 a
nd

 N
H

S 
bo

di
es

 sh
ou

ld
 

 
 

 
 

11
 

Jo
in

tly
 re

vi
ew

 b
ud

ge
ts

 fo
r c

om
m

un
ity

 
eq

ui
pm

en
t a

nd
 a

da
pt

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 H

IG
’s

 to
 

en
su

re
 th

at
 th

ey
 a

re
 se

t a
t a

 re
al

is
tic

 le
ve

l t
o 

m
ee

t n
ee

d.
 

Ji
m

 R
ob

b 
H

ea
d 

of
 

In
te

gr
at

ed
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 

C
ur

re
nt

 B
ud

ge
ts

 a
re

 
re

gu
la

rly
 re

vi
ew

ed
 

th
ro

ug
h 

Jo
in

t S
tra

te
gy

 
gr

ou
p 

bu
t m

or
e 

w
or

k 
is

 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
re

al
is

tic
 b

ud
ge

ts
. 

R
eg

ul
ar

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
by

 e
ac

h 
pa

rtn
er

 h
as

 c
om

m
en

ce
d.

 O
n 

th
e 

15
th

 o
f N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
5 

th
is

 w
as

 in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
fe

as
ib

ili
ty

 st
ud

y 
to

 b
e 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
by

 A
G

E
 L

td
. 

D
at

a 
in

cl
ud

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

co
re

 
re

po
rt 

an
d 

ap
pe

nd
ic

es
, h

ow
ev

er
, 

fin
di

ng
s s

ug
ge

st
 th

at
 b

ud
ge

ts
 a

re
 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

 b
el

ow
 th

e 
le

ve
ls

 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 m
ee

t d
em

an
d 

– 
th

is
 

be
in

g 
co

nf
irm

ed
 b

y 
hi

st
or

ic
 a

nd
 

co
m

pa
ra

tiv
e 

da
ta

 so
ur

ce
s. 

B
ud

ge
t u

pl
ift

 in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 

de
m

an
d 

is
 n

ee
de

d.
 

Page 13



A
R

G
Y

LL
 A

N
D

 B
U

TE
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 A
PP

EN
D

IX
 1

 
A

D
A

PT
IN

G
 T

O
 T

H
E 

FU
TU

R
E 

- F
EA

SI
B

IL
IT

Y
 S

TU
D

Y
 R

ES
PO

N
SE

 2
00

5 
– 

20
06

 
 

 
 

N
o 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 
O

ff
ic

er
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s  

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

R
es

po
ns

e 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
 

Pr
og

re
ss

 a
s 

re
po

rt
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

9th
of

 
D

ec
em

be
r 

 
20

05
. 

C
ur

re
nt

 
up

da
te

 
fr

om
 

A
G

E
 L

td
. 

12
 

M
on

ito
r t

he
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

n 
eq

ui
pm

en
t a

nd
 

ad
ap

ta
tio

n 
se

rv
ic

es
 b

y 
co

lle
ct

in
g 

an
d 

us
in

g 
ro

bu
st

 m
an

ag
em

en
t i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

on
: 

• 
C

os
t 

• 
A

ct
iv

ity
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 w
ai

tin
g 

tim
es

 

• 
Q

ua
lit

y 
of

 se
rv

ic
es

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 

us
er

s’
 v

ie
w

s. 

Ji
m

 R
ob

b  
H

ea
d 

of
 

In
te

gr
at

ed
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 

R
ob

us
t s

ys
te

m
s f

or
 

co
lle

ct
in

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

fr
om

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 o

f 
fe

as
ib

ili
ty

 st
ud

y.
 

O
n 

th
e 

15
th

 o
f N

ov
em

be
r 

20
05

 th
is

 w
as

 in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 st

ud
y 

to
 b

e 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
 A

G
E

 L
td

. 

 

R
ef

er
 to

 c
or

e 
re

po
rt 

 

13
 

R
ec

or
d 

an
d 

m
on

ito
r a

ct
iv

ity
 a

nd
 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 th

ird
 

pa
rti

es
, s

uc
h 

as
 C

ar
e 

an
d 

R
ep

ai
r, 

R
SL

s 
an

d 
vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

, a
s c

ha
rg

es
 

in
 th

es
e 

ar
ea

s a
re

 li
ke

ly
 to

 im
pa

ct
 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

 o
n 

fu
tu

re
 se

rv
ic

e 
de

liv
er

y 
an

d 
re

so
ur

ci
ng

. 

Ji
m

 R
ob

b 
H

ea
d 

of
 

In
te

gr
at

ed
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 

Th
e 

fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 st

ud
y 

w
ill

 
ad

vi
se

 o
n 

th
e 

in
tro

du
ct

io
n 

of
 a

 c
ha

rg
e 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
sy

st
em

 to
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

is
 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n.

 

O
n 

th
e 

15
th

 o
f N

ov
em

be
r 

20
05

 th
is

 w
as

 in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 st

ud
y 

to
 b

e 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
 A

G
E

 L
td

. 

 

W
he

re
 d

at
a 

is
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

or
 h

as
 

be
en

 c
ap

tu
re

d/
as

ce
rta

in
ed

 –
 th

is
 

is
 in

cl
ud

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

re
po

rt 

14
 

D
ev

el
op

 jo
in

t p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
di

ca
to

rs
 so

 
th

at
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
ca

n 
be

 e
va

lu
at

ed
 a

cr
os

s a
 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 a

re
a.

 

Ji
m

 R
ob

b 
H

ea
d 

of
 

In
te

gr
at

ed
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 

Fo
llo

w
in

g 
fe

as
ib

ili
ty

 
st

ud
y-

 jo
in

t p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 w
ill

 b
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d.
 

O
n 

th
e 

15
th

 o
f N

ov
em

be
r 

20
05

 th
is

 w
as

 in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 st

ud
y 

to
 b

e 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
 A

G
E

 L
td

. 

K
PI

s h
av

e 
be

en
 p

ro
po

se
d 

w
ith

in
 

IT
 sp

ec
ifi

ca
tio

n 
ap

pe
nd

ix
 B

 a
nd

 
w

ith
in

 e
xa

m
pl

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
sp

ec
ifi

ca
tio

n 
– 

bo
th

 a
pp

en
de

d 
to

 
th

e 
re

po
rt.

 

A
dd

iti
on

al
ly

 th
e 

H
ea

lth
 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 b
e 

al
so

 
pr

op
os

in
g 

in
di

ca
to

rs
 fo

r 
eq

ui
pm

en
t a

nd
 a

da
pt

at
io

ns
 in

 
Fe

b/
M

ar
 0

6 

15
 

O
nc

e 
tre

nd
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
is

 a
va

ila
bl

e,
 

be
nc

hm
ar

k 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s u
si

ng
 

lik
e-

fo
r-

lik
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 m
ea

su
re

s t
o 

dr
iv

e 
fo

rw
ar

d 
co

nt
in

uo
us

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t. 

Ji
m

 R
ob

b 
H

ea
d 

of
 

In
te

gr
at

ed
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 

B
en

ch
m

ar
ki

ng
 w

ith
 o

th
er

 
si

m
ila

r l
oc

al
 a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
w

ill
 ta

ke
 p

la
ce

 o
nc

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
av

ai
la

bl
e.

 

O
n 

th
e 

15
th

 o
f N

ov
em

be
r 

20
05

 th
is

 w
as

 in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 st

ud
y 

to
 b

e 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
 A

G
E

 L
td

. 

 

C
ov

er
ed

 in
 c

om
m

en
t a

ga
in

st
 

po
in

t 1
2 

ab
ov

e 

Page 14



A
R

G
Y

LL
 A

N
D

 B
U

TE
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 A
PP

EN
D

IX
 1

 
A

D
A

PT
IN

G
 T

O
 T

H
E 

FU
TU

R
E 

- F
EA

SI
B

IL
IT

Y
 S

TU
D

Y
 R

ES
PO

N
SE

 2
00

5 
– 

20
06

 
 

 
 

N
o 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 
O

ff
ic

er
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s  

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

R
es

po
ns

e 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
 

Pr
og

re
ss

 a
s 

re
po

rt
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

9th
of

 
D

ec
em

be
r 

 
20

05
. 

C
ur

re
nt

 
up

da
te

 
fr

om
 

A
G

E
 L

td
. 

16
 

W
or

k 
to

ge
th

er
 to

 a
ss

es
s n

ee
d 

fo
r m

aj
or

 
ad

ap
ta

tio
ns

 in
 th

e 
fu

tu
re

. 
Ji

m
 R

ob
b 

H
ea

d 
of

 
In

te
gr

at
ed

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

  

Th
e 

fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 st

ud
y 

w
ill

 
re

co
m

m
en

d 
ho

w
 to

 
de

ve
lo

p 
cl

os
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 
lin

ks
 w

ith
 H

ou
si

ng
, R

SL
s, 

C
ar

e 
&

 R
ep

ai
r t

o 
m

on
ito

r 
tre

nd
s t

o 
as

si
st

 in
 

as
se

ss
in

g 
fo

r f
ut

ur
e 

ad
ap

ta
tio

ns
. 

     

O
n 

th
e 

15
th

 o
f N

ov
em

be
r 

20
05

 th
is

 w
as

 in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 st

ud
y 

to
 b

e 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
 A

G
E

 L
td

. 

       

 B
as

ed
 o

n 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
re

ce
iv

ed
 

th
us

 fa
r –

 it
 is

 u
nl

ik
el

y 
th

at
 

m
aj

or
 a

da
pt

at
io

ns
 se

rv
ic

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
as

 to
 b

e 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

re
m

it 
of

 th
e 

eq
ui

pm
en

t a
nd

 m
in

or
 

ad
ap

ta
tio

ns
 p

ro
vi

de
r(

s)
 –

 
ho

w
ev

er
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tio
n 

of
 sa

m
e 

“m
ig

ht
” 

be
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
– 

th
is

 fo
r 

fu
rth

er
 d

is
cu

ss
io

n 
lo

ca
lly

 

 Pl
ea

se
 re

fe
r t

o 
m

ai
n 

re
po

rt 

 
M

an
ag

in
g 

R
is

k 
 

C
ou

nc
ils

 a
nd

 N
H

S 
bo

di
es

 sh
ou

ld
 

 
 

 
 

17
 

En
su

re
 st

oc
k 

co
nt

ro
l s

ys
te

m
s a

re
 in

 
pl

ac
e 

to
 tr

ac
k 

an
d 

lo
ca

te
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t. 
Ji

m
 R

ob
b 

H
ea

d 
of

 
In

te
gr

at
ed

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

R
ob

us
t s

ys
te

m
s f

or
 

co
nt

ro
lli

ng
 st

oc
k 

w
ill

 b
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
by

 fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 

st
ud

y.
 

O
n 

th
e 

15
th

 o
f N

ov
em

be
r 

20
05

 th
is

 w
as

 in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 st

ud
y 

to
 b

e 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
 A

G
E

 L
td

. 

 

A
cc

ou
nt

ed
 w

ith
in

 u
lti

m
at

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
co

nf
ig

ur
at

io
n 

in
c 

de
fin

ed
 a

re
as

 o
f r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
ty

 –
 

th
is

 w
he

re
 p

os
si

bl
e 

su
pp

or
te

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
IT

 sy
st

em
s 

Is
su

es
 re

f p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

fr
om

 c
ro

ss
 

in
fe

ct
io

n 
al

so
 a

cc
ou

nt
ed

 fo
r 

 Pr
op

os
ed

 st
oc

k 
co

nt
ro

l p
ro

to
co

l 
ap

pe
nd

ed
 to

 re
po

rt 

Page 15



A
R

G
Y

LL
 A

N
D

 B
U

TE
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 A
PP

EN
D

IX
 1

 
A

D
A

PT
IN

G
 T

O
 T

H
E 

FU
TU

R
E 

- F
EA

SI
B

IL
IT

Y
 S

TU
D

Y
 R

ES
PO

N
SE

 2
00

5 
– 

20
06

 
 

 
 

N
o 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 
O

ff
ic

er
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s  

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

R
es

po
ns

e 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
 

Pr
og

re
ss

 a
s 

re
po

rt
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

9th
of

 
D

ec
em

be
r 

 
20

05
. 

C
ur

re
nt

 
up

da
te

 
fr

om
 

A
G

E
 L

td
. 

18
  

En
su

re
 th

at
 w

rit
te

n 
in

st
ru

ct
io

ns
 o

n 
us

in
g 

eq
ui

pm
en

t a
nd

 a
da

pt
at

io
ns

 a
re

 a
lw

ay
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 fo
r u

se
rs

 a
nd

 c
ar

er
s, 

an
d 

tra
in

ed
 

st
af

f a
lw

ay
s d

em
on

st
ra

te
 th

ei
r u

se
. 

Ji
m

 R
ob

b 
H

ea
d 

of
 

In
te

gr
at

ed
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 

. T
hi

s e
xe

rc
is

e 
ha

s b
ee

n 
co

m
m

en
ce

d 
at

 th
e 

O
ba

n 
St

or
e 

an
d 

w
ill

 e
ve

nt
ua

lly
 

be
 ro

lle
d 

ou
t t

o 
ot

he
r 

ar
ea

s 

O
n 

th
e 

15
th

 o
f N

ov
em

be
r 

20
05

 th
is

 w
as

 in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 st

ud
y 

to
 b

e 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
 A

G
E

 L
td

. 

 

C
ov

er
ed

 in
 c

om
m

en
t a

ga
in

st
 

po
in

t 1
7 

19
 

C
on

si
de

r h
ow

 b
es

t t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

ad
vi

ce
 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t t

o 
pe

op
le

 in
 p

riv
at

e 
ho

us
in

g 
m

ar
ke

t w
ho

 in
st

al
l m

aj
or

 
ad

ap
ta

tio
ns

.  

Ji
m

 R
ob

b 
H

ea
d 

of
 

In
te

gr
at

ed
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 

Th
is

 a
dv

ic
e 

ha
s a

lw
ay

s 
be

en
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 th

e 
pr

iv
at

e 
ho

us
in

g 
m

ar
ke

r 
bu

t t
he

re
 is

 ro
om

 fo
r 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

O
n 

th
e 

15
th

 o
f N

ov
em

be
r 

20
05

 th
is

 w
as

 in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 st

ud
y 

to
 b

e 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
 A

G
E

 L
td

. 

 

St
ill

 u
nd

er
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

20
 

A
gr

ee
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
t f

or
m

al
 p

ol
ic

ie
s a

nd
 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 th

at
 in

cl
ud

e:
 

• 
R

ec
al

l o
f f

au
lty

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t 

• 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 a

nd
 re

pa
ir 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

  

• 
R

ec
yc

lin
g,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
in

fe
ct

io
n 

co
nt

ro
l p

ro
ce

du
re

s 

• 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

.  

Ji
m

 R
ob

b 
H

ea
d 

of
 

In
te

gr
at

ed
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 

R
ob

us
t s

ys
te

m
s f

or
 

m
an

ag
in

g 
eq

ui
pm

en
t w

ill
 

be
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

by
 fe

as
ib

ili
ty

 
st

ud
y.

 

O
n 

th
e 

15
th

 o
f N

ov
em

be
r 

20
05

 th
is

 w
as

 in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 st

ud
y 

to
 b

e 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
 A

G
E

 L
td

. 

 

A
ll 

th
es

e 
to

pi
cs

, a
nd

 m
or

e,
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
cc

ou
nt

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

fin
al

 
pr

op
os

ed
 se

rv
ic

e(
s)

 
co

nf
ig

ur
at

io
n(

s)
. T

hi
s t

ak
in

g 
ac

co
un

t o
f a

va
ila

bl
e 

re
so

ur
ce

 
[w

ith
in

 A
&

B
 a

nd
 o

n 
its

 
pe

rip
he

rie
s]

, e
co

no
m

ie
s o

f s
ca

le
 

an
d 

co
st

 e
ff

ec
tiv

e 
an

d 
 m

os
t 

ef
fic

ie
nt

 se
rv

ic
e 

an
d/

or
 se

rv
ic

e 
fu

nc
tio

n 
so

lu
tio

ns
 

21
 

En
su

re
 m

an
ag

em
en

t i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
sy

st
em

s c
on

tri
bu

te
 to

 th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f r

is
k.

 

Ji
m

 R
ob

b 
H

ea
d 

of
 

In
te

gr
at

ed
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 

R
ob

us
t s

ys
te

m
s f

or
 

m
an

ag
in

g 
eq

ui
pm

en
t w

ill
 

be
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

by
 fe

as
ib

ili
ty

 
st

ud
y.

 

O
n 

th
e 

15
th

 o
f N

ov
em

be
r 

20
05

 th
is

 w
as

 in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 st

ud
y 

to
 b

e 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
 A

G
E

 L
td

. 

M
I t

em
pl

at
es

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 a
s p

ar
t o

f t
he

 fi
na

l 
re

po
rt 

– 
th

es
e 

to
 su

pp
or

t t
he

 K
PI

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
re

fe
rr

ed
 to

 in
 

co
m

m
en

t a
ga

in
st

 p
oi

nt
 1

4 
ab

ov
e 

Page 16



A
R

G
Y

LL
 A

N
D

 B
U

TE
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 A
PP

EN
D

IX
 1

 
A

D
A

PT
IN

G
 T

O
 T

H
E 

FU
TU

R
E 

- F
EA

SI
B

IL
IT

Y
 S

TU
D

Y
 R

ES
PO

N
SE

 2
00

5 
– 

20
06

 
 

 
 

N
o 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 
O

ff
ic

er
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s  

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

R
es

po
ns

e 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
 

Pr
og

re
ss

 a
s 

re
po

rt
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

9th
of

 
D

ec
em

be
r 

 
20

05
. 

C
ur

re
nt

 
up

da
te

 
fr

om
 

A
G

E
 L

td
. 

22
 

R
ev

ie
w

 u
se

r n
ee

ds
 o

nc
e 

eq
ui

pm
en

t a
nd

 
ad

ap
ta

tio
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 su

pp
lie

d.
  

Ji
m

 R
ob

b 
H

ea
d 

of
 

In
te

gr
at

ed
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 

M
et

ho
ds

 o
f m

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
of

 se
rv

ic
e 

re
qu

ire
 to

 b
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 

st
ud

y.
 

O
n 

th
e 

15
th

 o
f N

ov
em

be
r 

20
05

 th
is

 w
as

 in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 st

ud
y 

to
 b

e 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
 A

G
E

 L
td

. 

 

Pa
rt 

of
 se

rv
ic

e 
co

nf
ig

ur
at

io
n(

s)
 

pr
op

os
al

(s
) –

 li
ke

ly
 to

 b
e 

tw
o 

pr
on

ge
d 

su
pp

or
t: 

 fr
om

 
se

rv
ic

e(
s)

 p
ro

vi
de

r(
s)

 a
ss

is
tin

g 
th

er
ap

is
ts

 a
nd

 c
lin

ic
ia

ns
 a

s 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

/s
pe

ci
fie

d 
– 

no
 d

ou
bt

 
as

si
st

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
IT

. A
nd

 fr
om

 
Th

er
ap

is
ts

 a
nd

 C
lin

ic
ia

ns
 

th
em

se
lv

es
. T

hi
s t

o 
be

 o
n 

go
in

g,
 

ev
en

 a
fte

r c
on

cl
us

io
n 

of
 th

e 
fe

as
ib

ili
ty

 st
ud

y.
 

 G
en

er
al

 c
om

m
en

t:
 

Th
e 

fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 p

ro
je

ct
 is

 n
ow

 c
om

pl
et

e,
 h

ow
ev

er
, a

cc
es

si
ng

 d
at

a/
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
to

 in
fo

rm
 th

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
an

d 
w

ay
 f

or
w

ar
d 

[a
nd

 in
 th

is
 in

st
an

ce
 to

 
ad

dr
es

s 
an

d 
co

m
m

en
t u

po
n 

m
an

y 
of

 th
e 

po
in

ts
 a

bo
ve

] h
as

 p
ro

ve
d 

di
ff

ic
ul

t a
nd

 c
ha

lle
ng

in
g 

– 
th

is
 n

o 
do

ub
t n

o 
su

rp
ris

e 
to

 th
e 

re
ad

er
(s

). 
Th

is
 sa

id
, 

th
e 

te
am

 a
nd

 th
os

e 
w

ith
in

 A
&

B
 s

up
po

rti
ng

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t h

av
e 

w
or

ke
d 

tir
el

es
sl

y 
to

 e
ith

er
 fi

nd
 th

e 
da

ta
/in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
or

, i
f n

ot
 a

va
ila

bl
e,

 c
ap

tu
re

 a
nd

 
re

po
rt 

on
 s

am
e.

 A
ll 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

th
at

 w
as

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
an

d/
or

, 
m

or
e 

lik
el

y,
 c

om
pi

le
d/

ca
pt

ur
ed

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
in

cl
ud

ed
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 F
in

al
 R

ep
or

t 
an

d 
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

Pr
es

en
ta

tio
n.

 

 A
 P

ro
je

ct
 B

rie
fin

g 
– 

in
di

ca
tin

g 
Fi

nd
in

gs
 th

us
 fa

r a
nd

 O
pt

io
ns

 fo
r t

he
 fu

tu
re

 –
 w

as
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 to
 le

ad
 o

ff
ic

er
s o

n 
02

02
06

 

Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2 
 
ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL                                        AUDIT COMMITTEE                 
            9th JUNE 2006 
 

ADAPTING TO THE FUTURE  
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 

1.1  Audit Scotland’s report Adapting to the Future issued during August 2004 
resulted in 22 recommendations being made subject to the following 
headings: 

 
• Person Centred Services; 
• How are services organised; 
• Planning and performance monitoring; and 
• Managing risks. 

 
1.2 These recommendations are being progressed in partnership with the 

NHS, now NHS Highland, via the Joint Implementation Group (JIG) and 
thereafter to the Joint Strategy Group. It should be noted that a full review 
of service delivery by AGE Ltd was commissioned by the JIG during 
October 2005 in order to progress the agenda. The initial draft of the 
report was presented to the JIG on 27th April 2006. 

  
 
2.  SUMMARY OF THE AGE LTD REPORT 
 

2.1  General 
 

• On reviewing the current situation in Argyll & Bute it was noted that there 
is a lack of cohesion and integration with the NHS in purchasing, providing 
and maintaining equipment ad adaptations 

 
• A high proportion of professional Occupational Therapy time is taken up 

with the delivery and maintenance of equipment as against focussing time 
on assessment and clinical support to clients for which they are primarily 
trained. 

 
• The review found that in certain circumstances clients could wait 12 

months or more for basic equipment. 
 

• The review established that equipment procurement, storage, 
maintenance, cleaning and re-cycling being generally undertaken locally is 
tying up professional staff time inappropriately. The exception to this being 
the Oban area where there has been an investment in storage, 
maintenance, cleaning and delivery using resource release revenue 
provided by the NHS following a local ward closure.   

 

Page 19



APPENDIX 2 
• The AGE Ltd report notes that a revenue purchase figure of approximately 

£400k would be appropriate as against the £91,363 available during 
2005/06.  

 
• The financial position noted is further compounded by the lack of a 

coordinated approach to procurement, cleaning, maintenance and re-
cycling. 

 
2.2  AGE LTD OUTLINE OPTIONS FOR THE FUTURE   

 
2.2.1 The Argyll & Bute partnership of the Council and NHS are 

encouraged to develop and commission services and enhance the 
economies of scale by planning strategically across the area as 
against the local practice which presently exists.   

 
2.2.2 They propose that a “Hub & Spoke” model be adopted for 

equipment and adaptations across the whole area. Core elements 
such as procurement, central I.T support, main storage, distribution 
and supply, cleaning and maintenance are provided at the hub. 
This would serve the local spokes, which will provide local storage 
only to serve the immediate requirements of clients and staff. 

 
2.2.3 The development of a Hub & Spoke model would require a major 

investment both centrally and locally is storage space, cleaning 
equipment, maintenance and re-cycling, transport and non-qualified 
staff to support the professional Occupational Therapists in 
managing the service. 

 
 
3.   MANAGEMENT REVIEW, ACTION / RECOMMENDATION  
 

3.1 The JIG has created a sub group to consider the recommendations 
detailed in the report. However this process has been overtaken by the 
scrutiny review of all Social Work services that will progress during the 
next 3-4 months. The scrutiny review will consider all aspects of Social 
Work from what the priorities of the service are, how services should be 
provided, how services should be funded and how the service is managed 
and organised. 

 
3.2 While the scrutiny review progresses it is not practical to attempt to make 

any specific recommendations for the future of equipment and adaptation 
services within Argyll & Bute. The review will provide a medium to long-
term framework for the development of all social work service within the 
council and in partnership with the NHS. 

 
Sub groups have been created of which Physical Disability has the remit 
for making specific recommendations within the context of the factors 
noted in 3.1. The work that has progressed via the Adapting to the Future 
agenda and the recommendations noted in the AGE Ltd report will provide 
the core information and direction for the scrutiny review but until such 
times that the review has reported on its outcomes, I do not consider it 
possible to progress this specific agenda in isolation.  

Page 20



APPENDIX 2 
 

3.3 The scrutiny review is planned to come to a conclusion during September 
2006. It would be my intention to report to the Audit Committee at the 
earliest opportunity thereafter. 
 
 
James D M Robb 
Head of Service Integrated Care. 
 
30th May 2006 

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



  
ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 
STRATEGIC FINANCE 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE

9 JUNE 2006
    
  
MAINTAINING SCOTLAND’S ROADS 
  
  
  
1. SUMMARY 
    
  Audit Scotland issued a national report towards the end of November 2004 entitled, 

“Maintaining Scotland’s Roads”. The national report did not have any implementation 
dates assigned to its 9 recommendations. The Head of Roads & Amenity Services 
prepared an action plan incorporating the report’s recommendations and added a further 3 
to reflect dependent issues. The Head of Service commenced reporting to the Audit 
Committee and Strategic Policy Committee (SPC) in December 2004. Set out below is 
the current implementation position in respect of the Action Plans for 2005/06 & 
2006/07.   

    
2. RECOMMENDATION 
    
    2.1 The contents of this report are noted and to be followed up by Internal Audit. 
    
3. DETAILS 
  
    3.1 As at the 28th of April 2006, there are 2 recommendations remaining to be 

implemented from the 2005- 2006 Action Plan as set out in Appendix 1. 
Management have reported ongoing progress towards the new implementation 
dates of June and September 2006.  

    
 
 

 3.2 As at the 28th of April 2006, of the 12 recommendations set out in the 2006 – 2007 
Action Plan attached in Appendix 2, management have reported 4 of the 12 
recommendations complete. For the remaining 8 recommendations management 
have assigned new implementation dates for 4, citing resource, IT systems and 
external issues for the extended implementation dates. Of the remaining 4 
recommendations management have reported to Internal Audit that 3 are 
progressing and one has not yet commenced, having an implementation date of 
March 2007. 

    
4. CONCLUSION 
  Progress with the implementation of recommendations will continue to be reported 

by Internal Audit.  
  
5. IMPLICATIONS 
  5.1 Policy: None 
        
  5.2 Financial: None 
        
  5.3 Personnel: None 
        
  5.4 Legal: None 
        
  5.5 Equal Opportunities: None 
For further information please contact Ian Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager (01546 604216) 

Agenda Item 5Page 23



 
Ian Nisbet 
Internal Audit Manager   28th April 2006. 28aprfinalreport28apr 

Page 24



Maintaining Scotland’s Roads 2005 – 2006 
Action Plan  APPENDIX 1 

 
No. 

 

 
Recommendations 

 
Current Position 

 
Proposed Action 

 
Timescale 

 
Progress 

update as at 
28th April 2006 

 6
  

Conduct an option appraisal 
for procuring and financing 
road maintenance services. 
 

No action. Undertake 
recommendation. 

March 
2006 

Not yet started. 
New proposed 
implementation 
date June 
2006. 

 3 Establish a long-term strategy 
for road maintenance in the 
overall context of 
transportation and roads asset 
management strategies. 
 

No action to date. Implement action 
in association with 
Asset 
Management Unit.

December 
2005 

Delayed start 
due to lack of 
resources. 
New proposed 
implementation 
date 
September 
2006. 

 

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

1

M
a

in
ta

in
in

g
 S

co
tl

a
n

d
’s

 R
o

a
d

s 
2

0
0

6
 –

 2
0

0
7

 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n

N
o

.
R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

C
u

rr
e

n
t 
P

o
s
it
io

n
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 A

c
ti
o

n
 

T
im

e
s
c
a

le
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 u

p
d

a
te

 
a
s
 a

t 
2
8

th
 o

f 
A

p
ri
l 

2
0

0
6

 
1

 
R

e
p

o
rt

 o
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

d
it
io

n
 o

f 
ro

a
d

s
 a

n
d

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 
b

a
c
k
lo

g
.

A
w

a
it
in

g
 2

0
0

4
/0

5
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
C

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 r

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 

a
n

n
u

a
l 
b

a
s
is

. 
R

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 S

P
C

 
M

a
y
 2

0
0
5
 n

e
x
t 

re
p
o
rt

 M
a
y
 2

0
0
6
 

S
ti
ll 

a
w

a
it
in

g
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
d
a
ta

 f
ro

m
 

th
e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
R

o
a
d
 

C
o
n
d
it
io

n
 S

u
rv

e
y
. 

T
h
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

re
p

o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e

 
d
e
la

y
e
d
 t
ill

 l
a
te

 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

 
2

 
D

e
te

rm
in

e
 t
h

e
 s

iz
e

 o
f 
th

e
 s

tr
u

c
tu

ra
l 
m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 
b

a
c
k
lo

g
.

A
n

 a
c
c
u

ra
te

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
is

 n
o
t 
y
e
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

. 
D

e
te

rm
in

e
 t
h
e
 c

o
s
t,

 i
n
 

a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 
S

c
o
tt
is

h
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 t
e

c
h

n
iq

u
e

s
. 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
6

 
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E

 
3

 
E

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 l
o

n
g

-t
e

rm
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 f
o

r 
ro

a
d

 
m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

c
o

n
te

x
t 
o

f 
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

a
ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 r

o
a

d
s
 a

s
s
e

t 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
. 

N
o
 a

c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 d

a
te

. 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

a
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 A
s
s
e

t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
U

n
it
. 

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
5

 
In

it
ia

lly
 d

e
la

y
e
d
 

d
u

e
 t
o

 a
 l
a

c
k
 o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
. 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
s
 n

o
w

 
b

e
in

g
 m

a
d

e
 

to
w

a
rd

 t
h
e
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

d
a
te

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
6
.

 
4

 
M

e
e

t 
th

e
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 s

ta
te

d
 i
n

 "
D

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 

B
e

s
t 
V

a
lu

e
 i
n

 H
ig

h
w

a
y
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 –
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 f
o

r 
M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t"

. 

R
o

a
d

 M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 P
la

n
 

in
tr

o
d

u
c
e

d
 b

y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

in
 

M
a
y
 2

0
0
4
. 

C
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r.

 
- 

O
n
 g

o
in

g
. 

 
5

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
s
e

tt
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 t
o

 s
tr

u
c
tu

ra
l 
m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 t
o

 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

 l
o

n
g

-t
e

rm
 v

a
lu

e
 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y
. 

C
a

p
it
a

l 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 
a

llo
w

s
 a

n
 e

le
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
s
tr

u
c
tu

ra
l 
m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

. 

R
e
v
ie

w
 A

u
d
it
 

S
c
o

tl
a

n
d

's
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
.

C
o
m

p
le

te
R

e
v
ie

w
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0

0
6

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

 
6

 
 

C
o

n
d

u
c
t 
a

n
 o

p
ti
o

n
 a

p
p

ra
is

a
l 
fo

r 
p

ro
c
u

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 
fi
n

a
n

c
in

g
 r

o
a

d
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

N
o

 a
c
ti
o

n
. 

U
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
.

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
7

 
N

o
t 
y
e
t 
s
ta

rt
e
d
. 

 
7

 
Im

p
ro

v
e

 i
n

v
e

n
to

ry
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 r

o
a

d
s
 a

s
s
e

ts
. 

W
o

rk
 o

n
g

o
in

g
. 

C
o

m
p

le
te

 i
n

v
e

n
to

ry
. 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
6

 
T

h
is

 i
s
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
in

g
 

s
lo

w
e

r 
th

a
n

 h
a

d
 

b
e

e
n

 a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 

Page 27



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

2

a
n

d
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 
im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 b

y
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
6
. 

 
8
 

 
U

s
e
 a

s
s
e
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
y
s
te

m
 l
in

k
e
d
 t
o
 G

IS
 a

n
d
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
y
s
te

m
. 

N
o

 a
c
ti
o

n
. 

In
tr

o
d

u
c
e

 a
 R

o
a

d
s
 

M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
S

y
s
te

m
. 

In
it
ia

l 
in

tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
 f
u
ll 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 1

s
t

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
6
 

T
h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a

 R
o

a
d

s
 

M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

S
y
s
te

m
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

d
e
la

y
e
d
 d

u
e
 t
o
 I
T

 
p

ro
b

le
m

s
 b

u
t 

th
e

s
e

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

re
c
ti
fi
e
d
 s

h
o
rt

ly
 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 p

u
rc

h
a

s
e

 
o

f 
n

e
w

 h
a

rd
w

a
re

.
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 i
s
 n

o
w

 
b

e
in

g
 m

a
d

e
 

to
w

a
rd

s
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 b

y
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
6
. 

 
9

 
C

o
n

s
id

e
r 

jo
in

t 
w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it
h

 o
th

e
r 

C
o

u
n

c
ils

 
N

o
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f
o

u
n

d
. 

R
e

v
ie

w
 t
h

is
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
.

T
o
 b

e
 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0

0
6

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

 b
u

t 
w

il
l 
is

 a
n

 o
n

g
o

in
g

 
ta

s
k

.

 
1

0
 

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 u

n
it
 c

o
s
ts

 o
f 
v
a

ri
o

u
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 e
le

m
e

n
ts

. 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 f
o

r 
2

0
0

5
/0

6
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
.

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
6

 
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E

 
1

1
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 o

f 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 

a
n

d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 t
a

rg
e

ts
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
w

h
ic

h
 t
o

 m
e

a
s
u

re
 t
h

e
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 o
f 
th

e
 r

o
a

d
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 s
y
s
te

m
. 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 s
e

v
e

ra
l 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 i
n

 
th

e
 R

o
a

d
s
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
.

R
e

v
ie

w
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs
 i
n
 l
ig

h
t 
o
f 

A
u
d
it
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
's

 
R

e
p
o
rt

.

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
6

 
B

e
h

in
d

 s
c
h

e
d

u
le

 
d

u
e

 t
o

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
 

is
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 
a
w

a
it
in

g
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 

d
a
ta

. 
N

e
w

 
p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

d
a
te

 J
u
ly

 2
0
0
6
. 

 
1

2
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

 t
h

e
 B

e
s
t 
V

a
lu

e
 R

o
a

d
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 C
h

e
c
k
lis

t.
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

  
R

e
v
ie

w
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
.

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
6

 
B

e
h

in
d

 s
c
h

e
d

u
le

 
d

u
e

 t
o

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
 

is
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 
a
w

a
it
in

g
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 

d
a
ta

. 
N

e
w

 
p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

d
a
te

 J
u
ly

 2
0
0
6
. 

Page 28



  
ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 
STRATEGIC FINANCE 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE

9 JUNE 2006
    
  
INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2005 - 2006 
  
  
 1. SUMMARY 
   
  Internal Audit has the responsibility to provide to the Audit Committee an Annual report 

that comments on the duties and audits carried out by the section throughout the financial 
year. The Annual Report for 2005 – 2006 is attached in Appendix 1.  

    
2. RECOMMENDATION 
    
    2.1 That the Internal Annual Audit Report for 2005 - 2006 is approved.  
      
3. DETAILS 
    
  3.1 The objective of the report attached in Appendix 1, is to advise members of 

internal audit standards, current practices and comment on the performance of 
Internal Audit throughout the financial year 2005 - 2006. 

    
  3.2 Further comment on Internal Audit performance is given within the report for:- 

• Core Financial Audits; 
• Non Core Financial Audits; 
• Contingency; and  
• Other Areas.  

The Assessment of Audit days for 2005 – 2006 Strategic Plan is provided in 
Appendix 2 and is a progress statement on the audits planned for 2005 – 2006. 

    
  3.3 There is only one Core Financial Audit where the fieldwork and draft report have 

not been completed. This audit was entitled Following the Public Pound (FtPP) 
and has been suspended to allow financial review work to be undertaken. Internal 
Audit has therefore decided in agreement with Audit Scotland that this audit be 
carried forward into the 2006 – 2007. 

    
4. CONCLUSION  
    
  Internal Audit will compile an Annual Report on audit responsibilities and 

activities.  
  
5. IMPLICATIONS 
  
  5.1 Policy: None 
        
  5.2 Financial: None 
        
  5.3 Personnel: None 
        
  5.4 Legal: None 
        
  5.5 Equal Opportunities: None 

 
 For further information please contact Ian Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager (01546 604216) 
Ian Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager 19 May 2006.   19Mayreport19May  

Agenda Item 6Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



  
ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 
STRATEGIC FINANCE 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE

9 JUNE 2006
    
  
EXTERNAL & INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT FOLLOW UP 2005 – 2006. 
  
  
  
1. SUMMARY 
    
  The Internal Audit Annual Plan requires that follow up reviews be conducted for all 

audits completed during the prior year.  Internal Audit also document the progress made 
by departmental management in implementing the recommendations made by Audit 
Scotland and Internal Audit. A new reporting system was introduced and approved by the 
Audit Committee in August 2004. Set out below is the results from a review performed 
by Internal Audit for recommendations due to be implemented by the 31st March 2006.  

    
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
    
    2.1 The contents of this report are noted and are to be followed up by Internal Audit. 
    
3. DETAILS 
    
    3.1 Appendix 1 is a statistical summary of the 2003/04, 2004/05 and 2005/06 Internal 

Audit reports issued prior to March 2006. It details the number of 
recommendations to be implemented by the follow up date, the number 
implemented and those past their implementation date. The implementation date 
used for reporting to this Audit Committee is the 31st March 2006. A reference 
column has been added to provide a link to Appendix 2, where reasons are given 
by local management as to why recommendations have not been implemented by 
the agreed date.  The same layout has been used for the follow up of Audit 
Scotland report recommendations. 

    
  3.2  Appendix 1 is split into 2 documents 1a & 1b. The first document refers to all 

reports with recommendations due January to March 2006. The second document 
lists action points outstanding from the previous Audit Committee. These are 
points that should have been implemented by the 31st December 2005 for the last 
Audit Committee. The same layout has been used for the reporting of Audit 
Scotland report recommendations in Appendices 3 & 4.   

    
  3.2 Appendices 2 and 4, detail under each report’s title the recommendation that is 

still to be implemented, the department and Head of Service responsible, and an 
explanation for the delay, the level of risk, original and a revised implementation 
date.  

    
  3.3  All new external audit reports issued by Audit Scotland to the Council are reported 

initially separately to the Audit Committee with their executive summary and 
action plan. Thereafter they will be included in the summary list in Appendices 3 
& 4 of this report. 

    
 
 
 

Agenda Item 7Page 31



    
4. CONCLUSIONS 
    
  Implementation of recommendations will continue to be monitored by Internal 

Audit.   
  
5. IMPLICATIONS 
  5.1 Policy: None 
        
  5.2 Financial: None 
        
  5.3 Personnel: None 
        
  5.4 Legal: None 
        
  5.5 Equal Opportunities: None 
 
For further information please contact Ian Nisbet or Alex Colligan of Internal Audit on 
(01546 604216 or 604271) 
 
18 May 2006 
18Mayreport18May 

Page 32



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 A

In
te

rn
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 R

e
p

o
rt

 F
o

ll
o

w
 u

p
 -

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

R
e

p
o

rt
s

 W
it

h
 R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s
 D

u
e

 F
ro

m
  

J
a

n
u

a
ry

 t
o

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
6

A
u

d
it

R
e

p
o

rt
 N

u
m

b
e

r
P

o
in

ts
 t

o
 b

e
 a

c
ti

o
n

e
d

 b
y

 

3
1

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
6

P
o

in
ts

 a
c

ti
o

n
e

d
 b

y
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 d
a

te

B
e

h
in

d
 S

c
h

e
d

u
le

/ 

In
s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

e
v

id
e

n
c

e
 

re
c

e
iv

e
d

2
0

0
5

/0
6

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
C

a
p

it
a

l 
A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
1

3
 (

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
6

)
2

1
1

A
2

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
C

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

T
e

n
d

e
ri
n

g
 &

 V
e

tt
in

g
1

2
 (

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
6

)
1

1
0

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
O

p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 L

e
a

s
e

s
6

 (
D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
5

)
4

3
1

B
2

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
T

re
a

s
u

ry
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
8

 (
A

p
ri
l 
2

0
0

6
)

2
2

0

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n

ti
n

u
it
y
 P

la
n

n
in

g
5

 (
D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
5

)
3

0
3

D
1

,2
&

3

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
C

a
p

it
a

l 
C

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

1
1

 (
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
0

6
)

3
1

2
E

2
&

3

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
D

e
b

to
rs

 -
 E

s
ta

te
s
 R

e
n

ts
1

7
 (

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
6

)
5

3
2

F
5

&
8

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
C

a
s
h

 &
 I

n
c
o

m
e

 B
a

n
k
in

g
, 

H
e

rm
it
a

g
e

 A
c
a

d
e

m
y

9
 (

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
6

)
3

0
3

G
4

,6
&

9

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
C

re
d

it
o

rs
4

 (
D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
5

)
2

2
0

T
o

ta
l

2
5

1
3

1
2

Page 33



Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 B

P
o

in
ts

 O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 F
ro

m
 P

re
v

io
u

s
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

A
u

d
it

R
e

p
o

rt
 N

u
m

b
e

r

P
o

in
ts

 S
ti

ll
 

O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

F
ro

m
 P

re
v

io
u

s
 

A
u

d
it

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
s

P
o

in
ts

 t
o

 b
e

 

a
c

ti
o

n
e

d
 b

y
 3

1
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
6

P
o

in
ts

 a
c

ti
o

n
e

d
 b

y
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

d
a

te

B
e

h
in

d

S
c

h
e

d
u

le
/

In
s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t

e
v

id
e

n
c

e

re
c

e
iv

e
d

2
0

0
3

/0
4

2
8

 R
e

p
o

rt
s

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 J

o
in

t 

F
u

tu
re

 A
g

e
n

d
a

2
6

 (
M

a
y
 2

0
0

4
)

1
1

0
1

I1
0

2
0

0
4

/0
5

2
0

 R
e

p
o

rt
s

P
ru

d
e

n
ti
a

l 
C

o
d

e
1

7
 (

M
a

y
 2

0
0

5
)

1
1

0
1

C
3

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
C

a
s
h

 I
n

c
o

m
e

 &
 B

a
n

k
in

g
1

1
0

1
J
6

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
P

u
rc

h
a

s
e

 E
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

&
 

M
a

te
ri
a

ls
2

2
2

0

B
e

s
t 

V
a

lu
e

 R
e

v
ie

w
 2

0
0

4
/0

5
1

1
1

0

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 R

e
n

ts
1

1
1

0

2
0

0
5

/0
6

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
Y

e
a

r-
e

n
d

 S
to

c
k
 C

o
u

n
t 

P
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s

1
 (

A
u

g
u

s
t 

2
0

0
5

)
3

3
3

0

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 

2
0

0
4

/0
5

2
 (

A
u

g
u

s
t 

2
0

0
5

)
3

3
0

3
H

2
,3

&
4

T
o

ta
l

1
3

1
3

7
6

Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

F:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

3\
5\

5\
A

I0
00

29
55

3\
In

tE
xt

Fo
llo

w
U

pA
pp

en
di

x2
A

ct
io

nP
oi

nt
sB

eh
in

dS
ch

ed
ul

eI
nt

er
na

lA
ud

itf
or

A
ud

itC
om

m
it

te
e2

0.
do

c 

 A
ct

io
n 

Po
in

ts
 B

eh
in

d 
Sc

he
du

le
 –

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it  
  A

 –
 R

ev
ie

w
 o

f C
ap

ita
l A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
 

 R
ef

 
A

ct
io

n 
Po

in
t /

 
Im

pl
ic

at
io

n 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t /
 

H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
Ex

pl
an

at
io

n 
fo

r d
el

ay
 

R
is

k 
G

ra
di

ng
 

O
rig

in
al

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
2 

La
ck

 o
f w

rit
te

n 
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n,

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
an

d 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 

Fi
na

nc
e 

M
an

ag
er

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

B
ei

ng
 

ca
rr

ie
d 

ou
t 

as
 

pa
rt 

of
 

th
e 

cl
os

ur
e 

of
 th

e 
A

nn
ua

l A
cc

ou
nt

s.
 

M
at

er
ia

l 
31

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
6 

30
 J

un
e 

20
06

 

 B
– 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Le
as

es
 

 R
ef

 
A

ct
io

n 
Po

in
t /

 
Im

pl
ic

at
io

n 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t /
 

H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
Ex

pl
an

at
io

n 
fo

r d
el

ay
 

R
is

k 
G

ra
di

ng
 

O
rig

in
al

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
2 

N
ot

 a
ll 

le
as

es
 a

re
 

ac
co

un
te

d 
fo

r i
n 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il's

 A
nn

ua
l 

Ac
co

un
ts

. 
 

Fi
na

nc
e 

M
an

ag
er

, 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

S
er

vi
ce

s/
 S

en
io

r 
E

st
at

es
 S

ur
ve

yo
r 

B
ei

ng
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
cl

os
ur

e 
of

 th
e 

A
nn

ua
l A

cc
ou

nt
s.

 
Fu

nd
am

en
ta

l 
31

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
6 

30
 J

un
e 

20
06

 

 C
 –

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f t

he
 P

ru
de

nt
ia

l C
od

e 
 R

ef
 

A
ct

io
n 

Po
in

t /
 

Im
pl

ic
at

io
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 
H

ea
d 

of
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Ex
pl

an
at

io
n 

fo
r d

el
ay

 
R

is
k 

G
ra

di
ng

 
O

rig
in

al
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
da

te
 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
3 

P
rio

rit
is

at
io

n 
of

 c
ap

ita
l 

sc
he

m
es

 b
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d;
 o

n 
go

in
g 

re
ve

nu
e 

ef
fe

ct
 b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

he
n 

a 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 p
ro

po
se

d;
 

ev
en

tu
al

 fi
na

l o
ut

tu
rn

 b
e 

co
m

pa
re

d 
w

ith
 b

ud
ge

t 
es

tim
at

e.
 

H
ea

d 
of

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
Fi

na
nc

e 
Th

is
 w

ill 
be

 a
dd

re
ss

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 th
e 

B
es

t 
V

al
ue

 A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n.
 

M
at

er
ia

l 
31

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
6 

30
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

6 

 

Page 37



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

F:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

3\
5\

5\
A

I0
00

29
55

3\
In

tE
xt

Fo
llo

w
U

pA
pp

en
di

x2
A

ct
io

nP
oi

nt
sB

eh
in

dS
ch

ed
ul

eI
nt

er
na

lA
ud

itf
or

A
ud

itC
om

m
it

te
e2

0.
do

c 

 D
 –

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f B

us
in

es
s 

C
on

tin
ui

ty
 P

la
nn

in
g 

 R
ef

 
A

ct
io

n 
Po

in
t /

 
Im

pl
ic

at
io

n 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t /
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
Ex

pl
an

at
io

n 
fo

r d
el

ay
 

R
is

k 
G

ra
di

ng
 

O
rig

in
al

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
1 

C
ur

re
nt

 b
us

in
es

s 
co

nt
in

ui
ty

 
pl

an
s 

do
 n

ot
 c

ov
er

 m
an

y 
of

 
th

e 
m

ai
n 

ris
ks

 fa
ci

ng
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l. 
 W

ith
ou

t p
ro

pe
r 

bu
si

ne
ss

 c
on

tin
ui

ty
 p

la
ns

 in
 

pl
ac

e 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l w
ill 

fin
d 

it 
di

ffi
cu

lt 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 th
e 

le
ve

l 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
th

at
 it

s 
ci

tiz
en

s 
ex

pe
ct

. 
 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

er
 

Ti
m

es
ca

le
 re

vi
se

d 
du

e 
to

 d
ep

ar
tu

re
 o

f 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
R

is
k 

M
an

ag
er

. N
ew

 
ap

po
in

tm
en

t n
ot

 li
ke

ly
 to

 b
e 

in
 p

os
t 

be
fo

re
 J

un
e 

20
06

.T
he

 B
C

P
 p

la
n 

is
 

be
hi

nd
 s

ch
ed

ul
e 

as
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

es
 h

av
e 

be
en

 w
or

ki
ng

 o
n 

th
e 

S
tra

te
gi

c 
R

is
k 

R
eg

is
te

r. 
Th

e 
re

vi
se

d 
da

te
 w

ill 
al

lo
w

 ti
m

e 
fo

r t
he

 w
or

k 
to

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
ne

w
 a

pp
oi

nt
ee

 w
ith

 
de

pa
rtm

en
ts

.  

H
ig

h 
31

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
00

6 
31

 A
ug

us
t 2

00
6 

2 
W

ith
ou

t s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 

re
so

ur
ce

s,
 th

e 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 o
f 

th
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

 c
on

tin
ui

ty
 

gr
ou

p 
ar

e 
un

lik
el

y 
to

 b
e 

m
et

. 
 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

er
 

A
s 

ab
ov

e 
H

ig
h  

31
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

00
6 

31
 A

ug
us

t 2
00

6 

3 
In

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
 

fa
ili

ng
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

 w
id

er
 

is
su

es
 fa

ci
ng

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l 

ca
n 

le
ad

 to
 d

up
lic

at
io

n 
of

 
ef

fo
rt 

an
d 

w
as

te
d 

re
so

ur
ce

s.
 

 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

er
 

N
ot

ed
. T

he
 s

am
e 

st
af

f a
re

 s
up

po
rti

ng
 

th
e 

w
or

k 
on

 th
e 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f S

tra
te

gi
c 

R
is

k 
R

eg
is

te
r a

nd
 th

e 
B

C
P 

pr
oc

es
s.

 

H
ig

h  
31

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
00

6 
31

 A
ug

us
t 2

00
6 

  

Page 38



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

F:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

3\
5\

5\
A

I0
00

29
55

3\
In

tE
xt

Fo
llo

w
U

pA
pp

en
di

x2
A

ct
io

nP
oi

nt
sB

eh
in

dS
ch

ed
ul

eI
nt

er
na

lA
ud

itf
or

A
ud

itC
om

m
it

te
e2

0.
do

c 

E–
 R

ev
ie

w
 o

f C
ap

ita
l C

on
tr

ac
ts

 
 R

ef
 

A
ct

io
n 

Po
in

t /
 

Im
pl

ic
at

io
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 
H

ea
d 

of
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Ex
pl

an
at

io
n 

fo
r d

el
ay

 
R

is
k 

G
ra

di
ng

 
O

rig
in

al
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
da

te
 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
2 

A
rg

yl
l a

nd
 B

ut
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
ve

 a
gr

ee
d 

to
 th

e 
si

gn
in

g 
of

 a
 C

on
tra

ct
 w

ith
 th

e 
C

am
pb

el
to

w
n 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

P
ro

je
ct

 C
on

tra
ct

or
, d

es
pi

te
 

th
e 

ex
is

te
nc

e 
of

 a
 s

ta
nd

ar
d 

'o
ffe

r a
nd

 a
cc

ep
ta

nc
e'

 
co

nt
ra

ct
 a

lre
ad

y 
in

 p
la

ce
. 

P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

 - 
C

am
pb

el
to

w
n 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

ro
je

ct
 

Th
e 

m
an

y 
do

cu
m

en
ts

 w
hi

ch
 c

om
pr

is
e 

th
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

 h
av

e 
be

en
 a

ss
em

bl
ed

, 
co

lla
te

d 
an

d 
ag

re
ed

 a
nd

 a
re

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 

w
ith

 th
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

or
 fo

r s
ig

na
tu

re
. 

D
is

cu
ss

io
ns

 a
re

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 o

ng
oi

ng
 w

ith
 

th
e 

H
ea

d 
of

 L
eg

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

as
 to

 th
e 

m
er

its
 o

r o
th

er
w

is
e 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
si

gn
in

g 
a 

co
nt

ra
ct

 a
t t

hi
s 

la
te

 s
ta

ge
. 

 

M
at

er
ia

l  
28

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

06
 

30
 A

ug
us

t 2
00

6 

3 
C

on
tra

ct
or

 c
la

im
s 

in
 th

e 
C

am
pb

el
to

w
n 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

P
ro

je
ct

 a
re

 p
ot

en
tia

lly
 u

nd
er

 
es

tim
at

ed
 a

nd
 th

e 
ca

pi
ta

l 
pl

an
 e

xp
os

ed
. 

P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

 - 
C

am
pb

el
to

w
n 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

ro
je

ct
 

Th
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

ua
l c

la
im

s 
si

tu
at

io
n 

is
 b

ei
ng

 
cl

os
el

y 
m

on
ito

re
d 

on
 a

n 
on

go
in

g 
ba

si
s 

by
 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’s

 P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

 in
 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

H
ea

d 
of

 L
eg

al
 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’s
 s

pe
ci

al
is

t 
le

ga
l a

dv
is

er
s,

 B
ro

di
es

. 
 

M
at

er
ia

l  
28

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

06
 

30
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
6 

  

Page 39



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

F:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

3\
5\

5\
A

I0
00

29
55

3\
In

tE
xt

Fo
llo

w
U

pA
pp

en
di

x2
A

ct
io

nP
oi

nt
sB

eh
in

dS
ch

ed
ul

eI
nt

er
na

lA
ud

itf
or

A
ud

itC
om

m
it

te
e2

0.
do

c 

F–
 R

ev
ie

w
 o

f D
eb

to
rs

 –
 E

st
at

es
 R

en
ts

 
 R

ef
 

A
ct

io
n 

Po
in

t /
 

Im
pl

ic
at

io
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 
H

ea
d 

of
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Ex
pl

an
at

io
n 

fo
r d

el
ay

 
R

is
k 

G
ra

di
ng

O
rig

in
al

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
5 

Ac
co

un
ts

 c
an

 b
e 

w
ith

dr
aw

n 
by

 R
en

t R
ol

l 
st

af
f n

ot
ify

in
g 

S
en

io
r 

C
le

ric
al

 A
ss

is
ta

nt
 in

 
S

un
dr

y 
D

eb
to

rs
 b

y 
e-

m
ai

l 
or

 te
le

ph
on

e.
 

 

H
ea

d 
of

 L
eg

al
 a

nd
 

P
ro

te
ct

iv
e 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
Th

er
e 

is
 a

 c
on

tro
l i

n 
pl

ac
e 

at
 th

e 
m

om
en

t w
hi

ch
 w

ill 
be

 re
fle

ct
ed

 in
 th

e 
w

rit
te

n 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 o
nc

e 
th

e 
re

nt
 ro

ll 
sy

st
em

 is
 fi

na
lis

ed
.  

Fu
nd

am
en

ta
l 

28
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
06

 
30

 J
un

e 
20

06
 

8 
In

ve
ra

ra
y 

Ja
il 

S
ig

ni
fic

an
t r

en
ta

l i
nc

om
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 lo
st

 to
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 

H
ea

d 
of

 L
eg

al
 a

nd
 

P
ro

te
ct

iv
e 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
Th

ro
ug

h 
a 

le
as

e 
ag

re
em

en
t t

he
 

C
ou

nc
il 

re
ce

iv
es

 re
nt

al
 in

co
m

e 
re

la
te

d 
to

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f v
is

ito
rs

 to
 th

e 
Ja

il.
 

Th
is

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
in

 p
la

ce
 s

in
ce

 1
98

9.
 

Th
er

e 
is

 a
 le

ga
l d

iff
ic

ul
ty

 in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 
re

nt
al

 o
f t

he
 s

ho
p 

ar
ea

 a
nd

 a
 m

ee
tin

g 
is

 to
 b

e 
he

ld
 s

ho
rtl

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
te

na
nt

 to
 

re
so

lv
e 

th
is

 s
pe

ci
fic

 is
su

e.
 

 

Fu
nd

am
en

ta
l  

28
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
06

 
30

 J
un

e 
20

06
 

 

Page 40



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

F:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

3\
5\

5\
A

I0
00

29
55

3\
In

tE
xt

Fo
llo

w
U

pA
pp

en
di

x2
A

ct
io

nP
oi

nt
sB

eh
in

dS
ch

ed
ul

eI
nt

er
na

lA
ud

itf
or

A
ud

itC
om

m
it

te
e2

0.
do

c 

G
 –

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f C

as
h 

&
 In

co
m

e 
B

an
ki

ng
, H

er
m

ita
ge

 A
ca

de
m

y 
Ed

uc
at

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
e 

 R
ef

 
A

ct
io

n 
Po

in
t /

 
Im

pl
ic

at
io

n 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t /
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
Ex

pl
an

at
io

n 
fo

r d
el

ay
 

R
is

k 
G

ra
di

ng
 

O
rig

in
al

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
4 

O
ffi

ce
s 

in
 th

e 
sc

ho
ol

 d
o 

no
t 

di
sp

la
y 

a 
no

tic
e 

to
 s

ay
 

re
ce

ip
ts

 a
re

 to
 b

e 
gi

ve
n 

fo
r 

al
l c

as
h 

re
m

itt
an

ce
s.

 

A
ct

in
g 

H
ea

d 
Te

ac
he

r 
(H

er
m

ita
ge

 
A

ca
de

m
y)

 &
 H

ea
ds

 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 fo
r 

P
rim

ar
y 

an
d 

Se
co

nd
ar

y 
E

du
ca

tio
n 

Th
e 

si
gn

ag
e 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
of

fic
es

 
in

di
ca

tin
g 

th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r r

ec
ei

pt
s 

to
 b

e 
gi

ve
n 

fo
r a

ll 
ca

sh
 re

m
itt

an
ce

s 
ar

e 
in

 
pl

ac
e.

 E
du

ca
tio

n 
se

rv
ic

es
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

re
 ta

ki
ng

 a
ct

io
n 

to
 

ad
dr

es
s 

th
is

 m
at

te
r i

n 
th

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
ro

un
d 

of
 m

ee
tin

gs
 w

ith
 h

ea
d 

te
ac

he
rs

 
of

 a
ll 

sc
ho

ol
s.

 
 

M
in

or
 

 
10

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

06
 

30
 A

ug
us

t 2
00

6  
 

6 
Th

er
e 

m
ay

 b
e 

ris
ks

 w
hi

ch
 

ne
ed

 to
 b

e 
lo

ok
ed

 a
t 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
th

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 

fo
r t

he
 tr

an
si

t o
f c

as
h 

to
 th

e 
ba

nk
. 

A
ct

in
g 

H
ea

d 
Te

ac
he

r 
(H

er
m

ita
ge

 
A

ca
de

m
y)

 &
 H

ea
ds

 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 fo
r 

P
rim

ar
y 

an
d 

Se
co

nd
ar

y 
E

du
ca

tio
n 

Th
e 

ris
ks

 in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 th

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 fo

r t
he

 tr
an

si
t o

f c
as

h 
to

 
th

e 
ba

nk
 h

av
e 

be
en

 re
vi

ew
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

ac
tin

g 
he

ad
 te

ac
he

r, 
th

e 
AF

A
 a

nd
 th

e 
sc

ho
ol

 tr
ea

su
re

r. 
Th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 ta

ke
n 

w
as

 th
at

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 
ar

e 
as

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
as

 is
 p

ra
ct

ic
al

 w
ith

 th
e 

se
ni

or
 ja

ni
to

r t
ra

ns
po

rti
ng

 c
as

h 
to

 th
e 

ba
nk

 e
ac

h 
af

te
rn

oo
n.

 E
du

ca
tio

n 
se

rv
ic

es
 m

an
ag

em
en

t a
re

 ta
ki

ng
 

ac
tio

n 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
is

 m
at

te
r i

n 
th

e 
cu

rr
en

t r
ou

nd
 o

f m
ee

tin
gs

 w
ith

 h
ea

d 
te

ac
he

rs
 o

f a
ll 

sc
ho

ol
s.

 
 

M
at

er
ia

l 
10

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

06
 

30
A

ug
us

t 2
00

6 

9 
S

ev
er

al
 s

ch
oo

l f
un

d 
ba

nk
 

ac
co

un
ts

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
w

hi
ch

 
ha

d 
no

t b
ee

n 
in

 u
se

 fo
r 

so
m

e 
tim

e.
 

A
ct

in
g 

H
ea

d 
Te

ac
he

r 
(H

er
m

ita
ge

 
A

ca
de

m
y)

 &
 H

ea
ds

 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 fo
r 

P
rim

ar
y 

an
d 

Se
co

nd
ar

y 
E

du
ca

tio
n 

Th
os

e 
ba

nk
 a

cc
ou

nt
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
as

 n
ot

 
in

 u
se

 fo
r s

om
e 

tim
e 

ha
ve

 n
ow

 b
ee

n 
cl

os
ed

 a
nd

 th
e 

m
on

ie
s 

tra
ns

fe
rr

ed
 to

 
th

e 
sc

ho
ol

 a
cc

ou
nt

. E
du

ca
tio

n 
se

rv
ic

es
 m

an
ag

em
en

t a
re

 ta
ki

ng
 

ac
tio

n 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
is

 m
at

te
r i

n 
th

e 
cu

rr
en

t r
ou

nd
 o

f m
ee

tin
gs

 w
ith

 h
ea

d 
te

ac
he

rs
 o

f a
ll 

sc
ho

ol
s.

 
 

M
in

or
 

 
10

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

06
 

30
A

ug
us

t 2
00

6 

 

Page 41



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

F:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

3\
5\

5\
A

I0
00

29
55

3\
In

tE
xt

Fo
llo

w
U

pA
pp

en
di

x2
A

ct
io

nP
oi

nt
sB

eh
in

dS
ch

ed
ul

eI
nt

er
na

lA
ud

itf
or

A
ud

itC
om

m
it

te
e2

0.
do

c 

H
 –

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 2
00

4/
05

 
 R

ef
 

A
ct

io
n 

Po
in

t /
 

Im
pl

ic
at

io
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 
H

ea
d 

of
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Ex
pl

an
at

io
n 

fo
r d

el
ay

 
R

is
k 

G
ra

di
ng

 
O

rig
in

al
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
da

te
 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
2 

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
P

I 
13

 -
 

S
up

er
vi

si
on

 R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 - 

A
ll 

A
re

as
 n

ee
d 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 

fu
ll 

de
ta

ils
 o

f r
el

ev
an

t d
at

es
 

fo
r 

ea
ch

 c
as

e 
to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 

an
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 t
ha

t 
ba

ck
-u

p 
ev

id
en

ce
 i

s 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fro
m

 
pe

rs
on

al
 c

as
e 

fil
es

.  

H
ea

d 
of

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
&

 
Fa

m
ili

es
 v

ia
 A

re
a 

S
er

vi
ce

 M
an

ag
er

 

Th
er

e 
w

er
e 

7 
su

pe
rv

is
io

n 
or

de
rs

 fo
r 

20
04

/0
5 

fo
r H

el
en

sb
ur

gh
 a

nd
 

Lo
m

on
d.

 A
ll 

w
er

e 
vi

si
te

d 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

15
 

da
ys

, c
as

e 
no

te
s 

on
 c

ar
e 

fir
st

 
(d

at
ab

as
e)

 a
nd

 p
ap

er
 b

as
ed

 fi
le

 
co

nf
irm

 th
is

. 
Th

is
 w

ill 
be

 c
he

ck
ed

 w
he

n 
P

Is
 a

re
 

ch
ec

ke
d 

th
is

 y
ea

r. 
 

M
at

er
ia

l  
31

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
6 

Ju
ne

 2
00

6 

3 
R

oa
ds

 a
nd

 L
ig

ht
in

g 
P

I 
4 

- 
S

tre
et

 L
ig

ht
in

g 
C

ol
um

ns
 -

 
Th

e 
S

er
vi

ce
 

sh
ou

ld
 

co
m

pl
et

e 
th

e 
in

ve
nt

or
y 

of
 

st
re

et
 l

ig
ht

in
g 

co
lu

m
ns

 a
s 

so
on

 a
s 

po
ss

ib
le

 

H
ea

d 
of

 R
oa

ds
 &

 
Am

en
ity

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
vi

a 
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 
M

an
ag

er
 

D
o 

no
t h

av
e 

re
co

rd
s 

to
 s

ho
w

 a
ge

 o
f 

co
lu

m
ns

. I
nv

en
to

ry
 in

 p
ro

gr
es

s,
 p

la
n 

to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

ph
ys

ic
al

 c
ou

nt
 o

ve
r t

he
 

su
m

m
er

 m
on

th
s.

 
In

tro
du

ce
d 

an
nu

al
 v

is
ua

l i
ns

pe
ct

io
ns

. 
C

ol
um

ns
 to

 b
e 

re
pl

ac
ed

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
co

nd
iti

on
 n

ot
 a

ge
. 

Th
is

 w
ill 

be
 c

he
ck

ed
 w

he
n 

P
Is

 a
re

 
ch

ec
ke

d 
th

is
 y

ea
r. 

 

M
at

er
ia

l  
31

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
6 

31
 A

ug
us

t 2
00

6 

4 
C

or
po

ra
te

 M
an

ag
em

en
t -

 P
I 

4 
- 

S
ic

kn
es

s 
A

bs
en

ce
: 

P
er

so
nn

el
 E

du
ca

tio
n 

ne
ed

 
to

 
re

vi
ew

 
of

 
th

e 
da

ta
 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
an

d 
an

al
ys

is
 

pr
oc

es
s 

fo
r 

th
is

 
PI

 
to

 
en

su
re

 th
at

 it
 c

om
pl

ie
s 

w
ith

 
th

e 
P

I r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 o

f A
ud

it 
S

co
tla

nd
, 

A
de

qu
at

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 

pa
pe

rs
 

m
us

t 
be

 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

in
 o

rd
er

 t
o 

ba
ck

 
up

 
th

e 
fin

al
 

P
I 

fig
ur

es
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 
fo

r 
au

di
t 

an
d 

pu
bl

ic
at

io
n 

 

H
ea

d 
of

 P
la

nn
in

g 
&

 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 v

ia
 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
P

er
so

nn
el

 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tio
n  

S
ys

te
m

 n
ow

 in
 p

la
ce

 a
nd

 b
ei

ng
 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 a

ss
is

t i
n 

ac
cu

ra
te

 re
po

rti
ng

 fo
r t

hi
s 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 in

di
ca

to
r. 

A
ll 

fig
ur

es
 a

re
 

on
 th

e 
S

ee
m

is
 s

ys
te

m
 a

nd
 h

ar
d 

co
pi

es
 a

re
 a

ls
o 

av
ai

la
bl

e.
 

Th
is

 w
ill 

be
 c

on
fir

m
ed

 w
he

n 
P

Is
 a

re
 

ch
ec

ke
d 

th
is

 y
ea

r. 

M
at

er
ia

l  
31

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
6 

Ju
ne

 2
00

6 

Page 42



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

F:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

3\
5\

5\
A

I0
00

29
55

3\
In

tE
xt

Fo
llo

w
U

pA
pp

en
di

x2
A

ct
io

nP
oi

nt
sB

eh
in

dS
ch

ed
ul

eI
nt

er
na

lA
ud

itf
or

A
ud

itC
om

m
it

te
e2

0.
do

c 

 I- 
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f t
he

 P
ro

gr
es

s 
of

 th
e 

Jo
in

t F
ut

ur
e 

A
ge

nd
a 

 R
ef

 
A

ct
io

n 
Po

in
t /

 
Im

pl
ic

at
io

n 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t /
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
Ex

pl
an

at
io

n 
fo

r d
el

ay
 

R
is

k 
G

ra
di

ng
 

O
rig

in
al

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
10

 
Th

er
e 

ar
e 

a 
nu

m
be

r o
f k

ey
 

st
ep

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
in

 th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 s
in

gl
e 

sh
ar

ed
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t.  

H
ea

d 
of

 In
te

gr
at

ed
 

C
ar

e 
S

S
A

 is
 u

se
d 

ex
te

ns
iv

el
y 

ac
ro

ss
 a

l o
f 

th
e 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
. V

er
si

on
 6

 o
f t

he
 

C
ar

en
ap

E
 (R

is
k 

As
se

ss
m

en
t) 

ha
s 

be
en

 p
ilo

te
d 

in
 O

ba
n 

an
d 

is
 b

ei
ng

 
sl

ow
ly

 ro
lle

d-
ou

t a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 a

lo
ng

si
de

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 fo
r s

ta
ff 

on
 ri

sk
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t. 
In

 re
la

tio
n 

to
 d

at
a 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
an

d 
an

al
ys

is
 a

 d
at

ab
as

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 d

es
ig

ne
d 

th
at

 is
 n

ow
 

ga
th

er
in

g 
S

S
A

 d
at

a 
fo

rJ
P

IA
F6

 v
ia

 a
ll 

se
rv

ic
es

 c
en

tre
s 

on
 a

 m
on

th
ly

 b
as

is
. 

Th
is

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

is
 b

ei
ng

 p
ro

ce
ss

ed
 

by
 th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 te

am
 a

nd
 

re
di

st
rib

ut
ed

 to
 th

e 
te

am
 le

ad
er

s 
on

 a
 

m
on

th
ly

 b
as

is
. U

si
ng

 th
e 

SS
A

 a
s 

th
e 

co
re

 d
oc

um
en

t, 
tra

in
in

g 
is

 n
ow

 
pr

og
re

ss
in

g 
in

 re
la

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
In

di
ca

to
r 

of
 R

el
at

iv
e 

N
ee

d 
(Io

R
N

.T
hi

s 
is

 b
ei

ng
 

re
po

rte
d 

vi
a 

th
e 

S
S

A
 d

at
ab

as
e 

on
 a

 
m

on
th

ly
 b

as
is

. 
 

M
at

er
ia

l 
31

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
5  

30
 A

ug
us

t 2
00

6 

           

Page 43



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 

F:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

3\
5\

5\
A

I0
00

29
55

3\
In

tE
xt

Fo
llo

w
U

pA
pp

en
di

x2
A

ct
io

nP
oi

nt
sB

eh
in

dS
ch

ed
ul

eI
nt

er
na

lA
ud

itf
or

A
ud

itC
om

m
it

te
e2

0.
do

c 

J 
– 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f C

as
h 

&
 In

co
m

e 
B

an
ki

ng
 

 R
ef

 
A

ct
io

n 
Po

in
t /

 
Im

pl
ic

at
io

n 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t /
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
Ex

pl
an

at
io

n 
fo

r d
el

ay
 

R
is

k 
G

ra
di

ng
 

O
rig

in
al

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
6 

In
co

m
e 

fro
m

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 

co
nv

en
ie

nc
es

 in
 O

ba
n 

an
d 

Fi
on

np
ho

rt 
do

 n
ot

 re
co

nc
ile

 
to

 th
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 in
co

m
e 

pe
r 

th
e 

tu
rn

st
ile

 re
ad

in
g.

  O
n 

se
ve

ra
l o

cc
as

io
ns

 n
eg

at
iv

e 
va

ria
nc

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l c

as
h 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
re

co
rd

ed
. 

R
oa

ds
 a

nd
 A

m
en

ity
 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
M

an
ag

er
 

fo
r O

ba
n,

 L
or

n 
&

 
th

e 
Is

le
s  

Th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 h
as

 a
gr

ee
d 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t o

r 
re

pa
ir 

of
 tu

rn
st

ile
s,

 w
hi

ch
 h

av
e 

be
en

 
fo

un
d 

to
 b

e 
of

 a
 le

ss
 ro

bu
st

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
th

an
 

ex
pe

ct
ed

. 

Fu
nd

am
en

ta
l  

06
 A

ug
us

t 2
00

4 
01

 A
ug

us
t 2

00
6 

  

Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 

F:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

3\
5\

5\
A

I0
00

29
55

3\
Ex

te
rn

al
an

dI
nt

er
na

lfo
llo

w
up

A
pp

en
di

x4
0.

do
c 

A
ct

io
n 

Po
in

ts
 B

eh
in

d 
Sc

he
du

le
 - 

A
ud

it 
Sc

ot
la

nd
 R

ep
or

ts
 

  A
 –

Pr
ud

en
tia

l C
od

e 
 R

ef
 

A
ct

io
n 

Po
in

t /
 Im

pl
ic

at
io

n 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t /
 H

ea
d 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Ex
pl

an
at

io
n 

fo
r d

el
ay

 
 

R
is

k 
G

ra
di

ng
 

O
rig

in
al

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
5 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 a
re

 to
 d

ev
is

e 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
t a

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
pr

oj
ec

t 
op

tio
n 

ap
pr

ai
sa

l p
ro

ce
ss

. 
 

H
ea

d 
of

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
Fi

na
nc

e  
Th

is
 w

ill 
be

 a
dd

re
ss

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 th
e 

B
es

t 
V

al
ue

 A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n.
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
31

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
5 

30
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

06
 

   B
 –

 2
00

4/
05

 A
ud

it 
– 

Fi
na

l R
ep

or
t t

o 
M

em
be

rs
 

 R
ef

 
A

ct
io

n 
Po

in
t /

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
Ex

pl
an

at
io

n 
fo

r d
el

ay
 

 
R

is
k 

G
ra

di
ng

 

O
rig

in
al

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
24

 
A

ss
et

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 

va
lu

at
io

n:
  N

o 
re

vi
ew

 o
f n

on
-

op
er

at
io

na
l a

ss
et

s 
to

ok
 p

la
ce

 
in

 2
00

4/
05

 a
nd

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

be
en

 u
na

bl
e 

to
 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

 th
at

 a
ss

et
s 

ha
ve

 
be

en
 s

ys
te

m
at

ic
al

ly
 re

vi
ew

ed
 

fo
r i

m
pa

irm
en

t. 
 R

is
k:

  T
he

 c
at

eg
or

is
at

io
n 

an
d 

va
lu

at
io

n 
of

 fi
xe

d 
as

se
ts

 in
 

th
e 

ba
la

nc
e 

sh
ee

t m
ay

 b
e 

m
is

-s
ta

te
d.

 

H
ea

d 
of

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
Fi

na
nc

e 
B

ei
ng

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 th
e 

cl
os

ur
e 

of
 

th
e 

A
nn

ua
l A

cc
ou

nt
s.

 
M

ed
iu

m
 

31
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

6 
30

 J
un

e 
20

06
 

26
 

Tr
ad

in
g 

A
cc

ou
nt

s:
  o

ne
 o

f t
he

 
te

st
s 

of
 w

he
th

er
 tr

ad
in

g 
ac

co
un

ts
 a

re
 re

qu
ire

d 
is

 
w

he
th

er
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
is

 
ch

ar
ge

d 
on

 a
 b

as
is

 o
th

er
 

th
an

 a
 s

tra
ig

ht
fo

rw
ar

d 
re

ch
ar

ge
of

co
st

H
ow

ev
er

a

H
ea

d 
of

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
Fi

na
nc

e 
S

er
vi

ce
 L

ev
el

 A
gr

ee
m

en
ts

 (S
LA

s)
 a

re
 in

 
pl

ac
e 

th
at

 d
et

ai
l t

he
 b

as
is

 o
f r

ec
ha

rg
es

. 
R

ec
ha

rg
es

 h
av

e 
be

en
 p

ro
ce

ss
ed

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
S

LA
s.

 T
he

re
 a

re
 n

o 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 y
ea

r e
nd

 
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
.  

S
LA

s 
ar

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 b

ei
ng

 
re

vi
ew

ed
 w

ith
 A

ud
it 

S
co

tla
nd

. 

M
ed

iu
m

 
31

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
6 

 

Page 47



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 

F:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

3\
5\

5\
A

I0
00

29
55

3\
Ex

te
rn

al
an

dI
nt

er
na

lfo
llo

w
up

A
pp

en
di

x4
0.

do
c 

R
ef

 
A

ct
io

n 
Po

in
t /

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
Ex

pl
an

at
io

n 
fo

r d
el

ay
 

 
R

is
k 

G
ra

di
ng

 

O
rig

in
al

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
re

ch
ar

ge
 o

f c
os

t. 
 H

ow
ev

er
, a

 
nu

m
be

r o
f s

ig
ni

fic
an

t y
ea

r-
en

d 
in

co
m

e 
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
 

w
er

e 
m

ad
e 

to
 th

e 
W

as
te

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t T
ra

di
ng

 
A

cc
ou

nt
 a

nd
 th

e 
C

at
er

in
g 

an
d 

C
le

an
in

g 
Tr

ad
in

g 
A

cc
ou

nt
 w

hi
ch

 re
pr

es
en

t 
re

ch
ar

ge
s 

ba
se

d 
on

 a
ct

ua
l 

co
st

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
 p

ro
vi

si
on

. 
 R

is
k:

  I
nt

er
na

l r
ec

ha
rg

es
 a

t 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 th
e 

ye
ar

 a
re

 
in

co
ns

is
te

nt
 w

ith
 th

e 
co

nc
ep

t 
of

 tr
ad

in
g 

an
d 

do
 n

ot
 

re
pr

es
en

t p
ro

pe
r a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
pr

ac
tic

e.
 

    C
 –

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 R
ef

 
A

ct
io

n 
Po

in
t /

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
Ex

pl
an

at
io

n 
fo

r d
el

ay
 

 
R

is
k 

G
ra

di
ng

 

O
rig

in
al

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
1 

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
no

 c
le

ar
 li

nk
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 s

et
 

ou
t i

n 
th

e 
ov

er
al

l c
or

po
ra

te
 

pl
an

 a
nd

 th
e 

ke
y 

th
em

es
 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

in
 in

di
vi

du
al

 
se

rv
ic

e 
pl

an
s.

 

 

P
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

S
tra

te
gy

 
M

an
ag

er
 

Th
is

 w
ill 

be
 a

dd
re

ss
ed

 in
 th

e 
B

es
t V

al
ue

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t a
nd

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n.
 

 
31

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
6 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6 

  

Page 48



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 

F:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

3\
5\

5\
A

I0
00

29
55

3\
Ex

te
rn

al
an

dI
nt

er
na

lfo
llo

w
up

A
pp

en
di

x4
0.

do
c 

D
 –

 B
us

in
es

s 
C

on
tin

ui
ty

 P
la

nn
in

g 
R

ev
ie

w
 

 R
ef

 
A

ct
io

n 
Po

in
t /

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
Ex

pl
an

at
io

n 
fo

r d
el

ay
 

 
R

is
k 

G
ra

di
ng

 

O
rig

in
al

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
1 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

se
t-u

p 
a 

S
tra

te
gi

c 
R

is
k 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

G
ro

up
, 

w
hi

ch
 is

 re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r 

m
an

ag
in

g 
ris

k.
  T

hi
s 

gr
ou

p 
pr

od
uc

ed
 a

 ri
sk

 re
gi

st
er

, 
ov

er
sa

w
 th

e 
fo

rm
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
Lo

ss
 C

on
tro

l G
ro

up
s 

an
d 

su
pe

rv
is

ed
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
of

 b
us

in
es

s 
co

nt
in

ui
ty

 p
la

ns
 

fo
r a

 p
an

de
m

ic
 in

flu
en

za
 

ep
id

em
ic

.  
 

 C
ur

re
nt

 b
us

in
es

s 
co

nt
in

ui
ty

 
pl

an
s 

do
 n

ot
 c

ov
er

 m
an

y 
of

 
th

e 
m

ai
n 

ris
ks

 fa
ci

ng
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il.
  W

ith
ou

t p
ro

pe
r 

bu
si

ne
ss

 c
on

tin
ui

ty
 p

la
ns

 in
 

pl
ac

e 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill 
fin

d 
it 

di
ffi

cu
lt 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 th

e 
le

ve
l o

f 
se

rv
ic

es
 th

at
 it

s 
ci

tiz
en

s 
ex

pe
ct

. 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

er
 

Ti
m

es
ca

le
 re

vi
se

d 
du

e 
to

 d
ep

ar
tu

re
 o

f 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
R

is
k 

M
an

ag
er

. N
ew

 
ap

po
in

tm
en

t n
ot

 li
ke

ly
 to

 b
e 

in
 p

os
t b

ef
or

e 
Ju

ne
 2

00
6.

 

H
ig

h 
31

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
00

6 
31

31
 A

ug
us

t 
20

06
 A

ug
us

t  
20

06
 

            

Page 49



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 

F:
\m

od
er

ng
ov

\D
at

a\
A

ge
nd

aI
te

m
D

oc
s\

3\
5\

5\
A

I0
00

29
55

3\
Ex

te
rn

al
an

dI
nt

er
na

lfo
llo

w
up

A
pp

en
di

x4
0.

do
c 

E 
– 

R
ep

or
t o

n 
th

e 
20

02
/0

3 
A

ud
it 

  R
ef

 
A

ct
io

n 
Po

in
t /

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t /

 H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
Ex

pl
an

at
io

n 
fo

r d
el

ay
 

 
R

is
k 

G
ra

di
ng

 

O
rig

in
al

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 

R
ev

is
ed

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 
5 

Th
e 

pr
ac

tic
al

 s
te

ps
 fo

r 
de

m
on

st
ra

tin
g 

an
nu

al
ly

 th
at

 
as

se
ts

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

sy
st

em
at

ic
al

ly
 re

vi
ew

ed
 fo

r 
im

pa
irm

en
t s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
do

cu
m

en
te

d 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
te

d.
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

In
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 

B
ei

ng
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
cl

os
ur

e 
of

 
th

e 
A

nn
ua

l A
cc

ou
nt

s.
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
31

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
5 

30
 J

un
e 

20
06

 

  

Page 50



  
ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 
FINANCE 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE

9 JUNE 2006
    
  
UPDATE ON ASSET MANAGEMENT 
  
  
  
1. SUMMARY 
    
  The Audit Committee, in September 2005, requested that they be provided with a regular 

update on progress with the asset register and implementation of asset management 
strategy/planning. The attached appendices provide an update on the progress in 
implementing the Asset Management Strategy and sets out recommendations for bringing 
it to a successful conclusion. It also supersedes the reports prepared to date by the Chief 
Asset Manager. 

    
2. RECOMMENDATION 
    
    2.1 The contents of this report are noted. 
    
3. DETAILS 
    
    3.1 On the 2nd of May 2006, a report was submitted to the SMT by the Director of 

Development Services and the Head of Strategic Finance updating the 
management team on the process of implementing an Asset Management Strategy 
and setting out recommendations to continue progress. See Appendix 1. 

    
    3.3 The SMT agreed to establish a project board and 4 project groups. The project 

groups have been asked to report back to the project board by the 26th of May 
2006. The remit for the groups is that they meet in May and report back to the 
project board with a position statement of where the Council is in respect of the 
tasks, and a project plan with timescales for how the gap will be bridged from the 
current position and where the Council wants to be. This will enable a report on 
current position and progress to be presented to the Audit Committee on the 9th of 
June 2006. An extract from the SMT is provided in Appendix 2. 

    
4. CONCLUSION 
    
  A progress report will be provided to the Audit Committee. 

 
5. IMPLICATIONS 
  5.1 Policy: None 
        
  5.2 Financial: None 
        
  5.3 Personnel: None 
        
  5.4 Legal: None 
        
  5.5 Equal Opportunities: None 
 
 For further information please contact Ian Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager (01546 604216) 
  

Agenda Item 8Page 51



Ian Nisbet 
Internal Audit Manager   5th May 2006. 5Mayfinalreport5May 

Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2 

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL 
 

STRATEGIC MANAGEMENT TEAM 

Extract note of the meeting held on Tuesday 2nd May 2006  
 

4 Asset Management Strategy  
 
There was submitted a draft report by Director of 
Development Services and Head of Strategic Finance 
updating the management team on the process of 
implementing an Asset Management Strategy and 
bringing forward recommendations to take this forward. 
    
After detailed discussions the Strategic Management 
Team: 
 
 a)  noted the progress made to date;  
 
 b)  agreed to establish a project board and four project  

teams with the teams in paragraph 3.18 and 
paragraph 3.19 being combined and chaired by 
Bruce West; 

 
c)    agreed that the project teams report back to the 

Project Board by 26th May 2006 with a report 
coming to  SMT on 13th June. (It was also noted 
that a report will be going to the Audit Committee at 
their next meeting). 
 

d) Directors to advise Grace Leitch by Friday 5th May 
of their nominees to the board and the respective 
groups so that at the next meeting the Strategic 
Management Team has a picture of the overall 
representation. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
George 
Harper/Bruce 
West 
13/6/06 
 
 
All Directors 
5/5/06 

 

Page 61



Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



  
ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 
STRATEGIC FINANCE 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE

9 JUNE 2006
    
  
HMIE REPORT 2004 – 05  
  
  
  
1. SUMMARY 
  The Education Service of Argyll & Bute Council was inspected during the period 

December 2004 to January 2005 by HM Inspectorate of Education (HMIE), as part of a 5 
year national inspection programme of all local authorities in Scotland. In June 2005 
HMIE issued their inspection report. This outlined service key strengths plus areas 
requiring improvement. The HMIE review found that the service demonstrated good and 
improving performance and indicated areas where further improvement could be made. 

    
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
    
    2.1 The contents of this report are noted and to be followed up by Internal Audit. 
    
3. DETAILS 
    
    3.1 HMIe & Education Service management at the beginning of September 2005 

agreed an Action Plan, which has 4 main action points, with sub sections detailing 
areas of concern, management comment, the responsible officer and a time frame 
for implementation. This was presented to and approved by the Strategic Policy 
Committee (SPC) on the 8th of September 2005, and an update on progress with 
implementation was provided to the Audit Committee at the last meeting.  

    
  3.2 As at the 19th of May 2006, Education Service management have reported to 

Internal Audit that all of the action points are being progressed with some sub 
section items complete. HMIE will return to carry out an implementation review in 
the academic year 2006 – 2007. Management comment is provided in Appendix 1. 

    
4. CONCLUSIONS 
    
  Internal Audit will monitor progress by Education Service management as they 

address the issues contained in the agreed Action Plan.  
  
5. IMPLICATIONS 
  5.1 Policy: None 
        
  5.2 Financial: None 
        
  5.3 Personnel: None 
        
  5.4 Legal: None 
        
  5.5 Equal Opportunities: None 
 
For further information please contact Ian Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager (01546 604216) 
Ian Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager.   29th May 2006. 29Mayfinalreport29May. 

Agenda Item 9Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



  
ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 
STRATEGIC FINANCE 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE

9 JUNE 2006
    
  
AUDIT SCOTLAND - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS STRATEGY 2005 – 2006  
  
  
  
1. SUMMARY 
  This report introduces 2 Audit Scotland documents:  

 
• Financial Statements Strategy 2005 - 2006; and  
• Audit Risk Analysis and Plan 2005 – 2006.  

 
Both documents are attached in Appendix 1 & 2. 

   
    
2. RECOMMENDATION 
    
    2.1 The contents of this report are noted. 
    
3. DETAILS 
    
    3.1 The first report contained in Appendix 1 provides Argyll & Bute Council with a 

clear understanding of the approach to be followed by Audit Scotland for the audit 
of the Council financial statements for the year ending 31st March 2006.  

    
  3.2 The second report attached in Appendix 2 summarises the key risks facing the 

Council and details the audit work that Audit Scotland will undertake for their 
review of the 2005 – 2006 accounts. 

    
4. CONCLUSION 
  
  Internal Audit will note the contents of both reports.  
  
5. IMPLICATIONS 
  5.1 Policy: None 
        
  5.2 Financial: None 
        
  5.3 Personnel: None 
        
  5.4 Legal: None 
        
  5.5 Equal Opportunities: None 
  
For further information please contact Ian Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager (01546 604216) 
  
Ian Nisbet 
Internal Audit Manager   5 May 2006 
5Mayfinalreport5May 

Agenda Item 10Page 65



Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1 

Argyll and Bute Council 
Financial Statements Strategy 2005/06 

 

          March 2006 

           
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

www.audit-scotland.gov.uk 
 

Page 67



APPENDIX 1 

F:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\5\5\AI00029556\FinancialStatementsStrategy0506Appendix10.doc 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audit Scotland, on behalf of the Auditor General for Scotland, is responsible 

for: 

• providing independent reports to the Auditor General and the wider 

public on how public money is spent, what it achieves and what 

improvements can be made 

• providing independent reports to public sector bodies on their 

finances, their corporate governance and how they manage their 

performance and secure value for money 

• providing an independent opinion on whether the annual financial 

statements of public sector bodies have been prepared in 

accordance with statutory requirements 

 
 
 

Page 68



 

 

 
 

Contents          
 

Introduction          1 

Format of accounts        1 

Responsibility for the preparation of accounts    1 

Scope of the audit         2 

Audit approach         2 

Materiality          5 

2005/06 audit issues        6 

Timetable          7 

Staffing           7 

Appendix 1 – Financial statements audit timetable   8 

Page 69



 

1 

Introduction 

1.1 The purpose of this plan is to provide Argyll and Bute Council with a clear 

understanding of our approach to the audit of the financial statements for the year 

ending 31st March 2006. 

Format of the accounts 

2.1 The financial statements should be prepared in accordance with the ‘Code of Practice 

on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom’ (ACOP), which is issued by the 

CIPFA/LASAAC Joint Committee.  

2.2 ACOP is reviewed and updated annually and the 2005 ACOP, with application to 

2005/06, was issued in June 2005.  

Responsibility for the preparation of accounts 

3.1 It is the responsibility of Argyll and Bute Council and the Head of Strategic Finance, as 

proper officer, to prepare the financial statements in accordance with ACOP.  This 

means: 

• acting within the law and ensuring the regularity of transactions by putting 

in place systems of internal control to ensure that financial transactions 

are in accordance with the appropriate authority; 

• maintaining proper accounting records and observing proper accounting 

practices;  

• preparing financial statements timeously which present fairly the financial 

position of the council at 31 March 2006 and its income and expenditure 

for the year then ended; and 

• preparing an explanatory foreword. 

3.2 The main contact for audit staff in the course of the financial statements audit was 

identified as the Corporate Finance Manager, within Strategic Finance, who has overall 

responsibility in the detailed preparations and co-ordination of the financial statements. 

 

Page 70



 

2 

Scope of the audit 

4.1 Our responsibilities, as independent auditors, derive from the Local Government 

(Scotland) Act 1973 and are summarised in Audit Scotland’s Code of Audit Practice 

approved by the Accounts Commission for Scotland, and guided by the auditing 

profession’s ethical guidance.  We are required to audit the financial statements in 

accordance with International Standards on Auditing and to give an opinion: 

• whether the financial statements present fairly the financial position of the 

council as at 31 March 2006 and its income and expenditure for the year 

then ended; 

• as to whether the council has kept proper accounting records, or if we 

have not received all the information and explanations we require for our 

audit; and 

• whether the statement on the system of internal financial control complies 

with ACOP and report if the statement does not comply with the guidance 

or if it is misleading or inconsistent with other information we are aware of 

from our audit. 

4.2 We are not required to consider whether the statement covers all risks and controls, or 

form an opinion on the effectiveness of the council’s corporate governance procedures 

or its risk and control procedures. 

4.3 In addition we must consider the other information published with the financial 

statements and consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any 

apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements.  

Audit approach 

5.1 Our audit approach is based on an annual integrated assessment of risk across our 

Code of Audit Practice responsibilities in relation to governance, performance and 

opinion (on financial statements).  This approach includes: 

• understanding the business of the council and the risk exposure which 

could impact on the financial statements; 

• assessing the key systems of internal control, and considering how risk 

exposure in these systems could effect the financial statements; 

Page 71



 

3 

• identifying major transaction streams, balances and areas of estimation, 

understanding how the council will include these in the financial 

statements and developing audit objectives for these;  

• assessing the risk of material misstatement in the financial statements, in 

conjunction with our evaluation of inherent risk and control environment 

risk as part of our integrated risk assessment approach; and 

• determining the nature, timing and extent of our testing programme to 

provide us with sufficient appropriate audit evidence as to whether the 

financial statements are free of material misstatement (see 5.4-5.5 below). 

5.2 Through this approach we have also considered and documented the sources of 

assurance which will allow us to make best use of our resources and focus testing on 

higher risk areas during the audit of the financial statements. The main areas of 

assurance for the audit come from planned management action, internal audit 

coverage and reliance on systems of internal control.   Management action being relied 

on for 2005/06 includes: 

• comprehensive closedown procedures and timetable being issued to 

relevant staff; 

• clear responsibilities for provision of accounts and working papers being 

agreed; 

• the impact of the extended ACOP requirement for group accounts being 

considered; 

• delivery of unaudited accounts to agreed timescales with appropriate 

working papers package;  

• completion of the internal audit programme for 2005/06; and 

• timely receipt of the letter of representation (ISA 580). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 72



 

4 

5.3 We have reviewed the internal audit structure and function in accordance with 

International Standards on Auditing 610 (Considering the work of Internal Audit) and 

identified areas of their work on which we intend to rely for a number of aspects of our 

programme of work during 2005/06.  Specific to the audit of the financial statements 

and our Code responsibilities in this regard we hope to place formal reliance on the 

following internal audit work: 

• Payroll 

• Council tax and NDR 

• Capital accounting 

• Capital contracts 

• Cash income and banking 

• Payments to voluntary bodies 

• Unified benefits 

• Contract hire and operating leases 

• Creditor payments and purchasing 

• Debtor accounts 

• Housing rents 

• General ledger operations 

• Government and European grants 

• Treasury management 

• Tendering procedures  

5.4 The audit of the financial statements is completed over three stages; the first stage was 

carried out between January and February 2006 as part our ‘Understanding the 

Business’ review which fed into the integrated risk assessment approach.  Between 

March and May 2006 we will complete a programme of interim visits, which includes 

testing the higher level controls we are relying on (in conjunction with our wider 

governance review); and carrying out early analytical and substantive procedures on 

account information which is available before the submission of the unaudited financial 

statement.  

Page 73



 

5 

5.5 We will evaluate the results of any early work conducted prior to the submission of the 

unaudited financial statements and consider the impact on the final audit programme.  

The early work on the financial statements allows us to focus the final stages of the 

audit, during June – August 2006, on the key risks and audit objectives for disclosure 

and significant areas of judgement.  

5.6 At the completion of the financial statements (opinion) audit we will provide the Head of 

Strategic Finance with a management letter containing observations and 

recommendations on significant matters which have arisen in the course of the audit. 

Materiality 

6.1 We consider materiality and its relationship with audit risk when planning the nature, 

timing and extent of our audit and conducting our audit programme.  Specifically with 

regard to the financial statements we assess the materiality of uncorrected 

misstatements, both individually and collectively. 

6.2 Materiality is an expression of the relative significance or importance of a particular 

matter in the context of financial statements as a whole.  A matter is material if its 

omission would reasonably influence the decisions of an addressee of the independent 

auditor’s report (the opinion); likewise a misstatement is material if it would have a 

similar influence.  Materiality may also be considered in the context of any individual 

statement within the financial statements or of individual items included in them.  

Materiality is not capable of general mathematical definition as it has both qualitative 

and quantitative aspects. 

6.3 When considering, in the context of a possible qualification, whether the misstatement 

of an item, or a number of items taken together, is material in terms of its monetary 

value, we use professional judgement, experience and internal guidelines from peers 

as broad guidance in regard to considering whether the results of tests of detail are 

material.   

6.4 An item may be judged material for reasons other than its monetary or quantitative 

value.  An inaccuracy, which would not normally be regarded as material by amount, 

may be important for other reasons.  When such an item affects a critical point in the 

accounts, its materiality has to be viewed in a narrower context (for example the failure 

to achieve a statutory requirement, an item contrary to law, or areas affected by central 

government control).  Again we use professional judgement, experience and internal 

guidelines from peers to determine when such matters would fall to be covered in an 

explanatory paragraph, rather than as a qualification to the audit opinion.   

Page 74



 

6 

2005/06 audit issues 

7.1 We have listed below a number of national and local issues which may impact on the 

financial statements this year.  During the period until the submission of the unaudited 

financial statements, we will liaise with senior officers on any new or emerging issues. 

National Issues 

• modified arrangements for the preparation of group accounts; 

• operation of the prudential code in funding capital investment; and in the 

changes regarding the classification of certain revenue works previously 

charged as capital under the old section 94 arrangements; 

• risks associated with the financial costs of equal pay and single status; 

and 

• the classification of leases established under Section 94 as finance 

leases, now reclassified as operating leases under SSAP21. 

Local Issues 

• achievement of statutory and other financial targets, including the 

requirements for trading accounts; 

• the continuing review of council services to ensure that trading activities 

are appropriately disclosed; 

• consideration of disclosures for the Schools PPP and accounting 

treatment; 

• consideration of disclosures with respect to Community Health 

Partnerships; 

• disclosures required in the preparation of group accounts; 

• disclosures in relation to FRS17 (Retirement Benefits); 

• approval and application of policy in respect of reserves and balances, 

and 

• the appropriate accounting treatment of lender option borrowing option 

arrangements (LOBOs). 

 

Page 75



 

7 

Timetable 

8.1 Under the Local Government (Scotland) 1973 Act, there is a requirement for the 

financial statements to be made ready for audit and submitted to the council and the 

Controller of Audit within three months of the year-end, i.e. 30th June.   

8.2 There is a non-statutory target for audit completion of 30 September and both auditors 

and the council have a responsibility to ensure that this is met.  A timetable for the final 

audit phase of our work programme is included at appendix 1 of this plan, which takes 

account of submission requirements, planned Audit Committee dates and audit 

resource availability.   In respect of the detailed list of working papers required for the 

financial statements audit, the council provides a standard list of working papers which 

covers our requirements. 

Staffing  

9.1 The main officers with responsibility for the production and completion of the financial 

statements within Argyll and Bute Council are: 

Head of Strategic Finance Bruce West 

Corporate Finance Manager  Moira Miller 

Corporate Financial Control 
Officer 

Kirsty McLean 

 

9.2 The core audit team to be deployed are as follows: 

Assistant Director of Audit Angela Cassels CPFA 

Client Manager David Jamieson CPFA  

Senior Auditor Ian Bell CPFA 

Auditor Laurence Slavin 

Page 76



 

8 

Appendix 1: 

Financial statements audit timetable 
 
Key Stage Date 

Close-down procedures  March 2006 

Committee approval of unaudited financial statements June 2006 

Submission of unaudited financial statements with working papers package 
including ACOP checklist 30 June 2006 

Progress meetings with lead officers on emerging issues July / August 2006* 

Objection period  July / August 2006* 

Receipt of management representation letter September 2006 * 

Final clearance meeting with Head of Strategic Finance  September 2006 * 

Report to Audit Committee on the audit of financial statements (ISA 260), 
signing of opinion September 2006 * 

Draft members letter issued September 2006 * 

Final clearance meeting (members letter) with the Chief Executive and Head of 
Strategic Finance  Mid October * 

Council meeting to consider financial statements and report to members November/ 
December 2006 

 
* Actual dates to be confirmed 

Page 77



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2 

 
 

 

 

 
Argyll and Bute Council 
Audit Risk Analysis and Plan 2005/06 

 

               March 2006 

           
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 
www.audit-scotland.gov.uk 

Page 79



APPENDIX 2 

 
 

 

 

 
 

Contents          
 

Summary of planned audit activity    1 

Introduction        1 

Our responsibilities               2 

Our approach        3 

Strategic risk analysis      4 

Summary assurance plan                     6 

Reporting arrangements         6 

Quality control             8 

Fees and resources              8 

Appendices 

Appendix A:  Summary assurance plan              10 

Appendix B:  Reliance on internal audit   31 

Appendix C:  Audit team         32 

 

 

Page 80



 

    1

Introduction 

1. Our audit is focused on the identification and assessment of the key risks to Argyll and Bute 

Council in achieving its business objectives.  We also assess the risk of material misstatement 

or irregularity in Argyll and Bute Council’s financial statements. This report summarises the key 

risks facing the council and sets out the audit work that we propose to undertake in 2005/06.  

Our plan reflects: 

• your local risks and priorities; 

• current national risks relevant to your local circumstances; 

• the impact of changing International Auditing Standards; 

• our responsibilities under the Code of Audit Practice as approved by the Accounts 

Commission; and 

• issues brought forward from last year’s audit. 

Summary of planned audit activity 
Based on our analysis of the risks facing Argyll and Bute Council, our planned work in 
2005/06 includes: 
 

• review of the council’s arrangements to manage a number of key risks including 

improving performance, financial strategy and sustainability, workforce planning, 

joint working and progress with the efficient government agenda; 

• review of the council’s arrangements for transferring its housing stock and an 

assessment of the relevant financial assumptions; 

• issuing local reports arising from identified risk areas as required; 

• initial follow-up work following the publication of the best value report on the council 

in February 2006; 

• audit of the financial statements and provision of an opinion on whether they 

present fairly the financial position of the council and its income and expenditure for 

the year.  Audit of whole of government accounts; and  

• audit of a number of specific grant claims. 

Page 81



 

    2

Our responsibilities 

2. Audit in the public sector goes beyond simply providing assurance on the financial statements 

and the organisation’s internal control environment.  We are also required to provide a view on 

performance, regularity and the organisation’s use of resources.  In doing this, we aim to 

support improvement and accountability. 

3. In carrying out our audit, we seek to gain assurance that: 
 

• the council has good corporate governance arrangements in place which reflect the three 

fundamental principles of openness, integrity and accountability; 

• the council has made proper arrangements for securing best value in its use of resources 

and is complying with its community planning duties;  

• the council proactively manages and reviews its performance in line with its strategic and 

operational objectives;  

• the council’s system of recording and processing transactions provides a sound basis for 

the preparation of financial statements and the effective management of the council’s assets 

and interests; 

• the systems of internal control provide an adequate means of preventing or detecting 

material misstatement, error, fraud or corruption; 

• the council’s financial statements present fairly the financial position at the 31 March 2006 

and its income and expenditure for the year then ended; and 

• the council complies with established policies, procedures, laws and regulations. 

 

4. The Local Government in Scotland Act 2003 created new arrangements for the audit of best 

value.  Best value audits are based on a cyclical approach and involve a detailed review of the 

council by a specialist team every three years, with checks on ongoing progress in intervening 

years.  The principles of best value are central to our new audit approach, and the evidence 

and assurances obtained through the annual audit of the council provide valuable input to the 

best value review. A best value audit of the council has recently been completed and was 

published in February 2006.  The council now requires time to consider the report and prepare 

its agreed improvement plan.  Many of the key risks identified in this planning document will 

also be addressed through this process.   In particular, the best value improvement plan is likely 

to include actions relating to performance management, developing the corporate plan and 

linking this to community planning priorities and further developing the council’s financial 

strategy.  We will monitor the actions of the council during the audit, and report on progress as 

part of our annual reporting to the council. 

Page 82



 

    3

Our approach  

5. The key features of our risk-based audit approach include:  

• integration of audit work on financial statements, performance and corporate governance;  

• an increased focus on key business, operational and financial risks;  

• a more streamlined financial statements audit which maximises assurance from existing 

control processes, and  

• development of tailored reviews of the council’s priorities and risks. 

6. Our preliminary audit work has involved us in assessing the significant risks facing your Argyll 

and Bute Council.  This assessment is based on the likelihood of the risks occurring and the 

impact they could have on the delivery of services and the council’s financial position.  We have 

also assessed the adequacy of the arrangements in place to address the identified risk and the 

extent to which these reduce the risk to an acceptable level.  We have used a number audit 

tools to assess the issues and risks facing Argyll and Bute Council, including the Priorities and 

Risks Framework (PRF).  The PRF is a planning tool which helps ensure that audit work is 

properly focused, and takes account of both national and organisational priorities and risks, 

when combined with knowledge of the key priorities and risks for Argyll and Bute Council.  The 

priority areas identified in the 2005/06 local government PRF are: 

 

 

 
Performance 
Improvement 

 
Workforce 
Planning 

 
Financial 
Strategy 

 
Efficient  

Government 

Role and  
Development 

of  
Members 

 
Working for 
Communities 

Strategy  
For 

Housing 
 

Strategic 
Management 

Social 
Services 

 

Page 83



 

    4

Strategic risk analysis  

7. Based on our discussions with staff and a review of supporting information, we have identified 

and assessed the following strategic risk areas for Argyll and Bute Council.  Risks exist in all 

organisations which are committed to continuous improvement and, inevitably, is higher in 

those undergoing significant change.  The objective is to be “risk aware”, and have sound 

processes of risk management, rather than “risk averse”.  Conversely, organisations that seek 

to avoid risk entirely are unlikely to achieve best value. 

Performance management and improvement 

8. The council aims to achieve significant improvements in performance across its activities to 

support its ambition to be recognised as the “leading rural area”. Opportunities for improvement 

in existing processes and increasing expectations of stakeholders present significant 

challenges.  Ultimately, a failure to demonstrably improve may lead to loss of credibility.  

9. The council is currently in the process of implementing a new performance management 

framework.   Although the basic framework has been developed, much remains to be done to 

incorporate the process into the planning and reporting cycles.  The council is still some way off 

from being able to demonstrate that the framework is effective in driving the continuous 

improvement in council services.   

Financial strategy and sustainability 

10. There is a risk that the council is unable to afford the changes needed to improve its 

performance while meeting new demands for its services.  Significant efficiencies are required 

to release funding for the scale of improvement projects planned and to meet the challenges of 

funding settlements and the efficient government agenda.  Increased freedoms are available to 

the council but these require to be used in a way that is affordable, prudent and sustainable. 

11. The council is faced with a challenging time ahead, in terms of ensuring the services it provides 

are affordable and sustainable. Cumulative savings of some £23m require to be identified over 

the two year period from the draft 2006/07 budget (pre-savings) through to meeting the 

2007/08 budget requirement.   The impending equal pay settlement will also impact heavily on 

the council’s reserves.  

12. It is expected that a full transfer of the council’s housing stock will take place towards autumn 

2006.  The council will require to adopt a clear corporate approach to manage the transfer 

process and to address the risk of the transfer failing or not being achieved on satisfactory 

terms. 

Page 84



 

    5

Workforce planning 

13. People play the key role in delivery of high performing services and the council may not have 

the right skills, in the right place, at the right time – both through a period of significant change 

and on a continuing basis.  One of the main challenges faced by the council, due to its 

geographical remoteness and disparity, is in recruiting and retaining high calibre professional 

staff in certain key occupations. 

14. In a period of transition and particularly with the implementation of the single status agreement, 

there are significant risks in relation to the morale of affected staff and the potential for 

industrial relations difficulties. 

Joint working and community planning 

15. There is a risk that the council does not identify and respond effectively to the needs of its local 

communities and individuals.  Services have to be configured in a manner that allows them to 

respond to identified needs and local priorities.   

16. Increasingly the council is dependent on partnership working to deliver service improvements.  

Inevitably much of the development to date has focused on structures and processes. There is 

a key risk that partners are unable or unwilling to work effectively in a joined-up manner and do 

not achieve best value in the use of public resources as a result.   

17. Formal duties to initiate, facilitate and maintain community planning have been placed on the 

council relatively recently.  Partners may be unable to demonstrate sufficient progress in 

improving outcomes within challenging timescales. A similar situation exists with the 

community healthcare partnership, which has had a delayed start due to uncertainly over Argyll 

and Clyde Health Board’s successor bodies. 

Corporate governance and risk 

18. There are a number of challenges to the council’s corporate governance capabilities.  Our 

particular concerns in this area relate to the delays the council has had in developing its asset 

management and risk management strategies, both of which are in the early stages of 

development and implementation.  

 

Efficient government 

Page 85



 

    6

19. The Scottish Executive has set challenging targets for local authorities to liberate resources 

through efficiency savings. Funding settlements will make assumptions as to the amount of 

resources each council is expected to release through efficiencies. Lack of innovation and 

delayed or unsuccessful projects in this area will mean the anticipated level of savings will not 

be released and the council’s resources will come under further pressure. To increase 

efficiency and meet its targets the fundamental business processes across the council will 

need to be revisited. 

20. The measurement of efficiencies is a further key area.  Efficiencies are broadly achieved where 

increased outputs are obtained for the same inputs or reduced inputs are applied for the same 

amount of output.  Without fundamental review of current service delivery there is a risk that 

the council is unable to demonstrate that its efforts are being rewarded by increased efficiency 

of service delivery. 

Summary assurance plan 

21. Within these strategic risk areas there is a range of more detailed risks and these are 

summarised at appendix A.  In most cases actions are either planned or already underway 

within the council to manage key risks.  Details of the management assurances that we have 

received against each of the risks and the audit work to be undertaken on identified residual 

risks are also set out in appendix A.  The work of internal audit plays a key part in the 

management assurance framework and specific areas where we plan to place reliance on their 

work in 2005/06 are outlined at appendix B.  

22. Our Financial Statements Strategy sets out our approach to the audit of Argyll and Bute 

Council’s financial statements.  This provides more detail in how we will approach our audit of 

the financial statements and the significant accounting or financial risks which we have 

identified for 2005/06.  The Financial Statements Strategy, together with this Audit Risk 

Analysis and Plan, form our overall strategy for the audit in 2005/06. 

Reporting arrangements 

23. Matters arising from our audit will be reported on a timely basis during the year and will include 

agreed action plans.  Draft reports will be issued to the head of strategic finance and 

responsible director or senior officer to confirm factual accuracy.  Responses to draft reports 

are expected within four weeks of submission. 

24. A copy of all final agreed reports will be sent to the chief executive, the head of strategic 

finance, responsible director, internal audit and Audit Scotland’s Performance Audit Group.  All 

Page 86



 

    7

formal reports, or summary thereof, will be made available to the Audit Committee for its 

consideration. Regular updates on the completion of audit reports will be provided to the Audit 

Committee. 

25. We will provide a report to Argyll and Bute Council and the Accounts Commission that the audit 

of the financial statements has been completed in accordance with applicable statutory 

requirements, including an opinion on those financial statements.  An annual report to the 

members of Argyll and Bute Council will also be produced to summarise all significant matters 

arising from the audit and overall conclusions about the council’s management of key risks. 

From 2005/06, all annual reports produced by Audit Scotland will be published on our website 

(www.audit-scotland.gov.uk). 

26. The full range of outputs to be delivered by the audit team are summarised below: 

Example Target delivery 
Date 

Governance  

Audit risk analysis and plan 31 March 2006 

Review of internal audit 31 March 2006 

Computer audit report 31 March 2006 

Governance report 1 30 May 2006 

Governance report 2 30 June 2006 

Performance 

Efficient government 31 March 2006 

Statutory performance indicators return  31 August 2006 

Financial statements  

Financial statements strategy 31 March 2006 

Report to Audit Committee in terms of ISA 260 30 September 2006 

Independent auditor’s report on the financial statements 30 September 2006 

Annual report to members of the council and the Controller of Audit 30 September 2006 
(draft) 

31 October (final) 

Audit opinion on whole of government accounts Date to be 
determined 

Certification of DWP/Scottish Executive and European grant claims Various dates 
throughout the year 

Page 87



 

    8

27. In addition to the above work which will result in reports aimed at your organisation, Audit 

Scotland is conducting a programme of studies on behalf of the Auditor General and Accounts 

Commission.  Current and planned studies include: 

• Review of community planning partnerships (April 2006); 

• A teaching profession for the 21st century (Stage 1: early 2006, Stage 2: autumn 206); 

• Housing stock transfer  (February 2006); 

• Waste management (autumn 2006); 

• Police call management (March 2006); and 

• Fire and rescue review (November 2006). 

Quality Control 

28. We are committed to ensuring that our audit reflects best practice and demonstrates best value 

to Argyll and Bute Council and the Accounts Commission.  We operate a strong quality control 

framework that seeks to ensure that your organisation receives a high quality service.  The 

framework is embedded in our organisational structures and processes and includes an 

engagement lead for every client (in your case this is Angela Cassels, Assistant Director of 

Audit (Local Government) who is responsible for quality control; 

29. As part of our commitment to quality and continuous improvement, we may seek your views 

from time to time.  We would be grateful for any feedback on our services.  

Fees and resources 

30. Our agreed fee for the 2005/06 audit of Argyll and Bute Council is £271,750, comprising a local 

audit fee of £180,050 and a fixed charge of £91,700.   Our fee covers:  

• all of the work and outputs described in this plan; 

• a contribution towards the costs of national performance studies and statutory reports by 

the Accounts Commission; 

• attendance at audit committees; 

• access to advice and information on relevant audit issues; 

• access to workshops/seminars on topical issues; and 

• all travel and subsistence costs. 

 

 

Page 88



 

    9

31. In determining the agreed fee we have taken account of the risk exposure of Argyll and Bute 

Council and the management assurances in place. We have assumed receipt of the unaudited 

accounts and working papers by 30th June 2006.  If the unaudited accounts and papers are 

late, or agreed management assurances are unavailable, we reserve the right to charge an 

additional fee for additional audit work.  An additional fee will be required in relation to any work 

on PPP or other significant exercises not within our planned audit activity. 

 

32. Angela Cassels, Assistant Director of Audit (Local Government) is your appointed auditor, and 

she is responsible for ensuring that our work is carried out on time and to a high quality 

standard.  She is also responsible for the certification of the council’s financial statements.  The 

local audit team will be led by David Jamieson, who will carry out the day to day management 

of the audit and will be your primary contact.   Details of the experience and skills of our core 

staff are provided at appendix C.  The core audit team will call on other specialist and support 

staff, as necessary. 

 

 

March 2006

Page 89



 

 
 

 
 

10

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

:  
S

um
m

ar
y 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
pl

an
 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

pl
an

 -
 I

n 
th

is
 s

ec
tio

n 
w

e 
id

en
tif

y 
a 

w
id

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 o

pe
ra

tio
na

l 
ris

ks
 f

ac
in

g 
Ar

gy
ll 

an
d 

Bu
te

 C
ou

nc
il,

 t
he

 r
el

at
ed

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

as
su

ra
nc

es
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

an
d 

th
e 

au
di

t 
w

or
k 

w
e 

pr
op

os
e 

to
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

 t
o 

se
cu

re
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
. 

 T
he

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

of
 r

is
k 

is
 t

he
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ilit
y 

of
 t

he
 

co
un

ci
l a

nd
 it

s 
of

fic
er

s,
 w

ith
 t

he
 a

ud
ito

r’s
 r

ol
e 

be
in

g 
to

 r
ev

ie
w

 t
he

 a
rra

ng
em

en
ts

 p
ut

 in
 p

la
ce

 b
y 

m
an

ag
em

en
t. 

 P
la

nn
ed

 a
ud

it 
w

or
k,

 t
he

re
fo

re
, 

w
ill 

no
t 

ne
ce

ss
ar

ily
 a

dd
re

ss
 a

ll 
re

si
du

al
 ri

sk
s.

 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t 

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l a

im
s 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 d

em
on

st
ra

bl
e 

an
d 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 it
s 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 in
 o

rd
er

 th
at

 it
 c

an
 m

ee
t 

its
 a

m
bi

tio
n 

to
 b

e 
a 

to
p 

pe
rf

or
m

in
g 

lo
ca

l 
au

th
or

ity
. 

 O
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
in

 e
xi

st
in

g 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

an
d 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 e

xp
ec

ta
tio

ns
 o

f 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 p

re
se

nt
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t c
ha

lle
ng

es
.  

U
lti

m
at

el
y,

 a
 fa

ilu
re

 to
 d

em
on

st
ra

bl
y 

im
pr

ov
e 

m
ay

 le
ad

 to
 lo

ss
 o

f c
re

di
bi

lit
y.

 
 R

is
k 

M
an

ag
em

en
t a

ss
ur

an
ce

s 
Pl

an
ne

d 
au

di
t a

ct
io

n 

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l h

as
 re

co
gn

is
ed

 a
 n

ee
d 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
its

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t . 

 In
 

th
e 

ab
se

nc
e 

of
 a

n 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
ris

ks
 th

at
: 

• 
co

rp
or

at
e 

pl
an

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
 a

re
 n

ot
 c

lo
se

ly
 

in
te

gr
at

ed
 w

ith
 s

er
vi

ce
 p

la
n 

in
iti

at
iv

es
 

• 
se

rv
ic

e 
pl

an
s 

ar
e 

no
t c

le
ar

ly
 in

te
gr

at
ed

 
w

ith
 th

e 
re

ve
nu

e 
an

d 
ca

pi
ta

l b
ud

ge
ts

 
• 

se
rv

ic
e 

pl
an

s 
sh

ou
ld

 c
le

ar
ly

 in
di

ca
te

 h
ow

 
th

e 
ke

y 
th

em
es

 c
on

tri
bu

te
 to

w
ar

ds
 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
th

e 
ov

er
al

l c
or

po
ra

te
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

. 
La

ck
 o

f a
lig

nm
en

t b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
co

rp
or

at
e 

pl
an

, s
er

vi
ce

 p
la

ns
 a

nd
 b

ud
ge

ts
 c

ou
ld

 re
su

lt 
in

 fi
na

nc
ia

l r
is

k 
to

 th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 if
 th

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

re
qu

ire
d 

fo
r t

he
 a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t o

f 
co

rp
or

at
e 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 a

re
 n

ot
 b

ei
ng

 c
le

ar
ly

 
id

en
tif

ie
d.

   
  

• 
In

 te
rm

s 
of

 a
lig

ni
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

 p
la

nn
in

g 
w

ith
 

re
ve

nu
e 

an
d 

ca
pi

ta
l b

ud
ge

ts
, a

 p
ro

je
ct

 to
 a

lig
n 

se
rv

ic
e 

an
d 

bu
dg

et
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ex
er

ci
se

s 
is

 
al

re
ad

y 
un

de
rw

ay
 a

nd
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

 p
la

ce
 fo

r t
he

 
20

07
/0

8 
bu

dg
et

 c
yc

le
.  

  
• 

P
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

S
tra

te
gy

 a
re

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
a 

co
rp

or
at

e 
st

ra
te

gy
 m

ap
 a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t f

ra
m

ew
or

k.
  T

hi
s 

do
cu

m
en

t w
ill

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
lin

ks
 b

et
w

ee
n 

co
rp

or
at

e 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

e 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

. 
• 

Th
e 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 m

an
ag

em
en

t f
ra

m
ew

or
k 

w
ill

 
be

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

in
 p

ha
se

s,
 a

s 
ag

re
ed

 in
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t p
la

n 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
S

M
T 

an
d 

S
P

C
.  

 
• 

E
va

lu
at

io
n 

of
 e

ac
h 

ph
as

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

in
 

lin
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t p

la
n.

  R
eg

ul
ar

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
re

po
rts

 w
ill

 b
e 

su
bm

itt
ed

 to
 th

e 
S

M
T.

  

• 
Tr

ac
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

ss
ur

an
ce

s 
• 

R
ev

ie
w

 
im

pr
ov

ed
 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 a
s 

th
ey

 a
re

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

• 
R

ev
ie

w
 

pr
og

re
ss

 
m

ad
e 

by
 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l 

in
 

ad
dr

es
si

ng
 a

ct
io

ns
 a

nd
 ta

rg
et

s 
ar

is
in

g 
fro

m
 th

e 
be

st
 v

al
ue

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t a

ge
nd

a.
   

Page 90



 

 
 

 
 

11

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t a
ss

ur
an

ce
s 

Pl
an

ne
d 

au
di

t a
ct

io
n 

B
es

t v
al

ue
 re

vi
ew

s 
sh

ou
ld

 ri
go

ro
us

ly
 a

ss
es

s 
w

ha
t t

he
 a

ct
iv

ity
 is

 a
im

in
g 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
, 

w
he

th
er

 it
 is

 s
til

l r
eq

ui
re

d,
 a

nd
 w

he
th

er
 it

 w
ill

 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 m
ee

t f
ut

ur
e 

ne
ed

s.
  T

he
re

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 a

 s
ys

te
m

at
ic

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
fo

r e
va

lu
at

in
g 

op
tio

ns
 fo

r p
ro

vi
di

ng
 a

 s
er

vi
ce

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 

co
m

pe
tit

io
n 

w
he

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
, t

o 
en

su
re

 
th

at
 c

us
to

m
er

s 
re

ce
iv

e 
th

e 
hi

gh
es

t q
ua

lit
y 

of
 

se
rv

ic
e 

po
ss

ib
le

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

av
ai

la
bl

e.
  H

ow
ev

er
, w

ith
in

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l, 

th
e 

m
et

ho
do

lo
gy

 fo
r t

he
 re

vi
ew

s 
is

 n
ot

 w
el

l 
de

ve
lo

pe
d,

 s
ou

nd
 o

pt
io

ns
 a

pp
ra

is
al

 
te

ch
ni

qu
es

 a
re

 n
ot

 u
se

d,
 a

nd
 th

at
 th

e 
le

ve
l 

of
 c

ha
lle

ng
e 

is
 n

ot
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t w
ith

 h
e 

re
su

lta
nt

 ri
sk

 th
at

 re
vi

ew
s 

ar
e 

no
t r

ig
or

ou
s 

en
ou

gh
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
e 

4 
‘C

’s
 o

pt
io

n 
ap

pr
ai

sa
l a

nd
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

n 
el

em
en

t o
f 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t c

ha
lle

ng
e.

 

• 
Th

e 
be

st
 

va
lu

e 
re

vi
ew

 
pr

oc
es

s 
w

ith
in

 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l w
as

 h
al

te
d 

pe
nd

in
g 

th
e 

ou
tc

om
e 

of
 th

e 
st

at
ut

or
y 

be
st

 v
al

ue
 re

vi
ew

.  
It 

is
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

th
at

 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l w
ill

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
is

 is
su

e 
in

 r
es

po
ns

e 
to

 t
he

 a
re

as
 i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 a
s 

m
os

t 
in

 n
ee

d 
of

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
by

 
th

e 
st

at
ut

or
y 

be
st

 
va

lu
e 

re
vi

ew
. 

• 
R

ev
ie

w
 

pr
og

re
ss

 
m

ad
e 

by
 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l 

in
 

ad
dr

es
si

ng
 a

ct
io

ns
 a

nd
 ta

rg
et

s 
ar

is
in

g 
fro

m
 th

e 
be

st
 v

al
ue

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t a

ge
nd

a.
   

Th
er

e 
is

 n
o 

fo
rm

al
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 fo
r m

em
be

rs
 to

 
re

vi
ew

 th
e 

re
su

lts
 o

f s
cr

ut
in

y 
an

d 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

re
vi

ew
s.

  I
n 

th
e 

ab
se

nc
e 

of
 m

em
be

r i
np

ut
 to

 
th

es
e 

re
vi

ew
s 

th
er

e 
is

 a
 ri

sk
 th

at
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 
pr

io
rit

y 
m

ig
ht

 n
ot

 b
e 

gi
ve

n 
to

 im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 a

ris
in

g 
th

er
ef

ro
m

. 

• 
It 

is
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

th
at

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l w

ill
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

is
 

is
su

e 
in

 r
es

po
ns

e 
to

 t
he

 a
re

as
 i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 a
s 

m
os

t 
in

 n
ee

d 
of

 i
m

pr
ov

em
en

t 
by

 t
he

 b
es

t 
va

lu
e 

re
vi

ew
 p

ro
ce

ss
. 

• 
R

ev
ie

w
 

pr
og

re
ss

 
m

ad
e 

by
 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l 

in
 

ad
dr

es
si

ng
 a

ct
io

ns
 a

nd
 ta

rg
et

s 
ar

is
in

g 
fro

m
 th

e 
be

st
 v

al
ue

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t a

ge
nd

a.
   

Th
er

e 
is

 a
 g

en
er

al
 la

ck
 o

f f
or

m
al

 s
cr

ut
in

y 
of

 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 b
y 

m
em

be
rs

 in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 
in

te
rim

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
ag

ai
ns

t p
la

ns
.  

W
hi

ls
t w

e 
ar

e 
aw

ar
e 

th
at

 th
e 

co
rp

or
at

e 
pl

an
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 is

 m
on

ito
re

d 
an

d 
re

po
rte

d 
to

 m
em

be
rs

 b
-a

nn
ua

lly
, e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

sc
ru

tin
y 

by
 m

em
be

rs
 o

f c
ou

nc
il 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 

re
qu

ire
s 

th
at

 th
ey

 re
ce

iv
e 

re
gu

la
r a

nd
 

de
ta

ile
d 

up
da

te
s 

on
 c

ou
nc

il 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

. 

• 
It 

is
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

th
at

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l w

ill
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

is
 

is
su

e 
in

 r
es

po
ns

e 
to

 t
he

 a
re

as
 i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 a
s 

m
os

t 
in

 n
ee

d 
of

 i
m

pr
ov

em
en

t 
by

 t
he

 b
es

t 
va

lu
e 

re
vi

ew
 p

ro
ce

ss
. 

• 
R

ev
ie

w
 

pr
og

re
ss

 
m

ad
e 

by
 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l 

in
 

ad
dr

es
si

ng
 a

ct
io

ns
 a

nd
 ta

rg
et

s 
ar

is
in

g 
fro

m
 th

e 
be

st
 v

al
ue

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t a

ge
nd

a.
   

Page 91



 

 
 

 
 

12

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t a
ss

ur
an

ce
s 

Pl
an

ne
d 

au
di

t a
ct

io
n 

Lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

ha
ve

 a
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 d
ut

y 
to

 
pr

ov
id

e 
a 

ra
ng

e 
of

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

ad
vi

ce
 to

 
th

ei
r c

om
m

un
iti

es
, r

eg
ar

di
ng

 th
e 

va
rio

us
 

se
rv

ic
es

 th
ey

 p
ro

vi
de

.  
R

ec
en

tly
 in

te
rn

al
ly

 c
on

du
ct

ed
 a

ud
its

 h
av

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

se
rio

us
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 is

su
es

 
re

la
tin

g 
to

 th
e 

C
iti

ze
ns

 A
dv

ic
e 

B
ur

ea
u 

in
 

te
rm

s 
of

 th
e 

as
si

st
an

ce
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

an
d 

po
or

 
va

lu
e 

fo
r m

on
ey

.  

• 
A

 p
ol

ic
y 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t g

ro
up

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
se

t u
p 

to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
th

e 
sc

op
e 

an
d 

pr
op

os
al

s 
of

 t
he

 
se

rv
ic

e 
fo

r t
he

 fu
tu

re
. 

• 
R

ev
is

ed
 

bu
si

ne
ss

 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
pl

an
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
re

qu
es

te
d 

• 
R

ev
ie

w
 

pr
og

re
ss

 
m

ad
e 

by
 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l 

in
 

ad
dr

es
si

ng
 th

e 
is

su
es

 id
en

tif
ie

d 

Page 92



 

 
 

 
 

13

Fi
na

nc
ia

l s
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d 
su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y 

Th
er

e 
is

 a
 r

is
k 

th
at

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l i

s 
un

ab
le

 to
 a

ffo
rd

 fu
tu

re
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 p
la

nn
ed

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
co

un
ci

l s
er

vi
ce

s 
du

e 
to

 is
su

es
 s

uc
h 

as
 m

ee
tin

g 
th

e 
de

m
an

ds
 o

f t
he

 e
qu

al
 p

ay
 le

gi
sl

at
io

n.
 

 R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t a
ss

ur
an

ce
s 

Pl
an

ne
d 

au
di

t a
ct

io
n 

A
rg

yl
l a

nd
 B

ut
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

is
 th

e 
on

ly
 c

ou
nc

il 
un

de
rta

ki
ng

 a
 s

ch
oo

ls
 P

P
P

 p
ro

je
ct

 u
si

ng
 a

n 
N

P
D

O
 m

od
el

.  
O

ur
 le

tte
rs

 o
f 1

6 
Ju

ne
 2

00
5,

 
25

 J
ul

y 
20

05
 a

nd
 2

6 
A

ug
us

t 2
00

5 
 c

on
fir

m
 

th
at

 th
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

fo
llo

w
ed

 to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
w

he
th

er
 th

e 
bo

dy
 s

ho
ul

d 
ac

co
un

t f
or

 th
e 

tra
ns

ac
tio

n 
on

 o
r o

ff 
its

 b
al

an
ce

 s
he

et
 w

as
 in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 th
e 

cu
rre

nt
 u

nd
er

ly
in

g 
gu

id
an

ce
 (s

ub
je

ct
 to

 c
er

ta
in

 re
se

rv
at

io
ns

 
de

ta
ile

d 
in

 th
e 

le
tte

rs
). 

 F
in

an
ci

al
 c

lo
se

 o
n 

ni
ne

 o
f t

he
 s

ch
oo

ls
 w

as
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

on
 9

 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

5,
 w

ith
 fu

rth
er

 n
eg

ot
ia

tio
n 

co
nt

in
ui

ng
 o

n 
th

e 
ot

he
r s

ch
oo

l. 
 

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l w

ill
 re

qu
ire

 to
 p

re
sc

rib
e 

ad
eq

ua
te

 c
on

tro
ls

 fo
r m

on
ito

rin
g 

se
rv

ic
e 

de
liv

er
y,

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 

co
nt

ra
ct

ua
l c

om
m

itm
en

ts
 a

nd
 m

an
ag

in
g 

an
y 

un
de

r p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 b
y 

th
e 

su
pp

lie
r. 

In
 th

e 
ab

se
nc

e 
of

 a
n 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

sy
st

em
, t

he
re

 is
 a

 ri
sk

 th
at

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l w

ill
 b

e 
un

ab
le

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

un
de

r t
he

 N
P

D
O

 m
od

el
 is

 
pr

ov
id

ed
 e

ffe
ct

iv
el

y 
an

d 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 
co

nt
ra

ct
 c

on
di

tio
ns

 a
nd

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
. 

 

• 
N

P
D

O
 W

or
ki

ng
 G

ro
up

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

to
 o

ve
rs

ee
 

pr
oc

es
s 

• 
In

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it 

re
vi

ew
 

• 
Tr

ac
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

ss
ur

an
ce

s 

Page 93



 

 
 

 
 

14

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t a
ss

ur
an

ce
s 

Pl
an

ne
d 

au
di

t a
ct

io
n 

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l i

s 
pu

rs
ui

ng
 th

e 
op

tio
n 

of
 

tra
ns

fe
rr

in
g 

its
 h

ou
si

ng
 s

to
ck

 to
 a

 c
om

m
un

ity
 

ow
ne

d 
ho

us
in

g 
as

so
ci

at
io

n.
  T

he
 tr

an
sf

er
 to

 
A

rg
yl

l C
om

m
un

ity
 H

ou
si

ng
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
is

 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 b
rin

g 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 b
en

ef
its

 in
 th

e 
fo

rm
 o

f r
ef

ur
bi

sh
m

en
t a

nd
 u

pg
ra

di
ng

 o
f t

he
 

ex
is

tin
g 

st
oc

k.
  F

ol
lo

w
in

g 
th

e 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

 
te

na
nt

s’
 b

al
lo

t i
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

5,
 it

 is
 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 th
at

 a
 fu

ll 
tra

ns
fe

r o
f t

he
 c

ou
nc

il’
s 

ho
us

in
g 

st
oc

k 
w

ill
 ta

ke
 p

la
ce

 to
w

ar
ds

 
au

tu
m

n 
20

06
.  

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l w

ill
 re

qu
ire

 to
 

ad
op

t a
 c

le
ar

 c
or

po
ra

te
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
 m

an
ag

e 
th

e 
tra

ns
fe

r p
ro

ce
ss

 o
r t

he
re

 is
 a

 ri
sk

 o
f t

he
 

tra
ns

fe
r f

ai
lin

g 
or

 n
ot

 b
ei

ng
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

on
 

sa
tis

fa
ct

or
y 

te
rm

s.
  

• 
Th

e 
co

un
ci

l 
is

 m
an

ag
in

g 
th

e 
ho

us
in

g 
st

oc
k 

tra
ns

fe
r 

co
rp

or
at

el
y.

 
 

D
ec

is
io

n 
m

ak
in

g 
at

 
m

em
be

r 
le

ve
l 

in
vo

lv
es

 t
he

 f
ul

l 
co

un
ci

l 
an

d 
th

e 
A

d-
ho

c 
S

ub
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 o
n 

ho
us

in
g 

st
oc

k 
tra

ns
fe

r. 
 T

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
e 

ne
ed

 a
t 

an
 e

ar
ly

 d
at

e 
to

 s
et

 u
p 

a 
de

di
ca

te
d 

co
re

 
pr

oj
ec

t 
te

am
 

w
hi

ch
 

m
ee

ts
 

re
gu

la
rly

 
to

 
pr

og
re

ss
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t. 
 O

th
er

 s
ta

ff 
fro

m
 w

ith
in

 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l s
up

po
rt 

th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
te

am
 

as
 re

qu
ire

d.
   

• 
R

ev
ie

w
 

of
 

re
se

ar
ch

 
an

al
ys

is
 

an
d 

da
ta

 
ga

th
er

in
g,

 b
us

in
es

s 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
 p

re
pa

ra
tio

n,
 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

w
ith

 
te

na
nt

s 
an

d 
st

af
f 

an
d 

ne
go

tia
tio

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
la

nd
lo

rd
. 

Page 94



 

 
 

 
 

15

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t a
ss

ur
an

ce
s 

Pl
an

ne
d 

au
di

t a
ct

io
n 

H
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 h

av
e 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

ly
 in

 re
ce

nt
 y

ea
rs

 a
nd

 a
re

 c
on

tin
ui

ng
 

to
 d

o 
so

, a
s 

a 
co

ns
eq

ue
nc

e 
of

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 

of
 th

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 (S

co
tla

nd
) A

ct
 2

00
1.

 

Th
er

e 
is

 a
 s

ho
rta

ge
 o

f s
ui

ta
bl

e 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
an

d 
th

is
 h

as
 le

d 
to

 c
ou

nc
il 

ho
us

e 
w

ai
tin

g 
lis

ts
 b

ei
ng

 s
us

pe
nd

ed
. T

he
 

co
un

ci
l h

as
 a

ls
o 

be
en

 fo
rc

ed
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

ly
 to

 
m

ad
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 u

se
 o

f s
ho

rt 
te

rm
, a

nd
 

ex
pe

ns
iv

e,
 b

ed
 a

nd
 b

re
ak

fa
st

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n.

 
A

s 
su

ch
 th

er
e 

is
 a

 ri
sk

 th
at

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l m

ay
 b

e 
fa

ili
ng

 to
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
H

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

P
er

so
ns

 (u
ns

ui
ta

bl
e 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n)

 O
rd

er
 

20
04

. 

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
al

so
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
pr

ob
le

m
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

co
lle

ct
in

g 
re

nt
 w

he
n 

a 
ho

m
el

es
s 

pe
rs

on
 is

 
no

t e
nt

itl
ed

 to
 h

ou
si

ng
 b

en
ef

it.
 F

ur
th

er
 th

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 s
er

vi
ce

 c
os

t e
le

m
en

t o
f r

en
t 

ch
ar

ge
s,

 w
hi

ch
 is

 in
el

ig
ib

le
 fo

r r
ec

ov
er

y 
un

de
r t

he
 h

ou
si

ng
 b

en
ef

it 
sc

he
m

e,
 is

 li
ke

ly
 

to
 p

la
ce

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 fi

na
nc

ia
l p

re
ss

ur
es

 o
n 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l 

• 
Th

e 
co

un
ci

l h
as

 a
 H

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

S
tra

te
gy

 in
 

pl
ac

e 
an

d 
ar

e 
cu

rre
nt

ly
 

pr
ep

ar
in

g 
a 

Te
m

po
ra

ry
 

A
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

S
tra

te
gy

 
to

 
ad

dr
es

s 
th

e 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 p

ro
bl

em
s 

ca
us

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
la

ck
 

of
 

su
ita

bl
e 

sh
or

t 
te

rm
 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

  

• 
Tr

ac
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

ss
ur

an
ce

s;
 

• 
R

ev
ie

w
 lo

ng
er

 te
rm

 fi
na

nc
ia

l p
la

nn
in

g 
m

od
el

 a
s 

it 
is

 d
ev

el
op

ed
. 

Page 95



 

 
 

 
 

16

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t a
ss

ur
an

ce
s 

Pl
an

ne
d 

au
di

t a
ct

io
n 

Fo
r 2

00
7/

08
, t

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
re

qu
ire

s 
to

 id
en

tif
y 

cu
m

ul
at

iv
e 

sa
vi

ng
s 

of
 s

om
e 

£2
3m

 - 
£1

2.
5m

 
fro

m
 d

ra
ft 

06
/0

7 
bu

dg
et

 (p
re

-s
av

in
gs

) a
nd

 
fu

rth
er

 s
av

in
gs

 o
f £

10
.5

m
 to

 m
ee

t t
he

 0
7/

08
 

bu
dg

et
 re

qu
ire

m
en

t. 

H
ow

ev
er

 th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f t
he

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t f

un
di

ng
 

ga
p 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 2
00

7/
08

 h
as

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
as

se
ss

ed
 a

t a
 s

er
vi

ce
 le

ve
l. 

 A
cc

or
di

ng
ly

, i
n 

th
e 

lig
ht

 o
f s

ho
rt 

te
rm

, f
in

an
ci

al
 s

et
tle

m
en

ts
, 

th
er

e 
is

 a
 ri

sk
 th

at
 m

ed
iu

m
 to

 lo
ng

 te
rm

 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 a
re

 n
ot

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

. 

• 
A

s 
pa

rt 
of

 t
he

 2
00

6/
07

 b
ud

ge
t 

pr
oc

es
s,

 a
ll 

se
rv

ic
es

 
su

bm
itt

ed
 

de
ta

ile
d 

pr
op

os
al

s 
on

 
ho

w
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 th
e 

£1
2.

5m
 s

av
in

gs
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 e

na
bl

e 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l 
ta

x 
in

cr
ea

se
 t

o 
be

 
re

st
ric

te
d 

to
 2

.5
%

. 
 A

 l
on

ge
r 

te
rm

 f
in

an
ci

al
 

pl
an

ni
ng

 m
od

el
 w

ill
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

as
 p

ar
t 

of
 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t 

to
 

al
ig

n 
se

rv
ic

e 
an

d 
bu

dg
et

 
pl

an
ni

ng
 e

xe
rc

is
es

 a
nd

 w
ill

 b
e 

in
 p

la
ce

 f
or

 
th

e 
20

07
/0

8 
bu

dg
et

 c
yc

le
.  

 

• 
Tr

ac
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

ss
ur

an
ce

s;
 

• 
R

ev
ie

w
 lo

ng
er

 te
rm

 fi
na

nc
ia

l p
la

nn
in

g 
m

od
el

 a
s 

it 
is

 d
ev

el
op

ed
. 

Th
e 

pl
an

ne
d 

£4
.3

m
 e

qu
al

 p
ay

 s
et

tle
m

en
t 

de
al

 w
ill

 im
pa

ct
 h

ea
vi

ly
 o

n 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l’s
 

re
se

rv
es

.  
A

s 
w

el
l a

s 
us

in
g 

up
 a

ll 
fre

e 
un

co
m

m
itt

ed
 b

al
an

ce
s,

 th
er

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
a 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t f

or
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l t
o 

dr
aw

 £
0.

5m
 

fro
m

 it
s 

2%
 c

on
tin

ge
nc

y 
ba

la
nc

e.
 

Th
e 

ac
tu

al
 ta

ke
-u

p 
of

 th
e 

de
al

 is
 n

ot
 y

et
 

kn
ow

n.
   

Th
er

e 
is

 th
er

ef
or

e 
a 

ris
k 

of
 a

n 
ev

en
 

gr
ea

te
r i

m
pa

ct
 o

n 
co

un
ci

l r
es

er
ve

s.
  

• 
U

pd
at

e 
on

 a
ct

ua
l t

ak
e-

up
 is

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 b
e 

re
po

rte
d 

to
 S

M
T/

S
P

C
 o

nc
e 

kn
ow

n.
  

• 
M

on
ito

r d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 

Page 96



 

 
 

 
 

17

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t a
ss

ur
an

ce
s 

Pl
an

ne
d 

au
di

t a
ct

io
n 

Th
er

e 
is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 a

 v
ar

ie
d 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 

bu
dg

et
ar

y 
co

nt
ro

l t
hr

ou
gh

ou
t t

he
 c

ou
nc

il’
s 

se
rv

ic
e 

de
pa

rtm
en

ts
.  

Th
er

e 
is

 th
er

ef
or

e 
a 

ris
k 

th
at

 b
ud

ge
ta

ry
 c

on
tro

l c
ou

ld
 b

e 
w

ea
ke

ne
d 

in
 th

e 
ab

se
nc

e 
of

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 
sk

ill
s,

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
an

d 
a 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 a

pp
ro

ac
h.

 

• 
P

rin
ci

pl
es

 
of

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 
S

er
vi

ce
 

bu
dg

et
 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
to

 b
e 

ro
lle

d 
ou

t 
to

 a
ll 

se
rv

ic
es

 
w

ith
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 fo

r b
ud

ge
t h

ol
de

rs
.  

• 
P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
di

sc
us

si
on

s 
ha

ve
 

be
en

 
he

ld
 

w
ith

in
 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 

th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 a
 s

er
vi

ce
 w

id
e 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 t
o 

bu
dg

et
 s

et
tin

g 
an

d 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

al
so

 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 

bu
dg

et
 

ho
ld

er
 

tra
in

in
g.

  
Th

e 
ov

er
al

l o
bj

ec
tiv

e 
is

 t
o 

ro
ll 

ou
t 

th
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 
cu

rr
en

tly
 

ad
op

te
d 

by
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

S
er

vi
ce

s.
 

 
It 

is
 

re
co

gn
is

ed
, 

ho
w

ev
er

, 
th

at
 t

he
re

 w
ill

 b
e 

a 
ne

ed
 t

o 
ta

ke
 

ac
co

un
t 

of
 

th
e 

di
ffe

re
nt

 
na

tu
re

 
of

 
th

e 
op

er
at

io
ns

 in
 e

ac
h 

of
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

es
. T

he
re

fo
re

 
it 

is
 in

te
nd

ed
 to

 im
pl

em
en

t k
ey

 p
rin

ci
pl

es
 a

nd
 

gu
id

el
in

es
 ra

th
er

 th
an

 a
 ri

gi
d 

se
t o

f r
ul

es
 a

nd
 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
. N

o 
fo

rm
al

 ti
m

es
ca

le
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

to
 t

hi
s 

ta
sk

 h
ow

ev
er

 it
 is

 in
te

nd
ed

 
fo

r 
an

 
in

iti
al

 
ro

ll 
ou

t 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

20
05

/0
6 

fin
an

ci
al

 y
ea

r. 
  

• 
Tr

ac
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

ss
ur

an
ce

s;
 

• 
R

ev
ie

w
 

im
pr

ov
ed

 
bu

dg
et

ar
y 

co
nt

ro
l 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 a
s 

th
ey

 a
re

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

• 
E

xt
er

na
l 

au
di

t 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

bu
dg

et
ar

y 
co

nt
ro

l 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 2

00
5/

06
. 

Page 97



 

 
 

 
 

18

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t a
ss

ur
an

ce
s 

Pl
an

ne
d 

au
di

t a
ct

io
n 

A
s 

a 
m

ea
ns

 o
f e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 s
tra

te
gi

c 
pr

op
er

ty
 

de
ci

si
on

s 
ar

e 
so

un
dl

y 
ba

se
d 

an
d 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 

se
t o

r r
ev

is
e 

pr
ud

en
tia

l i
nd

ic
at

or
s,

 a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

ar
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 h

av
e 

re
ga

rd
 to

 a
ss

et
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t p

la
nn

in
g 

sy
st

em
s,

 w
hi

ch
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 li
nk

ed
 to

 b
ot

h 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
e 

le
ve

l 
pl

an
s.

   

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l i

s 
cu

rr
en

tly
 c

oo
rd

in
at

in
g 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f a
 s

ui
ta

bl
e 

sy
st

em
.  

H
ow

ev
er

 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t i
s 

in
 it

s 
ea

rly
 s

ta
ge

s.
  O

ffi
ce

rs
 

en
vi

sa
ge

 th
at

 th
is

 w
ill

 b
e 

a 
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l t
as

k,
 

gi
ve

n 
th

e 
ab

se
nc

e 
of

 a
ny

 s
uc

h 
pr

ev
io

us
 fo

rm
al

 
re

vi
ew

s.
  T

he
 re

vi
ew

 is
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 to

 h
av

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 fo
r t

he
 c

ap
ita

l 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e,
 in

 te
rm

s 
of

 id
en

tif
yi

ng
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 a

nd
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
. 

Th
er

e 
is

 th
er

ef
or

e 
a 

ris
k 

th
at

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 
cu

rr
en

t s
ys

te
m

 d
oe

s 
no

t p
ro

vi
de

 a
 fr

am
ew

or
k 

fo
r a

sc
er

ta
in

in
g 

th
e 

su
ita

bi
lit

y,
 c

on
di

tio
n 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 c
os

t o
f t

he
 a

ss
et

s.
 

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l h

av
e 

al
re

ad
y 

in
cl

ud
ed

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ac

tio
ns

 w
ith

in
 th

ei
r d

ra
ft 

be
st

 v
al

ue
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
pl

an
 

• 
N

ee
d 

to
 

re
vi

ew
 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 
to

 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

ca
pi

ta
l 

pl
an

 t
o 

ge
t 

m
or

e 
fo

cu
s 

on
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

ra
th

er
 th

an
 s

pe
nd

in
g 

to
ta

l b
ud

ge
t. 

  

• 
C

ap
ita

l 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

m
or

e 
ro

bu
st

 w
ith

 
op

tio
ns

 a
pp

ra
is

al
.  

 

• 
W

ho
le

 
lif

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
op

tio
ns

 
be

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
fo

r 
m

aj
or

 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

in
 

lin
e 

w
ith

 
pr

ud
en

tia
l 

bo
rr

ow
in

g 
co

de
 

an
d 

as
se

t 
m

an
ag

em
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

es
. 

• 
Tr

ac
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

ss
ur

an
ce

s;
 

• 
R

ev
ie

w
 

im
pr

ov
ed

 
as

se
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 

as
 

th
ey

 
ar

e 
im

pl
em

en
te

d.
 

Page 98



 

 
 

 
 

19

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t a
ss

ur
an

ce
s 

Pl
an

ne
d 

au
di

t a
ct

io
n 

C
ap

ita
l 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 

fo
r 

20
04

/0
5 

to
ta

lle
d 

£2
8.

86
1 

m
ill

io
n 

ag
ai

ns
t a

n 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

ud
ge

t o
f 

£3
7.

62
7 

m
ill

io
n.

 T
he

 u
nd

er
sp

en
d 

ar
os

e 
du

e 
to

 
sl

ip
pa

ge
 o

n 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

in
cl

ud
ed

 i
n 

th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e;

 
in

 
pa

rti
cu

la
r 

A
rg

yl
l 

A
ir 

S
er

vi
ce

s,
 

B
ru

ic
hl

ad
di

ch
 

P
ie

r, 
C

ua
n 

Fe
rr

y 
S

lip
w

ay
s,

 
C

am
pb

el
to

w
n 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

P
ro

je
ct

  
an

d 
C

am
pb

el
to

w
n 

N
ew

 Q
ua

y.
  

Th
es

e 
fiv

e 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 a

cc
ou

nt
ed

 f
or

 £
10

.5
 m

ill
io

n 
of

 t
he

 
sl

ip
pa

ge
. 

Th
er

e 
is

 a
 r

is
k 

th
at

 p
oo

r 
ca

pi
ta

l p
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

ca
n 

le
ad

 
to

 
de

la
ys

 
in

 
th

e 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
of

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
an

d 
po

lic
y 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 

no
t b

ei
ng

 a
ch

ie
ve

d.
   

• 
A

 re
vi

se
d 

pr
oc

es
s 

fo
r m

on
ito

rin
g 

th
e 

ca
pi

ta
l 

pl
an

 is
 in

 p
la

ce
.  

Th
is

 m
on

ito
rs

 p
ro

je
ct

 p
ro

gr
es

s,
 

be
ne

fit
s 

an
d 

ris
ks

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

fin
an

ci
al

 o
ut

tu
rn

.  
A

 
tra

ffi
c 

lig
ht

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
is

 a
do

pt
ed

 w
he

re
 “r

ed
” 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 re
qu

ire
 a

 s
up

pl
em

en
ta

ry
 re

po
rt 

to
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

by
 th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 h

ea
d 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 

• 
S

lip
pa

ge
 

w
ill

 
oc

cu
r 

an
d 

th
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 
to

 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

sh
ou

ld
 n

ow
 i

de
nt

ify
 t

ha
t 

ea
rly

 c
ar

e 
ne

ed
s 

to
 b

e 
ta

ke
n 

w
he

n 
co

ns
id

er
in

g 
ac

tio
n 

/ 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
ac

tio
n 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
it 

do
es

 n
ot

 c
re

at
e 

re
so

ur
ce

 
/ 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 
pr

ob
le

m
s,

 
le

ad
in

g 
to

 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

co
st

s 
an

d 
im

pa
ct

in
g 

ad
ve

rs
el

y 
on

 
ot

he
r 

pr
oj

ec
ts

. 
 I

n 
m

an
ag

in
g 

th
e 

ov
er

al
l c

ap
ita

l 
pl

an
 t

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
ne

ed
s 

to
 c

on
si

de
r 

V
FM

 a
s 

m
uc

h 
as

 it
 d

oe
s 

th
e 

tim
in

g 
of

 in
di

vi
du

al
 p

ro
je

ct
s.

  
E

xt
er

na
l 

fa
ct

or
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

m
ar

ke
t 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 c
an

 
ha

ve
 a

n 
ef

fe
ct

 o
n 

ca
pi

ta
l 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 w
hi

ch
 t

he
 

co
un

ci
l c

an
no

t c
on

tro
l. 

• 
Tr

ac
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

ss
ur

an
ce

s 

Th
e 

cu
rr

en
t m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 b

ac
kl

og
 o

n 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l’s
 ro

ad
s 

ne
tw

or
k 

ha
s 

be
en

 e
va

lu
at

ed
 

as
 £

38
 m

ill
io

n.
  T

he
 c

ur
re

nt
 a

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 

fu
nd

in
g 

th
ro

ug
h 

re
ve

nu
e 

an
d 

ca
pi

ta
l b

ud
ge

ts
 

is
 in

su
ffi

ci
en

t t
o 

m
ee

t t
hi

s 
ba

ck
lo

g.
  T

he
 ri

sk
 

ex
is

ts
 th

at
 if

 th
e 

ba
ck

lo
g 

is
 n

ot
 ta

ck
le

d 
ov

er
 a

 
re

as
on

ab
le

 ti
m

es
ca

le
, i

t w
ill

 h
av

e 
a 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
us

er
s 

of
 th

e 
ro

ad
 n

et
w

or
k 

an
d 

on
 

co
un

ci
l f

in
an

ce
s.

 
 

• 
Fo

r 
20

05
/0

6,
 t

he
 c

ap
ita

l 
re

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

bu
dg

et
 

is
 a

ro
un

d 
£1

.9
 m

ill
io

n 
an

d 
th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
al

lo
w

an
ce

 
in

 t
he

 r
ev

en
ue

 b
ud

ge
t 

fo
r 

re
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
w

or
k.

  
Th

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
es

tim
at

e 
by

 t
he

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
is

 t
ha

t 
£9

.5
 m

ill
io

n 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
pe

r 
an

nu
m

 fo
r 

te
n 

ye
ar

s 
an

d 
th

en
 £

6.
5 

m
ill

io
n 

th
er

ea
fte

r. 
  

• 
Th

e 
co

un
ci

l 
ha

s 
an

 a
ss

et
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d 
pl

an
ni

ng
 s

ys
te

m
 fo

r 
ro

ad
s 

th
at

 a
llo

w
s 

sp
en

di
ng

 
de

ci
si

on
s 

to
 b

e 
pr

io
rit

is
ed

.  

• 
M

on
ito

r d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 re

po
rt 

Page 99



 

 
 

 
 

20

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t a
ss

ur
an

ce
s 

Pl
an

ne
d 

au
di

t a
ct

io
n 

Th
e 

S
co

tti
sh

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
re

qu
ire

s 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
to

 p
ro

du
ce

 s
ch

oo
ls

 e
st

at
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t p

la
ns

.  
 

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 N
P

D
O

 w
ill

 n
ot

 ta
ck

le
 a

 s
iz

ea
bl

e 
el

em
en

t o
f t

he
 s

ch
oo

l e
st

at
e 

an
d 

so
m

e 
82

 
(m

ai
nl

y 
pr

im
ar

y)
 s

ch
oo

ls
 w

ill
 s

til
l r

eq
ui

re
 

ex
te

ns
iv

e 
m

od
er

ni
sa

tio
n.

  T
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

lo
ok

ed
 a

t a
 ra

ng
e 

of
 o

pt
io

ns
 fo

r t
he

 n
on

-N
P

D
O

 
sc

ho
ol

s 
al

th
ou

gh
 in

 re
al

ity
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

on
ly

 tw
o 

op
tio

ns
 a

va
ila

bl
e.

  E
ith

er
 a

 m
aj

or
 in

je
ct

io
n 

of
 

ca
pi

ta
l t

ak
es

 p
la

ce
 to

 re
ju

ve
na

te
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
pr

im
ar

y 
es

ta
te

 o
r a

 la
rg

e-
sc

al
e 

de
m

an
d 

le
d 

m
od

er
ni

sa
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

pr
im

ar
y 

es
ta

te
 is

 
in

st
ig

at
ed

.  
Th

e 
to

ta
l c

os
t o

f m
od

er
ni

si
ng

 th
e 

w
ho

le
 o

f t
he

 c
ou

nc
il’

s 
sc

ho
ol

 e
st

at
e 

is
 e

st
im

at
ed

 
at

 £
20

6.
56

m
, m

ad
e 

up
 o

f r
ev

is
ed

 N
P

D
O

 w
or

k 
of

 
£7

5m
 w

ith
 th

e 
ba

la
nc

e 
of

 £
13

1.
56

m
 fo

r t
he

 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 s
ch

oo
l e

st
at

e.
  B

as
ed

 o
n 

re
ta

in
in

g 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
nu

m
be

r o
f b

ui
ld

in
gs

, t
he

 p
la

n 
id

en
tif

ie
s 

a 
fu

nd
in

g 
ga

p 
of

 £
10

2.
3m

 o
ve

r 1
0 

ye
ar

s 
af

te
r 

th
e 

N
P

D
O

 w
or

k 
ha

s 
be

en
 c

om
pl

et
ed

.  
Th

e 
pl

an
 

co
nc

lu
de

s 
th

at
 fa

ilu
re

 to
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

e 
is

su
e 

no
w

 
of

 m
as

si
ve

 o
ve

r s
up

pl
y 

in
 th

e 
pr

im
ar

y 
sc

ho
ol

 
es

ta
te

 w
ill

 o
nl

y 
le

ad
 to

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
ly

 p
oo

rly
 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

pr
im

ar
y 

sc
ho

ol
s 

w
ith

 v
er

y 
sm

al
l 

sc
ho

ol
 ro

lls
.  

• 
A

rg
yl

l 
an

d 
B

ut
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
S

E
A

S
M

P
 

w
as

 
su

bm
itt

ed
 t

o 
th

e 
S

tra
te

gi
c 

P
ol

ic
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 o

f 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

5 
an

d 
is

 d
es

ig
ne

d 
to

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 th
e 

w
ay

 fo
rw

ar
d 

fo
r t

he
 s

ch
oo

l e
st

at
e.

   

• 
Th

e 
S

E
A

S
M

P
 

ou
tli

ne
s 

th
at

 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l 
is

 
co

ns
tra

in
ed

 
in

 
its

 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

ts
 

by
 

th
e 

in
ad

eq
ua

cy
 o

f 
th

e 
ph

ys
ic

al
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
of

 i
ts

 
sc

ho
ol

 p
ro

pe
rti

es
.  

 

• 
Th

e 
S

E
A

S
M

P
 a

ls
o 

st
at

es
 t

ha
t 

de
si

gn
 d

ef
ec

ts
 

an
d 

la
ck

 o
f p

ro
vi

si
on

 f
or

 o
ng

oi
ng

 in
ve

st
m

en
t 

in
 

th
e 

ph
ys

ic
al

 f
ab

ric
 o

f 
th

e 
sc

ho
ol

s 
ha

s 
le

d 
to

 
fa

ilu
re

 o
f 

m
aj

or
 c

om
po

ne
nt

s 
an

d 
an

 a
d-

ho
c,

 
re

ac
tiv

e 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 

to
 

m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 
th

e 
sc

ho
ol

 
es

ta
te

.  
H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
 d

oc
um

en
t a

ls
o 

st
at

es
 th

at
 

th
is

 p
la

n,
 t

og
et

he
r 

w
ith

 t
he

 N
P

D
O

 w
ill

 p
ro

ve
 a

 
st

ar
tin

g 
po

in
t f

or
 th

e 
re

ct
ifi

ca
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

si
tu

at
io

n.
 

M
on

ito
r d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 re
po

rt 

Page 100



 

 
 

 
 

21

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t a
ss

ur
an

ce
s 

Pl
an

ne
d 

au
di

t a
ct

io
n 

Lo
ca

l r
es

id
en

ts
 re

ly
 h

ea
vi

ly
 o

n 
fe

rr
y 

tra
ns

po
rt 

to
 

th
e 

ar
ea

’s
 is

la
nd

s 
an

d 
pe

ni
ns

ul
as

 a
nd

 th
er

e 
is

 a
 

ris
k 

th
at

 if
 th

e 
pi

er
s 

an
d 

ha
rb

ou
rs

 s
us

ta
in

ab
ili

ty
 

is
su

es
 a

re
 n

ot
 ta

ck
le

d 
w

ith
in

 a
 re

as
on

ab
le

 
tim

es
ca

le
, t

he
re

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
a 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

us
er

s 
of

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

an
d 

on
 c

ou
nc

il 
fin

an
ce

s.
 

A
 re

po
rt 

ar
is

in
g 

fro
m

 a
 re

vi
ew

 o
f p

ie
rs

, h
ar

bo
ur

s 
an

d 
fe

rr
ie

s 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

w
ith

in
 A

rg
yl

l a
nd

 B
ut

e 
w

as
 

su
bm

itt
ed

 to
 th

e 
S

tra
te

gi
c 

P
ol

ic
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 o

n 
5 

M
ay

 2
00

5.
  T

he
 m

ai
n 

is
su

es
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
by

 th
e 

re
vi

ew
 w

er
e:

 

• 
A

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 a

nd
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
te

ch
ni

qu
es

 f
or

 p
ie

rs
 a

nd
 h

ar
bo

ur
s 

an
d 

ho
w

 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l 
ca

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 

th
e 

in
co

m
e 

fo
r 

fu
tu

re
 in

ve
st

m
en

t a
nd

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 w
or

k.
 

• 
Th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 fe

rr
y 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

le
ve

l 
to

 w
hi

ch
 t

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

in
vo

lv
ed

 i
n 

th
is

 s
er

vi
ce

 d
el

iv
er

y.
 

Th
e 

re
po

rt 
no

te
d 

th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 re

du
ce

 p
ie

r o
w

ne
rs

hi
p 

an
d 

to
 c

on
si

de
r o

pe
ni

ng
 c

ou
nc

il 
ru

n 
fe

rr
y 

se
rv

ic
es

 
to

 c
om

pe
tit

iv
e 

te
nd

er
in

g.
  T

he
 re

su
lts

 o
f a

 
su

bs
eq

ue
nt

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

ex
er

ci
se

 a
re

 d
ue

 to
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 s
oo

n.
 

• 
M

on
ito

r d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 re

po
rt.

 

Page 101



 

 
 

 
 

22

W
or

kf
or

ce
 p

la
nn

in
g 

Pe
op

le
 p

la
y 

th
e 

ke
y 

ro
le

 in
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 h

ig
h 

pe
rf

or
m

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l m

ay
 n

ot
 h

av
e 

th
e 

rig
ht

 s
ki

lls
, i

n 
th

e 
rig

ht
 p

la
ce

, a
t t

he
 ri

gh
t t

im
e.

  
U

nd
er

ly
in

g 
th

is
 is

 a
 ri

sk
 th

at
 in

su
ffi

ci
en

t m
an

ag
em

en
t i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

is
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 a

llo
w

 jo
in

ed
 u

p 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l. 
 T

he
re

 a
re

 a
ls

o 
ris

ks
 o

ve
r t

he
 a

bi
lit

y 
of

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l t

o 
re

ta
in

 a
nd

 re
cr

ui
t s

ta
ff 

in
 s

om
e 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

ar
ea

s.
   

 R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t a
ss

ur
an

ce
s 

Pl
an

ne
d 

au
di

t a
ct

io
n 

Th
e 

re
ce

nt
ly

 la
un

ch
ed

 “G
ro

w
 Y

ou
r O

w
n”

 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 d
es

ig
ne

d 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 
di

ffi
cu

lty
 in

 re
cr

ui
tin

g 
ce

rta
in

 k
ey

 s
ki

lls
 a

nd
 

ty
pe

s 
of

 s
ta

ff.
 

A
t p

re
se

nt
, h

ow
ev

er
, t

he
 s

ch
em

e 
on

ly
 

in
vo

lv
es

 tw
o 

m
an

ag
em

en
t t

ra
in

ee
s.

  T
he

re
 

ar
e 

pl
an

s 
to

 in
cr

ea
se

 th
is

 n
um

be
r h

ow
ev

er
 

th
er

e 
is

 a
 ri

sk
 th

at
 th

e 
sc

he
m

e 
w

ill
 n

ot
 

ad
dr

es
s 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 in

 th
e 

lo
ng

er
 te

m
.  

 

• 
Th

e 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 b

ei
ng

 e
xt

en
de

d 
to

 
in

cl
ud

e 
va

rio
us

 s
ki

lle
d 

tra
de

s 
• 

Tr
ac

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
ss

ur
an

ce
s;

 

• 
R

ev
ie

w
 i

m
pr

ov
ed

 r
ec

ru
itm

en
t 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 a

s 
th

ey
 a

re
 im

pl
em

en
te

d.
 

Th
er

e 
is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 n

o 
ce

nt
ra

l 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

of
 

th
e 

P
D

R
 p

ro
ce

ss
. 

Fu
rth

er
 t

he
 s

ch
em

e 
ha

s 
no

t y
et

 b
ee

n 
ex

te
nd

ed
 to

 m
an

ua
l w

or
ke

rs
. 

Th
er

e 
is

 a
 ri

sk
 th

at
 s

om
e 

re
vi

ew
s 

m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

of
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
qu

al
ity

 a
nd

 m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

ta
ke

n 
at

 
al

l. 
A

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
th

e 
tra

in
in

g 
ne

ed
s 

of
 

ce
rta

in
 s

ta
ff 

m
e 

no
t b

e 
fu

lly
 re

al
is

ed
 o

r m
et

. 

• 
N

on
e 

as
 y

et
 

• 
N

o 
au

di
t a

ct
iv

ity
; r

ep
or

tin
g 

on
ly

 

Th
er

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 li

ttl
e 

re
ce

nt
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

of
 

di
re

ct
 s

ta
ff 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n.

 T
he

 la
st

 s
ta

ff 
su

rv
ey

 
w

as
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
in

 2
00

1.
  

Th
er

e 
is

 a
 ri

sk
 th

at
 m

an
ag

em
en

t m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

fu
lly

 a
w

ar
e 

of
 th

e 
co

nc
er

ns
 o

f i
t’s

 w
or

kf
or

ce
 

an
d 

m
ay

 fa
il 

to
 re

al
is

e 
pr

ob
le

m
 a

re
as

 

• 
N

on
e 

as
 y

et
 

• 
N

o 
au

di
t a

ct
iv

ity
; r

ep
or

tin
g 

on
ly

 

Page 102



 

 
 

 
 

23

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t a
ss

ur
an

ce
s 

Pl
an

ne
d 

au
di

t a
ct

io
n 

W
ith

in
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l, 
pe

rs
on

ne
l m

an
ag

em
en

t i
s 

he
av

ily
 d

ev
ol

ve
d 

to
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
. S

om
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
re

 c
le

ar
ly

 m
or

e 
in

cl
in

ed
 to

 
im

pl
em

en
t s

pe
ci

fic
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

th
an

 o
th

er
s.

 T
he

 
la

ck
 o

f c
or

po
ra

te
 s

tra
te

gy
 h

as
 le

d 
to

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
de

vi
si

ng
 th

ei
r o

w
n.

 F
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e 
C

or
po

ra
te

 
P

er
so

nn
el

 is
 a

cc
re

di
te

d 
un

de
r I

nv
es

to
rs

 in
 

P
eo

pl
e 

(II
P

), 
as

 a
re

 c
er

ta
in

 o
th

er
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

bu
t t

he
re

 is
 n

o 
co

rp
or

at
e 

po
lic

y 
on

 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

na
l a

cc
re

di
ta

tio
n 

or
 fu

rth
er

 ro
ll-

ou
t. 

Th
er

e 
is

 a
 ri

sk
 th

at
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

ad
he

rin
g 

to
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 in

 th
e 

co
rp

or
at

e 
in

te
re

st
. 

• 
It 

is
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

th
at

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l w

ill
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

is
 

is
su

e 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 it
 is

 p
re

pa
rin

g 
in

 
re

sp
on

se
 to

 th
e 

is
su

es
 r

ai
se

d 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

be
st

 
va

lu
e 

au
di

t 

• 
Fo

llo
w

-u
p 

th
e 

is
su

es
 ra

is
ed

 in
 th

e 
be

st
 v

al
ue

 
re

po
rt 

an
d 

co
ns

id
er

 
th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

pr
og

re
ss

 m
ad

e 
in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 th
e 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 

on
ce

 d
ev

is
ed

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
ve

d.
 

Fo
r C

or
po

ra
te

 P
er

so
nn

el
, t

he
 b

ig
ge

st
 

ch
al

le
ng

e 
co

nt
in

ue
s 

to
 b

e 
pr

ep
ar

at
io

n 
fo

r 
si

ng
le

 s
ta

tu
s.

   

In
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 th
e 

lik
el

ih
oo

d 
of

 in
cu

rr
in

g 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 c
os

ts
, t

he
re

 is
 a

 ri
sk

 th
at

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l m

ay
 a

ls
o 

re
qu

ire
 to

 m
ak

e 
so

m
e 

po
te

nt
ia

lly
 to

ug
h 

de
ci

si
on

s 
in

 re
la

tio
n 

to
 

ex
is

tin
g 

te
rm

s 
&

 c
on

di
tio

ns
. 

• 
Fu

nd
in

g 
m

ad
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
in

 
fu

tu
re

 
ye

ar
s 

bu
dg

et
s 

• 
U

ni
on

 n
eg

ot
ia

to
ns

 o
ng

oi
ng

 

• 
M

on
ito

r d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 

Page 103



 

 
 

 
 

24

Jo
in

t w
or

ki
ng

 a
nd

 c
om

m
un

ity
 p

la
nn

in
g 

Th
er

e 
is

 a
 ri

sk
 th

at
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l i
s 

no
t b

es
t p

os
iti

on
ed

 w
ith

 it
s 

co
m

m
un

ity
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 th

e 
ai

m
s 

an
d 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 o

f c
om

m
un

ity
 p

la
nn

in
g.

 

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t a
ss

ur
an

ce
s 

Pl
an

ne
d 

au
di

t a
ct

io
n 

Th
e 

im
pe

nd
in

g 
di

ss
ol

ut
io

n 
of

 A
rg

yl
l 

&
 C

ly
de

 
H

ea
lth

 B
oa

rd
 h

as
 c

au
se

d 
so

m
e 

un
ce

rta
in

ty
 fo

r 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l. 
A

 c
om

m
un

ity
 h

ea
lth

 p
la

n 
ha

s 
no

t 
ye

t b
ee

n 
ag

re
ed

 w
ith

 H
ig

hl
an

d 
N

H
S

.  
Th

er
e 

is
 

th
er

ef
or

e 
a 

ris
k 

th
at

 a
 d

el
ay

 to
 th

e 
C

H
P

 h
ol

ds
 

up
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

of
 

he
al

th
 

in
iti

at
iv

es
 

an
d 

m
ili

ta
te

s 
ag

ai
ns

t a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 C

P
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

. 

• 
Th

e 
co

un
ci

l 
is

 i
n 

co
nt

in
ui

ng
 d

is
cu

ss
io

ns
 w

ith
 

pa
rtn

er
s 

• 
It 

w
as

 a
gr

ee
d 

at
 th

e 
re

ce
nt

 jo
in

t f
ut

ur
es

 s
em

in
ar

 
th

at
 th

e 
S

tra
te

gy
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

fin
al

is
ed

 a
nd

 a
gr

ee
d 

by
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

6 
• 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e,

 s
ta

nd
in

g 
or

de
rs

, 
H

R
 i

ss
ue

s 
an

d 
ac

co
un

ta
bi

lit
y 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 a
re

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 b

ei
ng

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

• 
K

ey
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
ta

rg
et

s 
an

d 
ou

tp
ut

s 
ar

e 
al

so
 

be
in

g 
de

vi
se

d 
 

• 
M

on
ito

r 
pr

og
re

ss
 

of
 

Jo
in

t 
Fu

tu
re

s 
W

or
ki

ng
 

G
ro

up
 a

nd
 r

el
ev

an
t 

co
m

m
itt

ee
 r

ep
or

ts
 m

ad
e 

to
 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l 

Th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 p

la
nn

in
g 

du
tie

s 
of

 t
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

ha
ve

 h
el

pe
d 

ge
ne

ra
te

 a
 c

om
pl

ex
 n

et
w

or
k 

of
 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
ps

, 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

an
d 

in
iti

at
iv

es
 

in
 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 

w
ith

 
ot

he
r 

ag
en

ci
es

. 
 

In
 

th
is

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t t
he

re
 a

re
 ri

sk
s:

 
• 

of
 

du
pl

ic
at

io
n 

an
d 

ov
er

lo
ad

 
fo

r 
th

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 in

vo
lv

ed
; 

• 
th

at
 

th
e 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
na

l 
st

at
us

 
of

 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 p
la

nn
in

g 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 r
es

tri
ct

s 
its

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s,

 a
s 

it 
is

 u
na

bl
e 

to
 h

ol
d 

fu
nd

s 
or

 
m

ak
e 

di
re

ct
 

de
ci

si
on

s 
ov

er
 

al
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 
re

so
ur

ce
s;

 
• 

th
at

 
un

cl
ea

r 
ac

co
un

ta
bi

lit
ie

s  
m

ay
 

le
ad

 
to

 
un

de
rp

er
fo

rm
an

ce
; 

• 
th

at
 

an
 

ea
rly

 
fo

cu
s 

on
 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 

an
d 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
re

su
lts

 in
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

be
in

g 
un

ab
le

 to
 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

in
 t

er
m

s 
of

 
im

pr
ov

ed
ou

tc
om

es
fo

rs
er

vi
ce

us
er

s

• 
A

rg
yl

l a
nd

 B
ut

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 P
la

nn
in

g 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

as
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
in

 1
99

9,
 a

nd
 

co
m

pr
is

es
 th

e 
ke

y 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

of
 p

ub
lic

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 a
nd

 re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

es
 fr

om
 th

e 
lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
ity

. 
 • 

Th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

la
n 

id
en

tif
ie

s 
a 

nu
m

be
r o

f 
pr

io
rit

y 
th

em
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

C
P

P
’s

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
 fl

ow
 d

ire
ct

ly
 fr

om
 

th
es

e 
ov

er
al

l “
pr

io
rit

y 
th

em
es

” a
nd

 a
re

 
co

nc
er

ne
d 

w
ith

 ta
ck

lin
g 

di
sa

dv
an

ta
ge

 w
he

re
 it

 
ex

is
ts

 g
eo

gr
ap

hi
ca

lly
 a

nd
 w

he
re

 it
 re

la
te

s 
to

 
pa

rti
cu

la
rly

 d
is

ad
va

nt
ag

ed
 g

ro
up

s.
 T

he
re

 is
 a

 
di

re
ct

 re
la

tio
ns

hi
p 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
es

e 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 a

nd
 th

e 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
N

at
io

na
l P

rio
rit

ie
s 

fo
r C

om
m

un
ity

 R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
an

d 
th

e 
C

lo
si

ng
 th

e 
O

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 G

ap
 

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
. 

 

• 
Tr

ac
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

ss
ur

an
ce

s;
 

• 
A

ud
it 

S
co

tla
nd

 n
at

io
na

l 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
(W

in
te

r 2
00

5/
06

). 

Page 104



 

 
 

 
 

25

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t a
ss

ur
an

ce
s 

Pl
an

ne
d 

au
di

t a
ct

io
n 

im
pr

ov
ed

 o
ut

co
m

es
 fo

r s
er

vi
ce

 u
se

rs
. 

• 
A

ge
nc

ie
s 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 P
la

nn
in

g 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 a

re
 a

ct
iv

el
y 

pr
om

ot
in

g 
co

lla
bo

ra
tio

n 
as

 a
 w

ay
 o

f e
ns

ur
in

g 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

in
te

gr
at

io
n 

an
d 

sy
ne

rg
y 

ba
se

d 
on

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f j
oi

nt
 

pl
an

s 
an

d 
st

ra
te

gi
es

. I
t i

s 
an

tic
ip

at
ed

 th
at

 th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
ou

tc
om

e 
ag

re
em

en
t (

R
O

A
) w

ill
 re

su
lt 

in
 b

et
te

r v
al

ue
 fo

r 
m

on
ey

 fr
om

 s
pe

nd
 b

y 
al

l p
ar

tn
er

s 
as

 a
 re

su
lt 

of
 

ec
on

om
ie

s 
of

 s
ca

le
 fr

om
 a

 jo
in

t s
tra

te
gi

c 
ap

pr
oa

ch
. 

 • 
Th

e 
C

P
P

 h
as

 a
ss

is
te

d 
th

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
of

 im
pr

ov
in

g 
th

e 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

fo
cu

s 
an

d 
ta

rg
et

in
g 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

  A
 

nu
m

be
r o

f s
ig

ni
fic

an
t i

nv
es

tm
en

ts
 a

re
 u

nd
er

w
ay

 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 im
pa

ct
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

tly
 o

n 
th

e 
m

os
t 

de
pr

iv
ed

 d
at

a 
zo

ne
s 

ov
er

 th
e 

lif
et

im
e 

of
 th

e 
R

O
A

. T
he

 im
po

rta
nc

e 
of

 th
e 

ec
on

om
ic

 a
nd

 
so

ci
al

 re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

of
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 is

, f
or

 
ex

am
pl

e,
 a

 k
ey

 th
em

e 
of

 A
rg

yl
l a

nd
 B

ut
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
C

or
po

ra
te

 P
la

n 
 

Page 105



 

 
 

 
 

26

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t a
ss

ur
an

ce
s 

Pl
an

ne
d 

au
di

t a
ct

io
n 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
ha

s 
st

al
le

d 
on

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f 
th

e 
ne

w
 C

P
P

 fr
am

ew
or

k,
 in

 fa
ci

lit
at

in
g 

th
e 

in
te

gr
at

io
n 

of
 S

IP
s.

 T
he

re
 is

 a
n 

ap
pa

re
nt

 la
ck

 
of

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
w

ith
 th

e 
pi

lo
t p

ro
je

ct
 in

 th
e 

B
ut

e 
&

 C
ow

al
 a

re
a.

  
Th

er
e 

is
 a

 ri
sk

 th
at

 th
e 

pr
in

ci
pl

es
 b

eh
in

d 
th

e 
S

co
tti

sh
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e’

s 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

S
ta

te
m

en
t 

an
d 

th
e 

Lo
ca

l G
ov

er
nm

en
t S

co
tla

nd
 A

ct
 m

ay
 

no
t b

e 
fu

lly
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 

• 
Th

e 
re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
ou

tc
om

e 
ag

re
em

en
t (

R
O

A
) 

fo
r 

A
rg

yl
l a

nd
 B

ut
e 

pr
ov

id
es

 a
n 

ou
tli

ne
 o

f t
he

 
ov

er
al

l a
pp

ro
ac

h 
th

at
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
in

 
re

la
tio

n 
to

 t
he

 in
te

gr
at

io
n 

of
 S

oc
ia

l I
nc

lu
si

on
 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
(S

IP
) 

fu
nd

in
g 

w
ith

 
th

e 
B

et
te

r 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
Fu

nd
 (

B
N

S
F)

 i
nt

o 
th

e 
ne

w
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
Fu

nd
 

(C
R

F)
. 

 • 
Th

e 
R

O
A

 b
ui

ld
s 

on
 t

he
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

th
at

 h
as

 
be

en
 m

ad
e 

w
ith

in
 A

rg
yl

l 
an

d 
B

ut
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

w
or

k 
of

 th
e 

S
IP

 a
nd

 B
N

S
F.

 T
he

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
al

so
 d

ra
w

s 
on

 t
he

 l
es

so
ns

 a
nd

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

ga
in

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
op

er
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

, 
an

d 
pr

ov
id

es
 a

 s
tra

te
gi

c 
an

d 
op

er
at

io
na

l f
ra

m
ew

or
k 

fo
r t

he
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
C

R
F 

ov
er

 th
e 

th
re

e-
ye

ar
 p

er
io

d 
20

05
 –

 
20

08
 

 • 
Th

e 
R

O
A

 s
et

s 
ou

t, 
fo

r 
ea

ch
 o

f 
th

e 
C

P
P

 
re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

, 
th

e 
ke

y 
ou

tc
om

es
, 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 

in
di

ca
to

rs
, 

ta
rg

et
 

ar
ea

s,
 

ta
rg

et
 

gr
ou

ps
, 

ba
se

lin
e 

da
ta

 
an

d 
(fo

r 
th

e 
ta

rg
et

 
ar

ea
s 

as
 a

 w
ho

le
) f

in
al

 ta
rg

et
s.

   
 

• 
Fo

llo
w

-u
p 

th
e 

is
su

es
 r

ai
se

d 
in

 t
he

 b
es

t 
va

lu
e 

re
po

rt 
an

d 
co

ns
id

er
 

th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
pr

og
re

ss
 m

ad
e 

in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 t

he
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 

on
ce

 d
ev

is
ed

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
ve

d.
 

Th
e 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 o

f t
he

 C
P

P
 a

re
 w

id
e-

ra
ng

in
g 

an
d 

do
 n

ot
 a

pp
ea

r s
pe

ci
fic

 e
no

ug
h 

 
A

ls
o,

 th
es

e 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 a
re

 n
ot

 e
as

ily
 

m
ea

su
ra

bl
e 

vi
a 

ta
rg

et
s 

(i.
e.

 th
ey

 a
re

 n
ot

 
S

M
A

R
T)

. A
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

it 
is

 d
iff

ic
ul

t m
on

ito
r 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 o

r g
au

ge
 s

uc
ce

ss
. 

Th
er

e 
is

 a
 ri

sk
 th

at
 th

e 
C

P
P

 m
ay

 b
eg

in
 to

 
lo

se
 it

’s
 m

om
en

tu
m

 a
nd

 d
ire

ct
io

n.
 

• 
It 

is
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

th
at

 t
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 a
dd

re
ss

 
th

is
 is

su
e 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

 it
 is

 p
re

pa
rin

g 
in

 r
es

po
ns

e 
to

 t
he

 i
ss

ue
s 

ra
is

ed
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 
be

st
 v

al
ue

 a
ud

it 

• 
Fo

llo
w

-u
p 

th
e 

is
su

es
 r

ai
se

d 
in

 t
he

 b
es

t 
va

lu
e 

re
po

rt 
an

d 
co

ns
id

er
 

th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
pr

og
re

ss
 m

ad
e 

in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 t

he
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 

on
ce

 d
ev

is
ed

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
ve

d.
 

Page 106



 

 
 

 
 

27

C
or

po
ra

te
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
ris

k 
Th

er
e 

is
 a

 ri
sk

 th
at

 th
e 

sy
st

em
s 

of
 in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l d

o 
no

t a
de

qu
at

el
y 

sa
fe

gu
ar

d 
ag

ai
ns

t f
ut

ur
e 

ris
ks

. 

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t a
ss

ur
an

ce
s 

Pl
an

ne
d 

au
di

t a
ct

io
n 

R
is

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t i
s 

in
co

m
pl

et
e 

bu
t 

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

au
th

or
ity

.  
Th

er
e 

re
m

ai
ns

 a
 ri

sk
 th

at
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
no

t f
ul

ly
 id

en
tif

yi
ng

 o
r c

on
tro

lli
ng

 th
e 

ris
ks

 re
la

te
d 

to
 th

ei
r b

us
in

es
s 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
es

 

• 
A

 s
tra

te
gi

c 
ris

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t g
ro

up
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

se
t u

p,
 w

hi
ch

 m
ee

ts
 o

n 
a 

qu
ar

te
rly

 b
as

is
 a

nd
 

is
 i

nt
en

de
d 

to
 s

up
po

rt 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 

co
rp

or
at

e 
ris

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t. 
 

Th
e 

gr
ou

p 
ha

s 
m

et
 

on
 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 o
cc

as
io

ns
 u

nd
er

ta
ki

ng
 a

n 
in

iti
al

 
hi

gh
 le

ve
l r

ev
ie

w
 o

f t
he

 s
tra

te
gi

c 
ris

k 
re

gi
st

er
.  

Th
e 

gr
ou

p 
ha

s 
al

so
 a

gr
ee

d 
a 

fo
rm

 o
f 

ris
k 

m
at

rix
 

an
d 

re
gi

st
er

 
an

d 
is

 
ex

am
in

in
g 

th
e 

co
ns

tit
ut

io
n 

of
 

lo
ss

 
co

nt
ro

l 
gr

ou
ps

 
w

ith
in

 
se

rv
ic

e 
ar

ea
s.

 I
t 

is
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

th
at

 t
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

is
 is

su
e 

in
 re

sp
on

se
 

to
 t

he
 a

re
as

 i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 a

s 
m

os
t 

in
 n

ee
d 

of
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

by
 

th
e 

be
st

 
va

lu
e 

re
vi

ew
 

pr
oc

es
s.

 

• 
R

ev
ie

w
 

pr
og

re
ss

 
m

ad
e 

by
 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l 

in
 

ad
dr

es
si

ng
 a

ct
io

ns
 a

nd
 ta

rg
et

s 
ar

is
in

g 
fro

m
 th

e 
be

st
 v

al
ue

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t a

ge
nd

a.
   

Th
er

e 
is

 a
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 b

ud
ge

t a
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r 
m

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 g

en
er

al
/ s

pe
ci

fic
 e

ve
nt

s 
ar

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
ye

ar
. M

em
be

rs
 a

re
 a

ls
o 

fre
e 

to
 m

ak
e 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

re
qu

es
ts

 a
s 

an
d 

w
he

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
  T

he
re

 is
 n

o 
fo

rm
al

 p
ro

ac
tiv

e 
m

ec
ha

ni
sm

, h
ow

ev
er

, w
hi

ch
 e

ns
ur

es
 th

at
 

th
e 

ex
ac

t t
ra

in
in

g 
ne

ed
s 

of
 a

 s
pe

ci
fic

 
m

em
be

r a
re

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
an

d 
ad

dr
es

se
d.

 

Th
er

e 
is

 th
er

ef
or

e 
a 

ris
k 

th
at

 a
n 

in
di

vi
du

al
 

m
em

be
r’s

 s
pe

ci
fic

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 n
ee

ds
 a

re
 n

ot
 

ad
eq

ua
te

ly
 a

ss
es

se
d 

or
 re

al
is

ed
.  

Th
er

e 
is

 a
ls

o 
a 

ris
k 

th
at

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 re
so

ur
ce

s 
ar

e 
no

t a
de

qu
at

el
y 

ut
ili

se
d 

or
 fo

cu
ss

ed
 

• 
N

on
e 

ye
t 

• 
N

o 
au

di
t a

ct
iv

ity
; f

or
 re

po
rti

ng
 o

nl
y 

Page 107



 

 
 

 
 

28

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t a
ss

ur
an

ce
s 

Pl
an

ne
d 

au
di

t a
ct

io
n 

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l h

ol
ds

 fi
xe

d 
as

se
ts

 w
or

th
 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
£3

58
 m

ill
io

n,
 m

ai
nl

y 
co

ns
is

tin
g 

of
 la

nd
 a

nd
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

.  
Th

e 
co

un
ci

l’s
 a

ss
et

 m
an

ag
em

en
t s

tra
te

gy
, w

hi
ch

 
pr

ov
id

es
 a

n 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

 a
nd

 ti
m

et
ab

le
 fo

r t
he

 
in

te
gr

at
io

n 
of

 a
ss

et
 m

an
ag

em
en

t i
nt

o 
se

rv
ic

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 m

an
ag

em
en

t, 
is

 
be

in
g 

ta
ke

n 
fo

rw
ar

d.
  T

he
re

 is
 a

 ri
sk

, 
ho

w
ev

er
, t

ha
t i

n 
th

e 
ab

se
nc

e 
of

 a
 ro

bu
st

 
as

se
t m

an
ag

em
en

t p
la

nn
in

g  
pr

oc
es

s,
 c

ap
ita

l 
in

ve
st

m
en

t d
ec

is
io

ns
 d

o 
no

t r
ep

re
se

nt
 th

e 
be

st
 fi

t t
o 

co
rp

or
at

e 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 

• 
C

om
pl

et
en

es
s 

ch
ec

ks
 

an
d 

so
m

e 
pr

op
er

ty
 

co
nd

iti
on

 
su

rv
ey

s 
ar

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 

be
in

g 
un

de
rta

ke
n 

ac
ro

ss
 t

he
 c

ou
nc

il.
  

 A
ss

et
 u

se
 

an
d 

op
tio

ns
 a

pp
ra

is
al

 w
ill

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 o

nc
e 

th
e 

co
m

pl
et

en
es

s 
ch

ec
ks

 a
re

 fi
na

lis
ed

. W
or

k 
ha

s 
al

so
 

be
en

 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 
on

 
th

e 
sc

ho
ol

s 
es

ta
te

 a
ss

et
 m

an
ag

em
en

t p
la

n 
an

d 
th

e 
ro

ad
s 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 
an

d 
as

se
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

pl
an

 
an

d 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l 
ha

s 
as

se
ss

ed
 t

he
 l

ev
el

 o
f 

ba
ck

lo
g 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 i
n 

bo
th

 a
re

as
. 

 I
t 

is
 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 
th

at
 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l 

w
ill

 
co

nt
in

ue
 

ad
dr

es
s 

th
is

 i
ss

ue
 i

n 
re

sp
on

se
 t

o 
th

e 
ar

ea
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
as

 m
os

t i
n 

ne
ed

 o
f i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t b

y 
th

e 
be

st
 v

al
ue

 re
vi

ew
 p

ro
ce

ss
. 

• 
R

ev
ie

w
 

pr
og

re
ss

 
m

ad
e 

by
 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l 

in
 

ad
dr

es
si

ng
 a

ct
io

ns
 a

nd
 ta

rg
et

s 
ar

is
in

g 
fro

m
 th

e 
be

st
 v

al
ue

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t a

ge
nd

a.
   

Th
e 

Lo
ca

l 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
in

 S
co

tla
nd

 A
ct

 2
00

3 
re

pl
ac

ed
 

co
m

pu
ls

or
y 

co
m

pe
tit

iv
e 

te
nd

er
in

g 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 
w

ith
 

a 
du

ty
 

to
 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
an

d 
di

sc
lo

se
 

tra
di

ng
 

ac
co

un
ts

 
fo

r 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
tra

di
ng

 o
pe

ra
tio

ns
, w

hi
ch

 a
re

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 b

re
ak

 
ev

en
 o

ve
r 

a 
th

re
e-

ye
ar

 r
ol

lin
g 

pe
rio

d.
  

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
ris

ks
 th

at
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l: 

• d
oe

s 
no

t 
co

nd
uc

t 
op

er
at

io
ns

 o
f 

S
TO

s 
to

 
en

su
re

 b
re

ak
 e

ve
n;

 

• 
fa

ils
 t

o 
re

vi
ew

 i
ts

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 a

nd
 t

he
 c

rit
er

ia
 

us
ed

 t
o 

id
en

tif
y 

S
TO

s 
to

 r
ef

le
ct

 c
ha

ng
in

g 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s 

• 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

in
te

rn
al

 r
ec

ha
rg

es
 a

t 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 
th

e 
ye

ar
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

  
in

co
ns

is
te

nt
 w

ith
 t

he
 

co
nc

ep
t 

of
 

tra
di

ng
 

an
d 

do
 

no
t 

re
pr

es
en

t 
pr

op
er

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

pr
ac

tic
e.

 

 

• 
Th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 t

he
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 a

ris
in

g 
fro

m
 

th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 
ex

te
rn

al
 

au
di

t 
re

po
rt 

on
 

S
TO

s;
 

• 
C

on
tin

ui
ng

 
S

TO
 

fin
an

ci
al

 
an

d 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 

• 
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
ch

ar
gi

ng
 b

as
is

 f
or

 t
ra

di
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

tra
di

ng
 s

er
vi

ce
 

re
ch

ar
ge

s 
ar

e 
on

 a
 tr

ad
in

g 
ba

si
s.

 

• 
Tr

ac
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

ss
ur

an
ce

s;
 

• 
Fo

llo
w

-u
p 

of
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

au
di

t r
ep

or
t. 

Page 108



 

 
 

 
 

29

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t a
ss

ur
an

ce
s 

Pl
an

ne
d 

au
di

t a
ct

io
n 

Th
e 

co
st

in
g 

sy
st

em
 u

se
d 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 R

oa
ds

 &
 

Li
gh

tin
g 

tra
di

ng
 

op
er

at
io

n 
is

 
ou

td
at

ed
 

an
d 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
co

nc
er

ns
 

ov
er

 
th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
. T

he
re

 is
 a

 r
is

k 
th

at
 fu

ll 
co

st
s 

ar
e 

no
t 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
by

 th
e 

sy
st

em
 a

nd
 th

at
 s

to
ck

 m
ay

 b
e 

in
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ly
 v

al
ue

d.
 

• 
A

 w
or

ki
ng

 g
ro

up
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

se
t u

p 
to

 o
ve

rs
ee

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

of
 a

 r
ev

is
ed

 c
os

tin
g 

sy
st

em
 f

or
 

us
e 

w
ith

in
 

th
e 

R
oa

ds
 

&
 

Li
gh

tin
g 

Tr
ad

in
g 

A
cc

ou
nt

, w
ith

 in
pu

t f
ro

m
 In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

• 
M

on
ito

r 
pr

og
re

ss
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 m
ad

e 
by

 t
he

 
w

or
ki

ng
 g

ro
up

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
dv

ic
e 

as
 re

qu
ire

d 

A
ll 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

ar
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 p

re
pa

re
 fu

ll 
gr

ou
p 

ac
co

un
ts

 
fro

m
 

20
05

/0
6,

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

co
m

pa
ra

tiv
e 

fig
ur

es
 fo

r 2
00

4/
05

.  
Th

e 
qu

an
tit

y 
of

 
ar

m
s 

le
ng

th
 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

, 
th

ei
r 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
ps

 t
o 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l a

nd
 t

he
 v

ar
ie

ty
 in

 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

pr
ac

tic
es

 a
nd

 t
im

et
ab

le
s 

cu
rr

en
tly

 
op

er
at

ed
 a

re
 li

ke
ly

 t
o 

pr
es

en
t 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 r

is
ks

 
to

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 a
bi

lit
y 

to
 c

om
pl

y.
 

• 
R

ev
ie

w
 

of
 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 

of
 

gr
ou

p 
ac

co
un

ts
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 
an

d 
ea

rly
 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t 

w
ith

 
af

fe
ct

ed
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

. 

• 
Tr

ac
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

ss
ur

an
ce

s;
 

• 
R

ev
ie

w
 t

he
 c

ou
nc

il’
s 

pr
og

re
ss

 i
n 

pr
ep

ar
in

g 
fo

r 
th

e 
in

tro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 g
ro

up
 a

cc
ou

nt
s.

 

Page 109



 

 
 

 
 

30

Ef
fic

ie
nt

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t 

Th
er

e 
is

 a
 ri

sk
 th

at
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l a
re

 n
ot

 in
 a

 p
os

iti
on

 to
 b

e 
ab

le
 to

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 th
at

 th
ey

 c
an

 a
ch

ie
ve

 s
av

in
gs

 w
hi

ch
 d

o 
no

t i
n 

an
y 

w
ay

 a
dv

er
se

ly
 

af
fe

ct
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

. 

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t a
ss

ur
an

ce
s 

Pl
an

ne
d 

au
di

t a
ct

io
n 

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l 

ha
s 

go
ne

 s
om

e 
w

ay
 t

ow
ar

ds
 

m
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

£7
.5

m
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 s
av

in
gs

 t
ar

ge
t 

se
t 

by
 t

he
 S

co
tti

sh
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e.

  
It 

ha
s 

st
ill

, 
ho

w
ev

er
, t

o 
id

en
tif

y 
ho

w
 £

2.
5m

 o
f t

hi
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

. 
In

 a
dd

iti
on

, 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l h
as

 y
et

 t
o 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

 
ho

w
 

its
 

co
st

in
gs

 
ha

ve
 

be
en

 
de

riv
ed

 fo
r t

he
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 s
av

in
gs

.  
Th

er
e 

is
 t

he
re

fo
re

 a
 r

is
k 

th
at

 t
he

se
 s

av
in

gs
 

m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

so
un

dl
y 

ba
se

d,
 a

nd
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

ta
rg

et
 m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
m

et
. 

• 
N

on
e 

ye
t 

• 
N

o 
au

di
t a

ct
iv

ity
; f

or
 re

po
rti

ng
 o

nl
y 

Th
e 

5 
ke

y 
w

or
ks

tre
am

s 
of

 
ef

fic
ie

nt
 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t 

(a
ss

et
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t, 

m
an

ag
in

g 
ab

se
nc

e,
 p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t, 

sh
ar

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
s,

 a
nd

 
st

re
am

lin
in

g 
bu

re
au

cr
ac

y)
 

ha
ve

 
no

t 
be

en
 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 i

n 
a 

sy
st

em
at

ic
 m

an
ne

r 
ov

er
 t

he
 

co
un

ci
l’s

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
 R

is
ks

 a
re

 th
at

: 
• 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

to
 

ga
in

 
ef

fic
ie

nc
ie

s 
ar

e 
no

t 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
d 

ac
te

d 
up

on
 i

n 
a 

sy
st

em
at

ic
 

m
an

ne
r; 

an
d 

• 
S

co
tti

sh
 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
ta

rg
et

s 
ar

e 
no

t 
m

et
 

ta
rg

et
s 

ar
e 

no
t m

et
. 

• 
N

on
e 

ye
t 

• 
N

o 
au

di
t a

ct
iv

ity
; f

or
 re

po
rti

ng
 o

nl
y 

A
 b

en
ef

its
 t

ra
ck

in
g 

sy
st

em
 h

as
 n

ot
 y

et
 b

ee
n 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
by

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l. 

 
Th

e 
ab

se
nc

e 
of

 s
uc

h 
a 

sy
st

em
 w

ill
 p

re
ve

nt
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l 
fro

m
 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
tin

g 
an

y 
cl

ai
m

ed
 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
sa

vi
ng

s.
 

• 
N

on
e 

ye
t. 

• 
N

o 
au

di
t a

ct
iv

ity
; f

or
 re

po
rti

ng
 o

nl
y 

 

Page 110



 

    31

Appendix B  
 

Reliance on internal audit 
 

Auditing standards require internal and external auditors to work closely together to make optimal 

use of available audit resources.  We seek to rely on the work of internal audit wherever possible 

and as part of our planning process we carry out an early assessment of the internal audit function.   

Our 2005/06 review of the internal audit service has concluded that, subject to certain resourcing 

issues, the council’s internal audit service operates in accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice 

for Internal Audit in Local Government. We therefore plan to place reliance on the work of internal 

audit work in the following areas: 

• Payroll 

• Council tax and NDR 

• Capital accounting 

• Capital contracts 

• Cash income and banking 

• Payments to voluntary bodies 

• Unified benefits 

• Contract hire and operating leases 

• Creditor payments and purchasing 

• Debtor accounts 

• Housing rents 

• General ledger operations 

• Government & European grants 

• Treasury management 

• Tendering procedures  

 

We expand on specific aspects of reliance on internal audit within our Financial Statements 

Strategy which will be submitted to the council during March 2006.

Page 111



 

    32

Appendix C  
 

Audit team 
 

 

Summarised information for each core team member is set out below:  
 

Name Summary  

Gavin Stevenson 

Director of Local 
Government 

CPFA 

17 years experience of the public sector 

Angela Cassels   

Assistant Director of 
Audit 

BA (Hons), Post-graduate Diploma in Professional 
Accountancy, CPFA . 

16 years experience of local government audit. 

David Jamieson 

Senior Audit Manager 
and lead contact 

CPFA 

22 years experience of public sector audit. 

Ian Bell 

Senior Auditor 

BA CPFA 

9 years experience of local government 

Laurence Slavin 

Auditor 
MA (Joint Hons) QICA CISA 

8 years auditing experience 

Jim Cumming 

ICT Senior Auditor 
BSc CEng MBCS CITP 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

\\file01\audit services\@gmt-2006.04.19-11.00.08\local government\clients\clients-councils\argyll and bute council\2005-06\planning\rhd_ab arap 0506 270306.doc 

Page 112



  
ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 
FINANCE 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE

9 JUNE 2006
    
  
REPORT ON 2005 - 2006 INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL STATEMENT (IFCS) 
  
  
  
1. SUMMARY 
    
  It is the responsibility of the Council’s senior management to establish an appropriate and 

sound system of internal control and to monitor the continuing effectiveness of that 
system.  It is the responsibility of Internal Audit to provide an annual overall assessment 
of the robustness of the Internal Financial Control System (IFCS) for the Head of 
Strategic Finance for 2005 – 2006 and this is provided in Appendix 1.  

    
2. RECOMMENDATION 
    
    2.1 The contents of this report are noted. 
    
3. DETAILS 
    
    3.1 The main objectives of the Council’s internal financial control systems are: 

• To ensure adherence to management policies and directives in order to 
achieve the organisation’s objectives; 

• To safeguard assets; 
• To secure the relevance, reliability and integrity of information, so 

ensuring as far as possible the completeness and accuracy of records; and 
• To ensure compliance with statutory requirements.  

    
 

    3.2 Evaluation of the control environment is informed by a number of sources: 
• The work undertaken by internal audit during the year to 31st March 2006; 
• The assessment of needs completed during the preparation of the strategic 

audit plan; 
• Reports issued by the Council’s external auditors, Audit Scotland; and 
• Internal Audit knowledge of the Council’s governance, risk management 

and performance monitoring arrangements. 
    

 
  3.3 The statement has 2 sections in which Internal Audit is required to give an opinion 

on the Council control environment. The first is on matters brought forward from 
the previous year. The second is new matters arising in 2005 - 2006. Directors 
internal financial control statements are being prepared to support the overall 
statement of control prepared by the Head of Strategic Finance for the Council.  

      
 

  3.4 The attached statement is in Draft format and maybe updated further until Audit 
Scotland completes their review of the Council’s Annual Accounts for 2005 – 
2006. 

    
 

Agenda Item 11Page 113



4. CONCLUSIONS 
    
  Except for the items listed in the IFCS in Appendix 1, it is the opinion of Internal 

Audit, based on the audit work carried out to date, that reasonable assurance can 
be placed upon the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s internal financial 
control systems in the year to the 31st March 2006.  
 

5. IMPLICATIONS 
  5.1 Policy: None 
        
  5.2 Financial: None 
        
  5.3 Personnel: None 
        
  5.4 Legal: None 
        
  5.5 Equal Opportunities: None 
 
 For further information please contact Ian Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager (01546 604216) 
  
Ian Nisbet 
Internal Audit Manager   15th May 2006.  
15Mayfinalreport15May 

Page 114



F:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\5\5\AI00029557\IFCSDraftFrontPage0.doc 

DRAFT  
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL STATEMENT  

2005-2006 
 
To the Head of Strategic Finance 
 
As Internal Audit Manager of Argyll & Bute Council, I am pleased to present my annual 
statement on the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal financial control system of the 
Council for the year ended 31 March 2006. 
 
Respective responsibilities of management and Internal Auditors in relation to internal 
control 
 
It is the responsibility of the Council’s senior management to establish an appropriate and 
sound system of internal financial control and to monitor the continuing effectiveness of that 
system.  It is the responsibility of the Internal Audit Manager to provide an annual overall 
assessment of the robustness of the internal financial control system.   
 
Sound internal controls 
 
The main objectives of the Council’s internal financial control system are: 
 

• To ensure adherence to management policies and directives in order to achieve 
the organisation’s objectives; 

 
• To safeguard assets; 

 
• To secure the relevance, reliability and integrity of information, so ensuring as far 

as possible the completeness and accuracy of records; and 
 

• To ensure compliance with statutory requirements. 
 
Any system of financial control can only ever provide reasonable and not absolute assurance 
that control weaknesses or irregularities do not exist or that there is no risk of material errors, 
losses, fraud, or breaches of laws or regulations. Accordingly, the Council is continually 
seeking to improve the effectiveness of its system of internal financial control. 
  
The work of Internal Audit 
 
Internal Audit is an independent appraisal function established by the management of an 
organisation for the review of the internal control system as a service to the organisation.  It 
objectively examines, evaluates and reports on the adequacy of internal control as a 
contribution to the proper, economic, efficient and effective use of resources. 
 
The Internal Audit section operates in accordance with the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy’s Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in the 
United Kingdom.  The section undertakes an annual programme of work approved by the 
Audit Committee based on a 3-year strategic audit plan.  The strategic audit plan is based on 
a formal needs assessment process, which is revised on an ongoing basis to reflect evolving 
risks and changes within the Council. 
 
All Internal Audit reports identifying system weaknesses and/or non-compliance with expected 
controls are brought to the attention of management, and include appropriate 
recommendations and agreed action plans.  It is management’s responsibility to ensure that 
proper consideration is given to Internal Audit reports, and that appropriate action is taken on 
audit recommendations. The Internal Auditor is required to ensure that appropriate 
arrangements are made to determine whether action has been taken on Internal Audit 
recommendations, or that management has understood and assumed the risk of not taking 
action.  Significant matters arising from Internal Audit work are reported to the Head of 
Strategic Finance, the Chief Executive and the Council’s Audit Committee. 
 

Page 115



F:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\5\5\AI00029557\IFCSDraftFrontPage0.doc 

Basis of Opinion 
 
My evaluation of the control environment is informed by a number of sources: 
 
• The audit work undertaken by Internal Audit during the year to 31 March 2006; 
• The assessment of needs completed during the preparation of the 3 year strategic audit 

plan; 
• Reports issued by the Council’s external auditors, Audit Scotland; and 
• Internal Audit knowledge of the Council’s governance, risk management and performance 

monitoring arrangements. 
 
Opinion 
 
Except for the following listed matters it is my opinion, based on the above, that reasonable 
assurance can be placed upon the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s internal 
financial control system in the year to 31 March 2006:- 
 
Matters brought forward from previous year(s):- 

 
 
• A Risk Management Strategy has been now approved by the Strategic Management 

Team (SMT) and a Risk Register compiled. They are to be further developed and 
implemented during 2006 - 2007. 
 

• The development of linkages between budgets and the service planning processes 
with a corresponding review of procedures and training is to continue into 2006 - 
2007.  

 
New Matters to be considered in 2006/07 
 

• A review of charging procedures for trading accounts;  
• The procedures for granting and monitoring payments to outside bodies are to be 

considered for improvement (Following the Public Pound);  
• Asset Management Strategy to be developed in 2006 – 2007;  
• Best Value Improvement Plan to be progressed throughout 2006 – 2007; and  
• Reconciliation processes to be reviewed for the annual Unified Benefits Claim.  

 
 
Ian Nisbet, MBA MSc ACMA MIIA 
Internal Audit Manager 
HQ Kilmory 
15th May 2006 
internalcontrolstatementdraft 

Page 116



  
ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 
STRATEGIC FINANCE 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE

9 JUNE 2006
    
  
RECENT EXTERNAL AUDIT ISSUED REPORTS 2005 – 2006. 
  
  
  
1. SUMMARY 
  This report contains the Executive Summary and Action Plan for a new report issued by 

Audit Scotland since the last Audit Committee. Internal Audit has performed a review of 
the progress made by management in implementing the action points included in Action 
Plan set out in Appendix 1. The Action Plan will be incorporated into the reporting 
system for the next Audit Committee.  

   
    
2. RECOMMENDATION 
    
    2.1 The contents of this report are noted and are to be followed up by Internal Audit. 
    
3. DETAILS 
    
    3.1 In March 2006, Audit Scotland issued a report entitled “Computer Services 

Review”. The audit was a high level review of the arrangements for Information 
Communications Technology (ICT) services within the Education Department.  

    
  3.2 The Action Plan, which accompanies the report, details 11 recommendations for 

action. Seven of the action points have implementation dates between August and 
December 2006. Management have reported to Internal Audit that progress is 
being made with these action points.  

    
  3.3 Of the other 4 action points, management have reported that 3 have been 

completed, 2 prior to the finalisation of the report and the other in April 2006. 
Action point 11 will not be complete till the end of June 2006 due to an unforeseen 
delay with the renegotiation of the SLA. The report Executive Summary and 
Action Plan are provided in Appendix 1. 

    
4. CONCLUSION 
  
  Implementation of recommendations will continue to be monitored by Internal 

Audit.  
  
5. IMPLICATIONS 
  5.1 Policy: None 
        
  5.2 Financial: None 
        
  5.3 Personnel: None 
        
  5.4 Legal: None 
        
  5.5 Equal Opportunities: None 
For further information please contact Ian Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager (01546 604216) 
Ian Nisbet 
Internal Audit Manager   5 May 2006   5Mayfinalreport5May 

Agenda Item 12Page 117



Page 118

This page is intentionally left blank



Argyll & Bute Council – 2005/06 Audit 
Education Department – Computer Services Review 

 
APPENDIX 1 

 
 

March 2006  Audit Services-Audit Scotland 1

Executive Summary 
 
 
1. As part of our 2005/06 audit of Argyll and Bute Council, we conducted a high level 

overview of the overall arrangements for the provision of Information Communications 
Technology (ICT) services within the Council’s Education Department.  The review 
covered: 

• ICT strategy; 

• organisational structure;  

• installation management;  

• service delivery; 

• asset protection; 

• business continuity/contingency; and  

• networking. 

Conclusion 

2. Overall, provision of the ICT Service within the Education Department appears 
satisfactory.  Our audit work has, however, identified several areas where further 
improvements could be made.  A summary of these areas is included below, with 
details included as part of the action plan at section 2. 

Main audit findings 

3. The main areas for improving the management and operation of the ICT within the 
Education Department include: 

• a process for procuring software and hardware involving both teaching and ICT 
staff should be developed; 

• all software and hardware installed within the Education Department should be 
carried out by suitably trained ICT technicians or other trusted employees (trusted 
employees is Council terminology); 

• updating the ICT strategy for the Education department to include timescales, 
indicating when and by whom will monitor and review it; and 

• developing appropriate business continuity plans for ICT services within the 
department. 

 
Management action  

4. Detailed recommendations on those areas where controls could be improved are 
noted in the action plan that follows. The action plan also describes under the ‘risk 
exposure’ column the possible consequences of our audit finding. The factual 
accuracy of the report and the timescales for implementing our recommendations has 
been agreed with officers.  

 

 

Page 119



Argyll & Bute Council – 2005/06 Audit 
Education Department – Computer Services Review 

 
APPENDIX 1 

 
 

March 2006  Audit Services-Audit Scotland 2

5. This report to management sets out our findings from the review carried out.  The 
weaknesses outlined are only those which have come to our attention during the 
course of our normal audit work and are not necessarily, therefore, all of the 
weaknesses which may exist. 

6. Although we include a number of specific recommendations in this report to 
strengthen internal control, it is the responsibility of management to determine the 
extent of the internal control system appropriate to the Council.  We would stress, 
however, that an effective internal control system is an essential part of the efficient 
management of any organisation. 

7. The assistance and co-operation we received during the course of our audit is 
gratefully acknowledged. 

 

Page 120



A
rg

yl
l &

 B
ut

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
– 

20
05

/0
6 

A
ud

it 
Ed

uc
at

io
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t –

 C
om

pu
te

r S
er

vi
ce

s 
R

ev
ie

w
 

 
A

PP
EN

D
IX

  1
 

 
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

6 
 

A
ud

it 
S

er
vi

ce
s-

A
ud

it 
S

co
tla

nd
 

3

Se
ct

io
n 

2 
– 

A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

  

 

N
o.

 
A

ud
it 

Fi
nd

in
g 

R
is

k 
Ex

po
su

re
 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

A
ct

io
n 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 a

nd
 

D
at

e 
 

U
pd

at
e 

as
 a

t 5
th

 
M

ay
 2

00
6 

1 
 

IC
T 

st
af

f h
ig

hl
ig

ht
ed

 m
aj

or
 

se
cu

rit
y 

co
nc

er
ns

 in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 
tw

o 
so

ftw
ar

e 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 

(N
E

TI
D

M
E

 a
nd

 T
ru

an
cy

 C
al

l) 
w

hi
ch

 s
om

e 
sc

ho
ol

s 
pl

an
ne

d 
to

 
in

st
al

l. 
 T

es
tin

g 
by

 IC
T 

st
af

f 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

se
cu

rit
y 

is
su

es
 w

ith
 

th
es

e 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
.  

 
O

ur
 re

vi
ew

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

at
 n

o 
fo

rm
al

 p
ro

ce
ss

 e
xi

st
s 

fo
r 

pr
oc

ur
in

g 
so

ftw
ar

e 
or

 h
ar

dw
ar

e 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t. 
S

in
ce

 th
e 

au
di

t t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
a 

pr
oc

ed
ur

e 
fo

r 
pr

oc
ur

in
g 

so
ftw

ar
e 

(a
nd

 
ha

rd
w

ar
e)

.  
H

ow
ev

er
, t

hi
s 

pr
oc

ed
ur

e 
ha

s 
ye

t t
o 

be
 u

se
d.

 

P
ur

ch
as

in
g 

so
ftw

ar
e 

w
ith

ou
t 

in
vo

lv
in

g 
sp

ec
ia

lis
t I

C
T 

st
af

f 
ca

n 
re

su
lt 

in
 th

e 
pu

rc
ha

si
ng

 o
f 

a 
ba

dl
y 

pe
rfo

rm
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
(fo

r e
xa

m
pl

e 
th

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
ne

tw
or

k 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

in
su

ffi
ci

en
t t

o 
su

pp
or

t t
he

 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n)
.  

In
 a

dd
iti

on
, t

he
 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

co
ul

d 
ha

ve
 w

ea
k 

se
cu

rit
y 

or
 m

ay
 h

av
e 

an
 

un
su

ita
bl

e 
lic

en
ce

.  
 

IC
T 

st
af

f s
ho

ul
d 

th
er

ef
or

e 
en

su
re

 th
at

 a
ny

 n
ew

 h
ar

dw
ar

e 
co

m
pl

ie
s 

w
ith

 c
or

po
ra

te
 

st
an

da
rd

s 
an

d 
th

at
 th

ey
 h

av
e 

th
e 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
le

ve
l o

f e
xp

er
tis

e 
to

 s
up

po
rt 

it.
 

A
 p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t p

ro
ce

ss
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 in

vo
lv

in
g 

bo
th

 
te

ac
hi

ng
 a

nd
 IC

T 
st

af
f. 

 
Te

ac
hi

ng
 s

ta
ff 

sh
ou

ld
 id

en
tif

y 
th

e 
so

ftw
ar

e 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
an

d 
IC

T 
st

af
f s

ho
ul

d 
ch

ec
k 

th
at

 th
e 

so
ftw

ar
e 

an
d 

ha
rd

w
ar

e 
• 

co
m

pl
ie

s 
w

ith
 th

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 c
or

po
ra

te
 

st
an

da
rd

s;
 

• 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f t

he
 n

ew
 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

on
 th

e 
ne

tw
or

k 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

; a
nd

  
• 

th
e 

se
cu

rit
y 

of
 th

e 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n.
 

Pr
io

rit
y 

: H
ig

h 
 

A
ct

io
n:

 
A

pp
ly

 th
e 

re
ce

nt
ly

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

pr
oc

ed
ur

e 
to

 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t o
f a

ny
 n

ew
 

so
ftw

ar
e 

an
d 

ha
rd

w
ar

e.
 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
: 

IC
T 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t M
an

ag
er

 
D

at
e:

 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
6 

 

Th
e 

IC
T 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
M

an
ag

er
 h

as
 re

po
rte

d 
to

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
th

at
 

th
er

e 
is

 o
ng

oi
ng

 
pr

og
re

ss
 w

ith
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n.
 

Page 121



A
rg

yl
l &

 B
ut

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
– 

20
05

/0
6 

A
ud

it 
Ed

uc
at

io
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t –

 C
om

pu
te

r S
er

vi
ce

s 
R

ev
ie

w
 

 
A

PP
EN

D
IX

  1
 

 
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

6 
 

A
ud

it 
S

er
vi

ce
s-

A
ud

it 
S

co
tla

nd
 

4

N
o.

 
A

ud
it 

Fi
nd

in
g 

R
is

k 
Ex

po
su

re
 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

A
ct

io
n 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 a

nd
 

D
at

e 
 

U
pd

at
e 

as
 a

t 5
th

 
M

ay
 2

00
6 

2 
 

C
ur

re
nt

ly
 m

an
y 

st
af

f w
ith

 th
e 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t c
an

 
in

st
al

l s
of

tw
ar

e 
on

 th
e 

sc
ho

ol
s 

ne
tw

or
ks

. 

A
llo

w
in

g 
a 

lo
t o

f s
ta

ff 
to

 in
st

al
l 

so
ftw

ar
e 

on
 th

e 
sc

ho
ol

s 
co

m
pu

te
rs

 c
an

 p
ot

en
tia

lly
 

re
su

lt 
in

 p
oo

rly
 c

on
fig

ur
ed

 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
, b

ad
ly

 p
er

fo
rm

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 w
ea

k 
se

cu
rit

y.
 

S
ta

ff 
w

ho
 in

st
al

l t
he

 s
of

tw
ar

e 
m

an
y 

be
 u

na
w

ar
e 

of
 th

e 
lic

en
si

ng
 re

st
ric

tio
ns

 w
hi

ch
 c

an
 

po
te

nt
ia

lly
 le

ad
 to

 le
ga

l a
ct

io
n 

ag
ai

ns
t t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
if 

so
ftw

ar
e 

is
 in

st
al

le
d 

ag
ai

ns
t t

he
 li

ce
nc

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

t o
r i

f i
lle

ga
l 

so
ftw

ar
e 

is
 in

st
al

le
d.

 

A
ny

 s
of

tw
ar

e 
in

st
al

la
tio

ns
 o

n 
th

e 
sc

ho
ol

s 
ne

tw
or

k 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

ha
nd

le
d 

or
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t u
nd

er
 

th
e 

su
pe

rv
is

io
n 

of
 th

e 
IC

T 
te

ch
ni

ci
an

s 
or

 o
th

er
 tr

us
te

d 
em

pl
oy

ee
s.

 

Pr
io

rit
y 

: H
ig

h 
 

A
ct

io
n:

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

ar
e 

be
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

as
 p

ar
t 

of
 th

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

S
ec

ur
ity

 (I
S

) P
ol

ic
y 

fo
r 

E
du

ca
tio

n.
 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
: 

IC
T 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t M
an

ag
er

 
D

at
e:

 
In

iti
al

 d
ra

ft 
of

 p
ol

ic
y 

w
ill

 b
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
by

 D
ec

em
be

r 
20

06
 

 

Th
e 

IC
T 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
M

an
ag

er
 h

as
 re

po
rte

d 
to

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
th

at
 

th
er

e 
is

 o
ng

oi
ng

 
pr

og
re

ss
 w

ith
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n.
 

3 
 

Th
e 

fu
tu

re
 s

tra
te

gy
 fo

r I
C

T 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t i
s 

ou
tli

ne
d 

in
 IC

T 
S

tra
te

gy
 fo

r E
du

ca
tio

n 
O

ve
rv

ie
w

.  
W

hi
ls

t t
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t o

ut
lin

es
 th

e 
pl

an
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
 it

 d
oe

s 
no

t i
nc

lu
de

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 ti
m

es
ca

le
s.

  N
or

 
do

es
 it

 in
di

ca
te

 w
he

n 
it 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 a
nd

 b
y 

w
ho

m
 o

r w
ho

 
is

 re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r m

on
ito

rin
g 

pr
og

re
ss

 a
ga

in
st

 th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

. 

D
ev

el
op

in
g 

a 
st

ra
te

gy
 fo

r I
C

T 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t i
s 

to
 b

e 
co

m
m

en
de

d.
 H

ow
ev

er
 w

ith
ou

t 
in

di
ca

tin
g 

tim
es

ca
le

s 
fo

r 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

or
 th

e 
re

vi
ew

 
an

d 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

in
st

al
le

d 
re

st
ric

ts
 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
am

on
g 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 s

ta
ff 

an
d 

is
 

lik
el

y 
to

 re
du

ce
 th

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
. 

U
pd

at
e 

th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

st
ra

te
gy

 b
y 

ad
di

ng
 ti

m
es

ca
le

s,
 re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s.

  

Pr
io

rit
y 

: H
ig

h 
 

A
ct

io
n:

 
Th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
 w

ill
 b

e 
fu

rth
er

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

in
 c

on
ju

nc
tio

n 
w

ith
 c

ol
le

ag
ue

s 
in

 th
e 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
S

er
vi

ce
. 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
: 

IC
T 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t M
an

ag
er

 
an

d 
Q

ua
lit

y 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
O

ffi
ce

r -
 IC

T 
D

at
e:

 
In

iti
al

 d
ra

ft 
w

ill
 b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

by
 A

ug
us

t 2
00

6 
 

A
s 

ab
ov

e.
 

Page 122



A
rg

yl
l &

 B
ut

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
– 

20
05

/0
6 

A
ud

it 
Ed

uc
at

io
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t –

 C
om

pu
te

r S
er

vi
ce

s 
R

ev
ie

w
 

 
A

PP
EN

D
IX

  1
 

 
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

6 
 

A
ud

it 
S

er
vi

ce
s-

A
ud

it 
S

co
tla

nd
 

5

N
o.

 
A

ud
it 

Fi
nd

in
g 

R
is

k 
Ex

po
su

re
 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

A
ct

io
n 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 a

nd
 

D
at

e 
 

U
pd

at
e 

as
 a

t 5
th

 
M

ay
 2

00
6 

4 
 

IC
T 

is
 o

ne
 a

re
a 

w
he

re
 s

of
tw

ar
e 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ts

 
ar

e 
ra

pi
dl

y 
ch

an
gi

ng
.  

It 
is

 
im

po
rta

nt
 th

at
 IC

T 
st

af
f r

ec
ei

ve
 

th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 in

 
th

es
e 

ne
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 o

r a
t 

le
as

t s
et

 a
si

de
 ti

m
e 

to
 b

ec
om

e 
fa

m
ili

ar
 w

ith
 a

ny
 n

ew
 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

.  
C

ou
nc

il 
st

af
f 

re
co

gn
is

e 
th

is
 re

qu
ire

m
en

t a
nd

 
w

or
k 

is
 o

ng
oi

ng
 in

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
tra

in
in

g 
pl

an
s 

fo
r t

ec
hn

ic
ia

ns
 

an
d 

in
tro

du
ci

ng
 a

 m
en

to
rin

g 
sy

st
em

. 

W
ith

ou
t a

de
qu

at
e 

tim
e 

se
t 

as
id

e 
fo

r t
ra

in
in

g 
or

 fo
r 

fa
m

ili
ar

is
at

io
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n,

 IC
T 

st
af

f w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 fu

lly
 s

up
po

rt 
th

e 
in

tro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 n
ew

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 
an

d 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 th
e 

fe
at

ur
es

. 

Th
e 

tra
in

in
g 

pl
an

 fo
r I

C
T 

st
af

f 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 a

nd
 

im
pl

em
en

te
d.

 
Th

e 
pl

an
ne

d 
m

en
to

rin
g 

sc
he

m
e 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
im

pl
em

en
te

d.
 

W
he

n 
in

st
al

lin
g 

ne
w

 s
of

tw
ar

e 
or

 h
ar

dw
ar

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 
tra

in
in

g,
 if

 re
qu

ire
d,

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 to
 IC

T 
st

af
f. 

 It
 is

 
ad

vi
sa

bl
e 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
th

is
 ta

sk
 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t p
la

n 
fo

r a
ny

 
ne

w
 h

ar
dw

ar
e 

or
 s

of
tw

ar
e.

 
Th

e 
tra

in
in

g 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

sh
ou

ld
 

be
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 p
er

io
di

c 
re

vi
ew

. 

Pr
io

rit
y 

: H
ig

h 
 

A
ct

io
n:

 
IC

T 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 P

la
n 

be
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

fo
r a

ll 
IC

T 
S

up
po

rt 
st

af
f w

ith
in

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
R

es
po

ns
ib

ili
ty

: 
IC

T 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t M

an
ag

er
 

D
at

e:
 

P
la

n 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
by

 A
ug

us
t 

20
06

 
 

Th
e 

IC
T 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
M

an
ag

er
 h

as
 re

po
rte

d 
to

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
th

at
 

th
er

e 
is

 o
ng

oi
ng

 
pr

og
re

ss
 w

ith
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n.
 

5 
 

D
ur

in
g 

ou
r a

ud
it 

vi
si

t w
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

at
 v

is
ito

rs
 c

ou
ld

 
en

te
r I

nv
er

ar
ay

 C
on

fe
re

nc
e 

C
en

tre
 w

ith
ou

t c
ha

lle
ng

e.
   

 
 

U
na

ut
ho

ris
ed

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 c

ou
nc

il 
pr

em
is

es
 s

ho
ul

d 
no

t b
e 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 a
s 

it 
ra

is
es

 b
ot

h 
se

cu
rit

y 
an

d 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 s
af

et
y 

is
su

es
. 

A
ll 

st
af

f s
ho

ul
d 

be
 re

m
in

de
d 

th
at

 v
is

ito
rs

 s
ho

ul
d 

si
gn

 in
 to

 
co

un
ci

l p
re

m
is

es
 a

nd
 if

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 b
e 

es
co

rte
d.

 

Pr
io

rit
y 

: H
ig

h 
 

A
ct

io
n:

 
P

ro
ce

du
re

s 
ar

e 
in

 p
la

ce
.  

C
lo

se
r m

on
ito

rin
g 

of
 

se
cu

rit
y 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 is
 

be
in

g 
do

ne
. 

 

C
om

pl
et

e.
 

Page 123



A
rg

yl
l &

 B
ut

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
– 

20
05

/0
6 

A
ud

it 
Ed

uc
at

io
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t –

 C
om

pu
te

r S
er

vi
ce

s 
R

ev
ie

w
 

 
A

PP
EN

D
IX

  1
 

 
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

6 
 

A
ud

it 
S

er
vi

ce
s-

A
ud

it 
S

co
tla

nd
 

6

N
o.

 
A

ud
it 

Fi
nd

in
g 

R
is

k 
Ex

po
su

re
 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

A
ct

io
n 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 a

nd
 

D
at

e 
 

U
pd

at
e 

as
 a

t 5
th

 
M

ay
 2

00
6 

6 
 

In
 s

ec
on

da
ry

 s
ch

oo
ls

, o
ne

 
ne

tw
or

k 
ho

st
s 

bo
th

 te
ac

hi
ng

 
an

d 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

co
m

pu
te

rs
. 

Th
is

 is
 a

 p
ot

en
tia

l s
ec

ur
ity

 
w

ea
kn

es
s,

 a
s 

in
 th

eo
ry

, i
t i

s 
po

ss
ib

le
 fo

r p
up

ils
 to

 h
ac

k 
in

to
 

th
e 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
co

m
pu

te
r. 

A
 re

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 e

xi
st

in
g 

ne
tw

or
k 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
un

de
rta

ke
n 

to
 a

sc
er

ta
in

 if
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 
se

cu
rit

y 
of

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

ne
tw

or
ks

 is
 fe

as
ib

le
. 

P
os

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
in

cl
ud

e 
se

pa
ra

tin
g 

th
e 

st
ud

en
t a

nd
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

co
m

pu
te

rs
 in

to
 d

iff
er

en
t 

se
gm

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 n

et
w

or
k.

 T
hi

s 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 w

ou
ld

 h
el

p 
en

fo
rc

e 
be

tte
r a

cc
es

s 
co

nt
ro

ls
 to

 th
e 

re
sp

ec
tiv

e 
co

m
pu

te
rs

. 

Pr
io

rit
y 

: H
ig

h 
 

A
ct

io
n:

 
C

lo
se

r m
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
un

de
rta

ke
n 

as
 p

ar
t o

f i
m

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 

IS
 P

ol
ic

y 
fo

r E
du

ca
tio

n.
 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
: 

IC
T 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t M
an

ag
er

 
D

at
e:

 
In

iti
al

 d
ra

ft 
of

 p
ol

ic
y 

w
ill

 b
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
by

 D
ec

em
be

r 
20

06
 

 

Th
e 

IC
T 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
M

an
ag

er
 h

as
 re

po
rte

d 
to

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
th

at
 

th
er

e 
is

 o
ng

oi
ng

 
pr

og
re

ss
 w

ith
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n.
 

7 
 

In
 g

en
er

al
, m

os
t s

ta
ff 

w
er

e 
aw

ar
e 

of
 th

e 
ne

ed
 to

 u
se

 
st

ro
ng

 p
as

sw
or

ds
.  

H
ow

ev
er

, a
 

sm
al

l n
um

be
r w

er
e 

un
aw

ar
e 

of
 

th
is

 re
qu

ire
m

en
t. 

S
ta

ff 
us

e 
ea

si
ly

 g
ue

ss
ab

le
 

pa
ss

w
or

ds
, w

hi
ch

 c
ou

ld
 a

llo
w

 
un

au
th

or
is

ed
 a

nd
 in

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 th
e 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t’s
 c

om
pu

te
r 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s.
 

A
ll 

st
af

f u
si

ng
 c

om
pu

te
rs

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
m

in
de

d 
to

 u
se

 
st

ro
ng

 p
as

sw
or

ds
. 

Pr
io

rit
y 

: H
ig

h 

A
ct

io
n:

 
Th

is
 e

xi
st

s 
on

 C
or

po
ra

te
 

N
et

w
or

k 
an

d 
w

ill
 b

e 
im

pl
em

en
ts

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 IS

 
P

ol
ic

y 
fo

r E
du

ca
tio

n.
 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
: 

IC
T 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t M
an

ag
er

 
D

at
e:

 
In

iti
al

 d
ra

ft 
of

 p
ol

ic
y 

w
ill

 b
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
by

 D
ec

em
be

r 
20

06
 

 

A
s 

ab
ov

e.
 

Page 124



A
rg

yl
l &

 B
ut

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
– 

20
05

/0
6 

A
ud

it 
Ed

uc
at

io
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t –

 C
om

pu
te

r S
er

vi
ce

s 
R

ev
ie

w
 

 
A

PP
EN

D
IX

  1
 

 
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

6 
 

A
ud

it 
S

er
vi

ce
s-

A
ud

it 
S

co
tla

nd
 

7

N
o.

 
A

ud
it 

Fi
nd

in
g 

R
is

k 
Ex

po
su

re
 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

A
ct

io
n 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 a

nd
 

D
at

e 
 

U
pd

at
e 

as
 a

t 5
th

 
M

ay
 2

00
6 

8 
 

A
t t

he
 ti

m
e 

of
 a

ud
it,

 th
e 

in
ve

nt
or

y 
of

 s
of

tw
ar

e 
an

d 
ha

rd
w

ar
e 

w
as

 in
co

m
pl

et
e.

 A
t 

pr
es

en
t t

he
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 e

xi
st

s 
fo

r i
te

m
s 

to
 b

e 
pu

rc
ha

se
d 

di
re

ct
ly

 b
y 

sc
ho

ol
s.

  T
he

se
 

ite
m

s 
ar

e 
no

t r
ef

le
ct

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
in

ve
nt

or
y 

co
ns

is
te

nt
ly

. 
 

S
of

tw
ar

e 
lic

en
ce

s 
ar

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 

in
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l’s
 b

al
an

ce
 s

he
et

 
as

 fi
xe

d 
as

se
ts

.  
H

ow
ev

er
, 

w
ith

ou
t a

 d
et

ai
le

d 
co

un
t o

f t
he

 
so

ftw
ar

e 
lic

en
se

s 
th

is
 fi

gu
re

 
m

ay
 b

e 
in

ac
cu

ra
te

. 
G

en
er

al
ly

 s
of

tw
ar

e 
is

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 

lic
en

se
 a

gr
ee

m
en

ts
, w

hi
ch

 c
an

 
be

 le
ga

lly
 e

nf
or

ce
d.

  O
pe

ra
tin

g 
w

ith
 u

nl
ic

en
se

d 
so

ftw
ar

e 
is

 a
n 

of
fe

nc
e.

  W
ith

ou
t a

 d
et

ai
le

d 
in

ve
nt

or
y 

it 
is

 d
iff

ic
ul

t t
o 

ar
gu

e 
th

at
 a

ll 
th

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

st
ep

s 
w

er
e 

ta
ke

n 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 o
nl

y 
pr

op
er

ly
 li

ce
ns

ed
 s

of
tw

ar
e 

is
 

us
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
sc

ho
ol

s.
 

U
pd

at
e 

th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

in
ve

nt
or

ie
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 a

ll 
so

ftw
ar

e 
an

d 
ha

rd
w

ar
e 

ar
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

. 
C

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
gi

ve
n 

to
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

ha
rd

w
ar

e 
an

d 
so

ftw
ar

e 
co

nf
ig

ur
at

io
ns

 o
f a

ll 
ne

tw
or

ke
d 

co
m

pu
te

rs
. 

Pr
io

rit
y 

: M
ed

iu
m

 

A
ct

io
n:

 
Th

is
 w

ill
 b

e 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
as

 
pa

rt 
of

 IT
 w

or
k 

pl
an

 o
ve

r t
he

 
co

m
in

g 
ye

ar
. 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
: 

IC
T 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t M
an

ag
er

 
D

at
e:

 
In

 p
la

ce
 b

y 
N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
6 

 

C
om

pl
et

e.
 

Page 125



A
rg

yl
l &

 B
ut

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
– 

20
05

/0
6 

A
ud

it 
Ed

uc
at

io
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t –

 C
om

pu
te

r S
er

vi
ce

s 
R

ev
ie

w
 

 
A

PP
EN

D
IX

  1
 

 
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

6 
 

A
ud

it 
S

er
vi

ce
s-

A
ud

it 
S

co
tla

nd
 

8

N
o.

 
A

ud
it 

Fi
nd

in
g 

R
is

k 
Ex

po
su

re
 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

A
ct

io
n 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 a

nd
 

D
at

e 
 

U
pd

at
e 

as
 a

t 5
th

 
M

ay
 2

00
6 

9 
 

W
e 

w
er

e 
un

ab
le

 to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

th
e 

ex
is

te
nc

e 
of

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
ne

tw
or

k 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

, s
ec

ur
ity

 
an

d 
da

ta
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
ha

nd
bo

ok
. 

N
et

w
or

k 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 d
es

cr
ib

e 
ho

w
 v

ar
io

us
 n

et
w

or
ki

ng
 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ta

sk
s 

ar
e 

ca
rr

ie
d 

ou
t. 

Th
ey

 a
re

 u
se

fu
l i

n 
tra

in
in

g 
st

af
f n

ew
 to

 th
e 

ta
sk

 a
nd

 in
 

do
cu

m
en

tin
g 

ta
sk

s 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

 
ge

ne
ra

lly
 o

nl
y 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
on

ce
 

or
 tw

ic
e 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
pr

od
uc

t’s
 

lif
et

im
e.

 
O

ne
 o

f t
he

 ta
sk

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

as
 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
fo

r t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

to
 

m
ee

t B
S

77
99

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

S
ec

ur
ity

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

st
an

da
rd

, w
as

 fo
r t

he
 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t t
o 

de
ve

lo
p 

a 
se

cu
rit

y 
an

d 
da

ta
 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
ha

nd
bo

ok
.  

W
ith

ou
t 

su
ch

 a
 d

oc
um

en
t t

he
 

de
pa

rtm
en

t w
ou

ld
 fi

nd
 it

 d
iff

ic
ul

t 
to

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
is

 s
ta

nd
ar

d.
 

D
ev

el
op

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

ne
tw

or
k 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
. 

D
ev

el
op

 s
ec

ur
ity

 a
nd

 d
at

a 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n.

 

Pr
io

rit
y 

: M
ed

iu
m

 

A
ct

io
n:

 
N

et
w

or
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 a

re
 b

ei
ng

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

as
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

(IS
) P

ol
ic

y 
fo

r 
E

du
ca

tio
n.

 
R

es
po

ns
ib

ili
ty

: 
IC

T 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t M

an
ag

er
 

D
at

e:
 

In
iti

al
 d

ra
ft 

of
 p

ol
ic

y 
an

d 
ha

nd
bo

ok
 w

ill
 b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

by
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
6 

 

Th
e 

IC
T 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
M

an
ag

er
 h

as
 re

po
rte

d 
to

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
th

at
 

th
er

e 
is

 o
ng

oi
ng

 
pr

og
re

ss
 w

ith
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n.
 

10
 

 
A

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 s

er
vi

ce
 le

ve
l 

ag
re

em
en

t (
S

LA
) i

s 
an

 
es

se
nt

ia
l r

eq
ui

re
m

en
t f

or
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

or
 re

ce
ip

t o
f a

ny
 

im
po

rta
nt

 s
er

vi
ce

.  
A

 S
LA

 
de

fin
es

 th
e 

pa
ra

m
et

er
s 

fo
r t

he
 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 th

at
 s

er
vi

ce
, f

or
 th

e 
be

ne
fit

 o
f b

ot
h 

pa
rti

es
. 

Th
e 

pa
ra

m
et

er
s 

of
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
de

liv
er

y 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

t a
re

 n
ot

 
ad

eq
ua

te
ly

 d
ef

in
ed

. 

Fi
na

lis
e 

th
e 

S
LA

 fo
r N

at
io

na
l 

G
rid

 fo
r L

ea
rn

in
g 

pr
oj

ec
t. 

A
ct

io
n:

 
Th

is
 w

ill
 b

e 
ad

dr
es

se
d 

in
 re

-
ne

go
tia

tio
n 

of
 c

on
tra

ct
. 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
: 

IC
T 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t M
an

ag
er

 
D

at
e:

 
A

pr
il 

20
06

 
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t h

as
 

re
po

rte
d 

th
at

 fi
na

lis
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
S

LA
 w

as
 d

el
ay

ed
 

du
e 

to
 re

so
lv

in
g 

a 
ha

rd
w

ar
e 

is
su

e.
  A

 n
ew

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

da
te

 o
f 

en
d 

Ju
ne

 2
00

6 
ha

s 
be

en
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t. 

  

Page 126



A
rg

yl
l &

 B
ut

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
– 

20
05

/0
6 

A
ud

it 
Ed

uc
at

io
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t –

 C
om

pu
te

r S
er

vi
ce

s 
R

ev
ie

w
 

 
A

PP
EN

D
IX

  1
 

 
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

6 
 

A
ud

it 
S

er
vi

ce
s-

A
ud

it 
S

co
tla

nd
 

9

N
o.

 
A

ud
it 

Fi
nd

in
g 

R
is

k 
Ex

po
su

re
 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

A
ct

io
n 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 a

nd
 

D
at

e 
 

U
pd

at
e 

as
 a

t 5
th

 
M

ay
 2

00
6 

11
 

 
Th

e 
ai

m
 o

f b
us

in
es

s 
co

nt
in

ui
ty

 
pl

an
ni

ng
 is

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 a

n 
ad

eq
ua

te
 s

er
vi

ce
 le

ve
l c

an
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 if

 a
n 

un
fo

re
se

en
 

in
ci

de
nt

 o
cc

ur
s.

 
Th

e 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

R
ep

or
t o

n 
A

rg
yl

l 
an

d 
B

ut
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
S

ec
ur

ity
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
P

la
n 

da
te

d 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

00
5 

hi
gh

lig
ht

ed
 

se
ve

ra
l o

ut
st

an
di

ng
 a

ct
io

ns
 in

 
th

e 
ar

ea
 o

f b
us

in
es

s 
co

nt
in

ui
ty

 
pl

an
ni

ng
.  

In
co

m
pl

et
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

 c
on

tin
ui

ty
 

pl
an

s 
w

ill
 h

av
e 

an
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 

by
 th

e 
E

du
ca

tio
n 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

sh
ou

ld
 a

n 
un

fo
re

se
en

 in
ci

de
nt

 
oc

cu
r. 

Id
en

tif
y 

th
e 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
th

is
 a

ct
io

n.
 

A
ct

io
n:

 
Th

e 
E

du
ca

tio
n 

M
an

ag
em

en
t I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

S
ys

te
m

 (S
E

E
M

IS
) w

ill
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

co
rp

or
at

e 
D

is
as

te
r R

ec
ov

er
y 

P
ro

je
ct

 
w

hi
ch

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

es
 

B
us

in
es

s 
C

on
tin

ui
ty

 p
la

ns
. 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
: 

IC
T 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t M
an

ag
er

 
D

at
e:

 
A

pr
il 

20
06

 
 

C
om

pl
et

e.
 

 

Page 127



Page 128

This page is intentionally left blank



  
ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 
FINANCE 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE

9June 2006
    
  
REPORT RE FIRST YEAR OF THE RENEWED PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT 
WITH KPMG AND PROPOSALS FOR THE SECOND YEAR 
  
  
  
1. SUMMARY 
    
  This report details the progress of the internal audit partnering agreement in its first year 

of operation and explains KPMG’s proposals for the forthcoming year. 
    
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
    
    2.1 That this committee notes the progress of the agreement in its first year and 

approves the proposals for the forthcoming year. 
    
  
    
3. DETAILS 
    
  3.1 The Council entered into a three partnership agreement with KPMG for the years 

2002-2005 to assist with internal audit arrangements with the specific objective: 
“In any follow-up review of internal audit functions at Scottish Local Authorities 
by Audit Scotland, that of Argyll and Bute will be classed as amongst the best.” 
This objective was achieved. After a tender exercise KPMG was awarded a follow 
on contract for the period 2005-2008 with fewer days being required. KPMG now 
provide 28 days audit advice and management support and 25 days Information 
Technology audit input.  

    
  3.2  The objective of the partnering arrangement is: 

• To consolidate and build upon the improvements made in the operation of the 
internal audit function at the Council; and 

• To provide specialist IT audit resource with an added remit to transfer skills 
in this area to a member of Argyll and Bute audit staff. 

    
  3.3 In 2005-2006 KPMG undertook the following work: 

• Advice regarding the role and stakeholder expectations of internal audit in 
a Scottish Local Authority; 

• Training sessions to both elected members and members of staff on 
governance and audit issues; 

• Attendance at Audit Committees; 

• Assistance and advice about the development of a new risk based three year 
internal audit strategy; 

• Undertook a review of budgetary control arrangements at the Council; 

• Undertook a file review to provide an opinion on compliance with 
professional standards of file keeping and working papers; 

Agenda Item 13Page 129



• Miscellaneous ad hoc advice to audit management as required; and 

• An IT security control review, including “penetration testing”, alongside a 
nominated member of Argyll and Bute audit staff to facilitate skill transfer. 

 
    
  3.4 KPMG propose the following activities for the second year of the partnership 

agreement: 

• Management and professional support – focusing this year on the role of 
internal audit in relation to the Council’s duty of Best Value; 

• Formal and informal training (both to the elected members and staff as 
required); 

• Direct audit time where KPMG’s wider experience of local authority 
issues adds value; 

• Audit Committee attendance;  

• Meetings/relationship management and audit functioning (in particular 
continuing reviews of compliance with good practice and guidance and 
continuous improvement); and 

• IT audit alongside a nominated member of staff. This year we propose to 
look at the operation of two key computer applications – the finance 
ledger and the council tax system. 

 
    
5.  IMPLICATIONS 
  
  5.1 Policy: None 
        
  5.2 Financial: None 
        
  5.3 Personnel: None 
        
  5.4 Legal: None 
        
  5.5 Equal Opportunities: None 
 
 For further information please contact Ian Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager (01546 604216) 
  
Steve Keightley 
Partnership Manager 
18 May 2006.  
KPMGprogreport18may 

Page 130



  
ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
STRATEGIC FINANCE 9 JUNE 2006
  
 
APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITORS 2006/07 TO 2010/11 
 
  
1. INTRODUCTION 

 
 1.1 The financial year 2005/06 is the final year of appointment for the 

Council’s current external auditors Audit Scotland.   A tendering exercise 
for all local authority audits covering the period 2006/07 to 2010/11 has 
recently been carried out and the Accounts Commission  has now 
confirmed that RSM Robson Rhodes LLP as the Council’s external 
auditors for 2006/07 to 2010/11. 
 

 1.2 This is RSM Robson Rhodes LLP’s first venture into external audit for 
Scottish local authorities.  In addition to Argyll and Bute Council they have 
also secured the audits of East Dunbartonshire Council and 
Clackmannanshire Council.   Despite this lack of experience of local 
authority audit in Scotland, it should be noted that RSM Robson Rhodes 
LLP are a large accountancy practice although not one of the Big 4. 
 

 1.3 Contact has been made with RSM Robson Rhodes LLP and an early 
meeting has been sought with a view to 
 

  • Planning a smooth transition between external auditors 
• Raising the awareness for RSM Robson Rhodes LLP of key  

issues within Argyll and Bute 
• Understanding how RSM Robson Rhodes LLP propose to plan and 

resource the audit of Argyll and Bute Council. 
 

 
 
 
 
Bruce West 
Head of Strategic Finance 
30 May 2006 
 

Agenda Item 14Page 131



Page 132

This page is intentionally left blank


